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Financial Highlights

TS EE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZB-NE “E-NE —E—+F ZE-RE —T-HfF
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HKS$'million HK$'million
BEBER AEET AEET BEAT BEAT
Revenue W
- Semiconductor distribution —FEENE 1,602.4 1,592.1 1,304.9 992.4 1,893.1
— Consumer electronic product - HEBEETEMR
and brand omni-channel business REEREER 88.5 66.9 36.8 M7 628
- Venture capital —gl% - 08 - - -
- Others i 7.9 3.1 07 29 18
1,698.8 1,662.9 13424 1,037.0 1,957.7
Profiti(oss) before interest, tax, depreciation, BFI8 B 7& - B
amortisation and non-cash items ¥RLBERET/ (BB
- Corporate SN (26.0) (34.3) (222) (25.9) (4.5)
~ Venture capital &I (28.1) 479 14.0 (23.4) (38.3)
- Semiconductor distribution ~HBENH 154.5 1615 2272 118.0 104.6
— Consurer electronic product - BEEETERL
and brand omni-channel business MEREBER (20.4) @7 (76 39) (7.9
- Others —Eth (10.1) (10.1) (6.4 6.9) (12.9)
69.9 160.3 205.0 57.9 41.0
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH (43) (3.6) (3.0) (6.8) (10.8)
Profit/(oss) for the year attributable to UTALTEEREERF/ (BE)
- Owners of the Company —ARAHEA 57.3 1633 276.1 2.1 (94.2)
- Non-controlling interests — RS 2.1 (0.4) - - 293
55.2 162.9 276.1 2.1 (64.9)
Dividend [
~ Proposed final —BEARH 18.2 185 155 - -
Dividend per share (HK cents) BRRS ()
— Proposed final —BEXRY 20 20 20 - -
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Financial Highlights
BITSER

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZB-nE ZE-0\E E-t% 2R —Z-1f
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HKS$'million
AR AEET BEET AEAT BEAT
Total assets EEfME 13170 1,405.8 1,280.9 8845 1,140.1
Total assets less current liabilities BEEARDER 11325 1,106.9 1,094.0 6810 6793
Total equity ExeE 1,156 1,086.7 10783 6576 6542
Borrowings and finance lease payables EFRENRARENE 765 136.6 1184 1372 350.8
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERAALER 106.0 2339 1116 69.6 1317
Equity investments at fair value through BB BREATFEEFRZ
profit or loss RARE - 993 102.1 730 892
Financial assets at fair value through FATBEE ERER
profit or loss included in current asset BATEEIR CREE 117.6 . - - -
223.6 3332 2137 142.6 2209
Total debt to total equity ERLERERLE X 7% 13% 11% 2% 54%
Current assets to current liabilities RHEERRBAE X 215% 195% 335% 147% 138%
Cash and cash equivalents, equity BRE2REAALER
investments and financial assets at BARERERERE
fair value through profit or loss RTEBEIE EREE
per share (HKS) (%) 0.25 0.36 0.23 0.15 0.24
Total equity per share (HK9) BRERLE(ET) 1.3 118 116 0.71 0.71
Revenue to property, plant and B=EYE  BER
equipment (x) BB () 429 36.1 342 255 46.1
Revenue to inventories (x) WEEFENE () 273 104 17.2 15.0 133
Revenue to trade receivables (x) W RENE SER L * (1F) 239 25 272 16.2 9.3
Revenue to trade payables, deposits b=RENESEHN  BElEER
received and accrued expenses (x) EirEALX(E) 353 130 22 16.6 187
Revenue to borrowings (x) IR E L% () 35 124 116 76 56
AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Dr. So Yuk Kwan & @598 +
Chairman F /&

Chairnlan’s Statement

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am honored to present the annual results
of AV Concept Holdings Limited (“AV Concept” or the “Company”) together
with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2019 (the “year under review").

This year, the global macro situation was complicated with increasing market
risk factors. The semiconductor industry is affected by various factors, the
growth rate has slowed down, the price competition pressure has increased,
and the industry is facing enormous challenge. During the year under review,
with the joint effort of the entire team, the Group recorded a revenue of
HK$1,698.8 million (2018: HK$1,662.9 million), profit attributable to owners
of the Company recorded a profit of HK$57.3 million (2018: HK$163.3 million)
and gross profit was approximately HK$25.3 million (2018: HK$39.4 million).

AABREREZTEMAMBJEIR ZAV Concept Holdings Limited ([ AV
Concept |k [ARAR]) REWBAR (HEIAEEDBEE_S—NF=A
—t+—AEFE(REFR]) 22 FEE-

SF 2R RBRDERER TMHERAKREREM FEREXSEFER
EYE CMREAE BRBEENER EXEBREBEANKE - D
FR-EXRAEELANZE T #SWRAL RE 1,698,800,0008 7L (ZF
— )\ : 1,662,900,000 78 7T) * ZAN72 &) % 5 FE 4 i F1I 8% 15 & %1 A 57,300,000
B (ZZF— \F : 163,300,000/87T) + EF4) AB % 25,300,000 T (=
= — \ 4 : 39,400,000/ 7C) °

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Chairrrlan’s Statement

The Group has been engaging in the marketing and distribution of electronic
components business. With the continuous rise of downstream industries
such as 5G, consumer electronics and automotive electronics, China’s
semiconductor industry will enter the next stage of development. We will seize
the development opportunities of semiconductors in the Chinese market to
consolidate the existing market share and continue to invest resources in the
Singapore market to maintain stable growth in the medium and long term.
The Group has also actively expanded into the field of e-commerce in recent
years. According to the 2018 Southeast Asia E-Commerce Market Report
jointly released by Google and Temasek, the total Gross Merchandise Volume
in Southeast Asia electronics will reach US$100 billion by 2025, while the data
for this indicator in 2018 is US$23 billion. The Group will invest more resources
in the Singapore and Indonesia markets to expand its product categories and
introduce more high-end brand partners to develop higher quality, more high-
tech consumer electronics products to meet consumer trends. With the help
of the huge business opportunities of Southeast Asia’s e-commerce, the Group
is working to further increase the market share of the consumer electronics
product and brand omni-channel business.

With the rise of the mobile internet and e-commerce platforms, the social
functions and attributes on the major platforms are perfecting, and the
influence of social media is increasing significantly. Social application functions
are further enriching, instant communication, news push, online videos, short
videos, live broadcast, game interaction, etc., can all be achieved in social
applications, indicating the obvious trend of multi-domain platform coverage
development. In view of the rapid global development and the rising popularity
of new media among the younger generation, we hope to continue developing
the internet social media business with the advantages of the existing platform
resources and to thrive in the world of the internet.

Lastly, | would like to extend my gratitude to the Board, the management
team and our staffs for their enthusiasm, commitment and diligence. My
appreciation also goes to our shareholders, customers, suppliers and business
partners for their ongoing trust and support.

So Yuk Kwan
Chairman
Hong Kong
26 June 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB &R DA

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The following sets out the financial highlights for the year ended 31 March
2019, with the comparative figures for the corresponding financial year of
2018.

EBEERAR
TRESIBE-T-NF=A=+-ALFE2H
BES  BR-T—\FUREEREZLRYT -

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'million HK$'million
BHEBT BEATT
Revenue by segment 1757802 Wz
Semiconductor distribution F 3852 5 5 1,602.4 1,592.1
Consumer electronic product and HEEETERANM
brand omni-channel business mEERBHES 88.5 66.9
Venture capital Bl (23.9) 723
Others Hh 7.9 3.1
1,674.9 1,734.4
Profit/(loss) before interest, tax, depreciation, — BrFI&8 - FIEH - #1E « B R
amortisation and non-cash items HHEIEH FE T (E1E)
Corporate NE (26.0) (34.3)
Venture capital =k (28.1) 479
Semiconductor distribution F 3825 8 154.5 161.5
Consumer electronic product and HEEETERMNM
brand omni-channel business MR REER (20.4) 4.7)
Others HAh (10.1) (10.1)
69.9 160.3
Depreciation and amortisation oTEE R R
Corporate NS - -
Venture capital A% (1.1) (0.9)
Semiconductor distribution F B Y (2.2) 2.1
Consumer electronic product and HEEETERR
brand omni-channel business mEERBHES (0.5) (0.4)
Others Hh (0.5) (0.2)
Total depreciation and amortisation mEREEEE (4.3) (3.6)
Profit before interest and tax e M) B, K2 A5 T8 A1 s ) 62.1 167.8
Interest expenses FEHE (6.5) 4.7)
Bank interest income AT R B UA - 0.6
Profit before tax F A5 B A 55.6 163.7
Income tax i8R (0.4) 0.8)
Profit for the year F W@ F 55.2 162.9
Profit for the year attributable to: ATATEIEFREF
Owners of the Company ZA/NEIE Z=N 57.3 163.3
Non-controlling interests AR = (2.1) (0.4)
55.2 162.9

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, Sino-US trade frictions intensified significantly.
The wrestling between the world’s two major economies and the rise in
geopolitical risks are creating uncertainties in the outlook for global trade.
The global economic outlook is also dragged down by factors such as slowing
investment, rising consumer prices and declining business confidence which
even emerging economies in Southeast Asia are no exception. The World Bank
had earlier predicted that the growth momentum of emerging markets and
developing economies also showed signs of slowing down. It is expected that
its growth will stagnate at 4.2% this year, and global economic growth will fall
to 2.9% in 2019. With the recent pressure from financial markets and rising
trade tensions, the economic downside risks have become more apparent.

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue by segment was
HK$1,674.9 million (2018: HK$1,734.4 million), decreased by 3.4%. Among
which semiconductor distribution business recorded a revenue of HK$1,602.4
million (2018: HK$1,592.1 million), consumer electronic product and brand
omni-channel business recorded a revenue of HK$88.5 million (2018: HK$66.9
million), venture capital business recorded a loss of HK$23.9 million (2018:
profit of HK$72.3 million) and internet social media business recorded a
revenue of HK$7.9 million (2018: HK$3.1 million).

Semiconductor Distribution Business

According to the preliminary research by Gartner, an international research and
advisory firm, global semiconductor revenue is expected to reach US$476.7
billion in 2018, an increase of 13.4% from US$420.4 billion in 2017. Memory
accounted for 34.8% of total semiconductor revenue, up from 31% in 2017.
However, Gartner pointed out that as time goes by and the technical difficulty
increases, this growth will gradually slow down, and the intelligent upgrade of
mobile phones will make it occupy 20% of the semiconductor market. From
the shipment scale of 1.5 billion units per year, its future growth rate will not be
too obvious. It is expected that by 2020, the growth rate of smartphones will
still be at a low level.

During the year under review, the semiconductor distribution business
recorded a turnover of HK$1,602.4 million (2018: HK$1,592.1 million).
Singapore is still a major market for the Group, contributing approximately
HK$1,270.0 million, followed by Hong Kong with a turnover of approximately
HK$332.4 million. The main products sold to the Singapore market are memory
chips and thin film transistor liquid crystal displays, which are widely used in
smartphones and LCD televisions. As Singapore’s economy is improving, the
semiconductor distribution business also maintained steady growth.

BEENWN DM

E3 301

CIESFEA - PEESERARME - £ RMAKLERE
ZREWAN ARG BURRBRTITR  BREHRES
RIS HRTHAAREER - REEBEA R FX B RER
&OHBERLER BRELTRIFZHERME
R EREGCHALSERTHENBERLS - HRR
TR ATFER H B S MR LRI R BT
ERETR A 5FEERBEREL2%KF
M-T-NFRREBEERTBEE29% - BEET
HRASHTSBNAREZERRETE @ KK
TTRBREMR AR -

EEFA  AEEHFEEELR1,674,900,000
JL (= — )\ 1 1,734,400,000387C) » Nf#3.4% °
HAp 858 H 2 158015 & %58 1,602,400,000 % 7T
(ZZ— \4F :1,592,100,000/87T) ' HEHREFE
on Ko hE 2 R B E TS8R 1S & 5 % 4 88,500,000 %8 7T
(—Z— \£ : 66,900,000/87T) * BIIRERRSER
/23,900,000 T (ZF — \F : &7F72,300,000%
T0) N BB A4 2 AR S FE TS 6115 4 ¥ 58 7,900,0008
JL(ZZ—/)\4 : 3,100,000/ 7T) °

WIBROHER

S 9T BE R P LS Gartner W) S A RER - —
T \FRREEELWIBTER4L767EET
B-E—+HFH4204BETEM13.4% - :BIEEE(L
BB EIN348% SR T —tFMW31% 8
Gartnerf5H - BEE BRI M ER MM #ENRS
EREREESNE EPFENERCAR FE
FEEEENIE LB 2ROE - HEFIsESNHE
BIERE - HRAEEE T & KHE - BEE 2020
Fo B FHAERNEENEEATE -

EREF A - 885 SH 15 8E15 & 5558 1,602,400,000
B (ZZ— A\ :1,592,100,000 7T) © E A ¥ /0
WA RALEEEMS - EBL41,270,000,000 87T
HRRB BB L EFEL A332,400,00087C © 84
FNEMEMNEZERAEZEANTEFTEER
mEANTHECH NEESEERGEE RS 6B
BN EERLY - FEESHEEBLBRIEET
BE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB &R DA

During the year under review, the joint venture of the Group, AVP Electronics
Limited and its subsidiaries (“AVPEL Group”), continued to record satisfactory
results. Its turnover, though not being consolidated into the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, recorded 15.2% increase to HK$24,676
million (2018: HK$21,420 million). The main customers of AVPEL Group are
China’s major mobile phone manufacturers and mobile phone component
suppliers. Although the Chinese mobile phone market has undergone large-
scale integration during the year under review, the number of mobile phone
operators and the scale of the entire industry has been reduced. The increase
was mainly attributable to the relatively stable orders for the distribution of
Samsung Electronics including (i) CMOS image sensors (i) multi-layer packaged
chips, and (iii) ARM processors.

IDC, the international market research organization, announced the
global smartphone shipments report. In 2018, global smartphone sales fell
4.1%, with a total shipment of 1.4 billion units. As the challenging market
environment continues into 2019, the overall sales of the smartphone market
will be affected this year.

Consumer Electronic Product and Brand Omni-Channel
Business

The Group follows the megatrend of online and offline omni-channel
development of the world’s leading brands and refines the “Consumer
Electronic Product Business” into “Consumer Electronic Product and Brand
Omni-Channel Business”. The brand provides online and offline omni-channel
service. During the year under review, the omni-channel business of consumer
electronic products and brands, which was joined by a new team from a
number of countries in Southeast Asia, recorded a turnover of HK$88.5 million
(2018: HK$66.9 million).

The consumer electronic product and brand omni-channel business was
started in 2008 under the subsidiary of Signeo Design International Limited
("Signeo Design”). In addition to the original three major businesses namely
brand management, brand licensing and product procurement, it also actively
develops the operation services for the Southeast Asia markets to stay in-line
with the needs of brand customers.

E-commerce has developed rapidly in recent years. During the year under
review, the Group has integrated the original Signeo Design and its team
to meet the needs of customers, and has actively deployed e-commerce
teams and commissioners who understand local culture in Southeast Asia
markets such as Indonesia, Vietnam, Taiwan and Singapore. With the strong
procurement plan and perfect sales and distribution network of the past in the
Asia-Pacific region, Signeo Design has further provided brand-name services for
the local market, and formally established the brand omni-channel business,
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, E-GoGo Limited (“E-GoGo").
"E-GoGo" is responsible for the overall operation and the original Signeo
Design team to provide one-stop business solutions for online and offline omni-
channel brand management for business customers. It involves brand online
and offline marketing strategies and consultancy, official malls or online store
operations for various online platforms, digital marketing services, IT solutions,
customer service, warehousing and distribution, and even offline smart stores.
The Group is committed to technology development and solution providers for
leading brands of e-commerce business partners in Southeast Asia, which are
retailers, brands and manufacturers.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
12 Annual Report 2019 3
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In terms of brand management, the Group is currently carrying a wide range
of products, including traditional and durable household white goods, personal
gadgets, high-tech products and lifestyle goods with brands coming from
home and abroad. In terms of brand licensing, the Group has secured the
brand licensing for Akai, Nakamichi, Philips and other brands. In addition to
its rapidly growing market share in the consumer electronics industry, these
world-renowned brands have started using E-GoGo’s e-commerce service.
On behalf of the operation services, we will actively expand the market
opportunities of the brands in the Southeast Asia markets, and combine the
online and offline marketing wisdom and creativity of the Signeo Design and
E-GoGo teams to collaborate with our brands to develop online and offline
marketing strategies for the Southeast Asia markets. In addition, we can
get more comprehensive and appropriate market analysis, channel coverage
recommendations and assessments, and even adjust the marketing strategy
more quickly and flexibly in response to feedback from channel sales.

INTERNET SOCIAL MEDIA BUSINESS

During the year under review, revenue from 830 Media Limited (“830 Media")
was HK$7.9 million (2018: HK$3.1 million), which was contributed from 830
Lab Limited (“830 Lab") and Whizoo Media Limited (“Whizoo Media").

830 Lab is a creative content incubator that helps media entrepreneurs or
content creators enter the digital media business. The services provided by the
830 Lab mainly include management training, technical support, production
support, big data analysis and digital marketing tools. 830 Media, which
focuses on nurturing creative talent, is dedicated to discovering creative talents
and teams that publish short films via social media through its creative media
incubator, 830 Lab. Whizoo Media is an internet social media company that
specializes in video production of life-related hot topics and publishes original
creative video content on major social media platforms including Facebook,
YouTube, Instagram, Line, Wechat and others platforms to attract young
consumer groups becoming loyal fans of these original content. During the
year under review, it also attracted cooperation between international and
local famous brands such as Coca-Cola, Facebook, HSBC, Fortress and 7-11
with Whizoo Media to develop different levels of one-stop creative content
solutions. For example, in June 2018, Whizoo Media participated at street
video project “WHIZers Summer Fighting” in the “Coca-Cola” Iced Tetris
game (Coca-Cola’s promotion at the time) in Causeway Bay. In January 2019,
Whizoo Media undertook the sticker fever brought by various social media
and launched “Coca-Cola 10 New Year's Stickers” video and other creative
content as its continuous new attempts. Benefiting from the high content of
video content and demographic data, Whizoo Media has attracted more than
250,000 fans on Facebook, proving its high quality original creative content
appealing to the internet audience. In view of the operational strategy of
Whizoo Media, 830 Media also launched the Facebook page “He She Kids” for
parents, and invested in an associate, OneShot Concept Limited, which owns
the “ % OT” brand, for a more diversified development strategy.
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With the continuous advancement of technologies such as internet
upgrades and artificial intelligence, the new media field has also undergone
unprecedented changes. Among them, the high-quality original creative video
has also achieved rapid development and has become one of the main online
entertainments. To promote effective communication between social media
and digital content marketing, the Group leverages its existing resources to
manage its new internet social media business through space creation and
creative channels, in order to thrive in the internet world.

VENTURE CAPITAL BUSINESS

During the year under review, the turnover for venture capital business was
recorded a loss of HK$23.9 million (2018: profit of HK$72.3 million) that is
mainly for the fair value losses on equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss, fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, interest income on convertible bonds and listed bond investments, and
dividend income from listed investments in the current year. As of 31 March
2019, various funds, convertible bonds, listed and unlisted equity investments,
listed bond investments and key management insurance contracts were held
at fair market value of HK$140.8 million (31 March 2018: HK$99.3 million) by
the Group. During the year under review, the venture capital business of the
Group recorded a fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of HK$28.5 million (2018: fair value loss on equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss of HK$58.6 million).

The venture capital business has always brought considerable income to the
Group. The ultimate objective for investments in venture capital business is to
obtain capital gains on investee’s equity listing or, in some circumstances, prior
to listing. It also includes investments in real estate, managed funds, convertible
bonds and listed bonds.

At 31 March 2019, the Group owned small strategic investments in Mad
Runway Holdings Limited, Luxury Choice Investments Limited and Urban City
Joint Stock Company. Mad Runway Holdings Limited is a member of the ELLE
family, which is dedicated to creating the most authoritative one-stop fashion
shopping platform, while Luxury Choice Investments Limited is one of the
world’s leading fast-growing custom watch brands and Urban City Joint Stock
Company is an e-commerce company in Vietnam.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECT

Market research company IDC released the “Global Mobile Phone Quarterly
Tracking Report” at the beginning of the year, predicting that the smartphone
market will face a more severe situation in 2019. The report shows that this
year will be another year of negative growth in global smartphone shipments,
and it is also shrinking for the third consecutive year. It is estimated that the
number of smartphones delivered in 2019 will be 1.39 billion units, a decrease
of 0.7% from 2018. The reason for the continuous decline in smartphone
shipments is mainly due to some political factors and the overall improvement
in the quality of smartphone products, resulting in much longer consumer
change cycles. However, even if the overall market is sluggish, 5G is seen to
be the next wave of change. With the advent of the 5G era, operators and
domestic and foreign mobile phone manufacturers all want to take the lead.
We believe this trend will be beneficial to drive demand in the semiconductor
industry chain in China and around the world. Looking ahead, in addition to
the Chinese market, the Group will invest more resources in Singapore, India
and other Asia Pacific markets to expand its market share and strive to maintain
its leading position in the semiconductor distribution business.

According to Frost & Sullivan’s data, the compound annual growth rate
("CAGR") of the Southeast Asia e-commerce market will reach 29.2% between
2017 and 2021, among which the Indonesian e-commerce market, which is
expected have the fastest growth in number of smartphone users, will have a
CAGR of 57.7% in the next five years. In recent years, Southeast Asia countries
have greatly improved their network infrastructure. The penetration rate of
mobile internet has continued to rise. Consumers tend to be mobile-centric.
Currently, 70% of e-commerce traffic comes from mobile terminals. The online
and offline multi-channel shopping experience is infiltrating into the lives of local
people. At the same time, people with high spending power pursue a higher
quality of life, and how to seize the eyes of consumers has become the key
to success. As a distributor with extensive experience in the field of consumer
electronic, the Group actively embraces the demand driven by the internet.
During the year under review, the Group has further promoted the business
scope of e-commerce through the brand omni-channel business partners, and
cooperated with PT Tokopedia, one of Indonesia’s largest e-commerce platforms,
and Taiwanese e-commerce platform Shopee to provide brand customers with
online and offline omni-channel one-stop retail generation services for retail
consumers. The development of E-GoGo will form a strong partnership with
the distribution network that the Group has accumulated over the past years
to develop a wider range of revenue sources by providing more diversified and
comprehensive solutions and services to brand owners.

In the era of internet social media, upon the strong appeal of original content
to both audiences and advertisers, the Group has actively invested in the
development of new internet media businesses to diversify new media
resources, condense creative talents, and capture the business opportunities
brought by the booming content marketing market. The Group has also
successfully formed an internet new media ecosystem around the consumer
life level by identifying more investment incubations or strategic partnerships
with other new media teams, and is actively playing the platform synergy of
830 Media and 830 Lab. The Group is confident in the new media business of
the internet. It is expected that this business will bring more positive internet
original creative content to the Hong Kong audience and lead the Hong Kong
internet creative industry to a new page.

The Group will continue to leverage its leading industry position, good
reputation and competitive advantage to adopt a proactive and prudent
development strategy to achieve sustainable growth and bring satisfactory
returns to shareholders.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The total debt position and the gearing ratio as at 31 March 2019 are shown
as follows:

uuui’)ﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁﬂlﬁﬁ

“E-NF=A=1T-RZEBRBENRLER
ﬁzlii%ﬁtlziﬁu"r :

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\E

HK$'million HK$ million

ER- ¥ BEATT

Cash and cash equivalents RekERBEER 106.0 2339
Equity investments at fair value through FRBEREATEEIEZRARE

profit or loss - 99.3

Financial assets at fair value through FFARBEESREREATEER

profit or loss included in current assets VIR R EE 117.6 -

223.6 333.2

Borrowings and finance lease payables BRI BN & HE IR 76.5 136.6

Total equity AT 1,115.6 1,086.7

Total debt to total equity BB ERREEREE IR 7% 13%

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents (i.e., cash
and bank balances and deposits with other financial institution) of HK$106.0
million (31 March 2018: HK$233.9 million), while the Group’s financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss included in current assets amounted to
HK$117.6 million (31 March 2018: equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss amounted to HK$99.3 million). The equity investments and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss included a balanced mix of
fixed income, equity and alternative investments and such amount represented
the cash reserves held for the Group’s medium to long term business
development and would form an integral part of the Group’s treasury.

The total debt to total equity ratio as at 31 March 2019 was 7% (31 March
2018: 13%), while the Group’s total equity as at 31 March 2019 was
HK$1,115.6 million (31 March 2018: HK$1,086.7 million), with the total
balances of cash and cash equivalents and equity investments and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as at 31 March 2019 of HK$223.6
million (31 March 2018: HK$333.2 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The working capital position of the Group remains healthy. As at 31 March
2019, the liquidity ratio was 215% (2018: 195%).

BEENWN DM

AREEZEEESRRANMABRE R —hhFE=
A=+—H Ra&EetEAE215% (ZE—N\F:
195%) °

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HKS$’million HK$ million

ER- Y BEETT

Current assets MBEE 397.4 584.1
Current liabilities mBEE (184.6) (298.9)
Net current assets MEEEFE 212.8 285.2
Current assets to current liabilities MBEERRSEBE LR 215% 195%

Management is confident that the Group follows a prudent policy in managing
its treasury position, and maintains a high level of liquidity to ensure that
the Group is well placed to take advantage of growth opportunities for the
business.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group recorded financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately HK$140.8 million (31 March 2018: equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$99.3
million and available-for-sale investments of approximately HK$22.4 million).
For a detailed breakdown of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
please refer to note 19 in consolidated statement of financial position. For the
performance during the year and future prospects of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, please refer to the section “Business Review and
Prospects — Venture Capital Business” on page 14 of this annual report.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group employed a total of approximately 205 (31
March 2018: approximately 187) full-time employees. The Group recruits and
promotes individuals based on merit and their development potentials for
the positions offered. Remuneration package is determined with reference to
their performance and the prevailing salary levels in the market. In addition,
the Group operates share option schemes for eligible employees to provide
incentive to the participants for their contribution and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of the Group. Share options and discretionary bonuses
are granted based on the Group’s and individual’s performances.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. So Yuk Kwan (“Dr. So"”), aged 69, is the founder, Chairman, Chief
Executive Offer and Executive Director of the Company. Dr. So is the father
of Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng and Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny, all being Executive
Directors of the Company. In the early 1980's, he founded AV Concept Limited.
Dr. So is primarily responsible for overall business strategies and business
development to the Company. Dr. So has over 43 years of experience in the
electronics industry. Under his leadership, AV Concept achieved remarkable
results in the sales and marketing of semiconductors contributing to the
appointment by Samsung Electronics as its distributor since 1982. In 1989, AV
Concept Singapore Pte. Ltd. was established to develop its electronic business
in Singapore, South-east Asia countries and subsequently expanded to the
market in the People’s Republic of China through vertical integration in early
90’. In April 1996, AV Concept Holdings Limited listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group continuously received
numerous awards, including Samsung Electronics’s “Best Performance Award”
in recognition of the excellent sales and marketing performance as well as
contribution to cultivate strong customers relationship in the semiconductors
market.

Dr. So holds an honorary degree, Doctor of Philosophy in Business
Administration from the International American University and a Master Degree
in Business Administration from the University of East Asia (now known as
University of Macau) and he is also a Fellow Member of the British Institute of
Management. Presently, he is the Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee
of the Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association Limited (“HKEIA") and
the Chairman of Education Fund of HKEIA. Dr. So is also the Vice President of
The Hong Kong Semiconductor Industry Council. Further, Dr. So is a Fellow
Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and the Honorary Chairman
of Advisory Committee (Industry) of Cooperative Education Centre of City
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng (“Mr. Kevin So"), aged 33, is the Chief Operation
Officer and Executive Director of the Company responsible for operation of
the Group and E-GoGo Limited. Mr. Kevin So joined the Group in 2011 and
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in November 2015.
Mr. Kevin So obtained a Bachelor of Science degree (major in Management)
from Bentley College in United States of America in May 2008 and a Master
of Business Administration degree from Bentley University in United States
of America in February 2010. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kevin So had
pursued a career in corporate finance in an international financial institution.
Mr. Kevin So is the son of Dr. So, Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and an
Executive Director of the Company and the brother of Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny,
an Executive Director of the Company.
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Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny (“Mr. Sunny So"”), aged 31, is the Executive Director
of the Company, chief executive officer of 830 Lab Limited and Whizoo Media
Limited, indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, which are
principally engaged in internet social media business. Mr. Sunny So joined the
Group in 2011 and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in
November 2015. Mr. Sunny So obtained a Bachelor of Science degree (major
in Graphic Design) from Northeastern University in United States of America
in January 2011. Mr. Sunny So is the son of Dr. So, Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and an Executive Director of the Company and the brother of Mr. Kevin
So, an Executive Director of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Lui Ming Wah (“Dr. Lui"), sBs, JP, aged 81, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 1996. Dr. Lui is an established
industrialist. Dr. Lui was a member of the Legislative Council of the HKSAR
between 1998 — 2008 and also a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. He is now an Honorary Chairman of The Chinese
Manufacturers Association of Hong Kong, The HKEIA and The Hong Kong
Shandong Chamber of Commerce. In addition, he is also an Advisor of the
Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre. Dr. Lui obtained a Master Degree
in Applied Science from the University of New South Wales in Australia and a
Doctorate in Engineering from the University of Saskatchewan in Canada. He is
currently the Managing Director of Keystone Electronics Co. Ltd..

Mr. Charles Edward Chapman (“Mr. Chapman”), aged 70, has been
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 2000. He
was Executive Director of the HKEIA and Managing Director of the HKEIA's
subsidiary publishing company, the Hong Kong Electronics Promotions Ltd.
from May 1988 to June 2007 when he retired. Currently, Mr. Chapman is
an Independent Non-executive Director of Mobicon Group Limited and he is
also a Senior Industry Consultant for a number of overseas-based trade fair
organisers. Prior to joining the HKEIA, Mr. Chapman worked for 12 years as
Economics Editor at the Hong Kong Trade Development Council and for 8 years
as Business Editor in a local English-language newspaper.

Mr. Wong Ka Kit (“Mr. Wong"), aged 42, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since September 2004. Mr. Wong is the
Senior Vice President, Mergers and Acquisitions of a Hong Kong listed property
company. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting, Finance and
Economics from the University of Wisconsin Madison.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Choi Joon Yun (“Mr. Choi"), aged 55, was appointed as the President
and Chief Executive Officer of AV Concept Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company from 2006 — 2011. Mr. Choi currently is the President and Chief
Executive Officer of AVP Electronics Limited, a joint venture of the Group since
January 2012. Mr. Choi has over 30 years of experience in Sales and Marketing.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Choi was the Sales and Marketing Director of
Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. (Shanghai), and the Sales and Marketing Senior
Manager of Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. (Hong Kong and Shenzhen). He had
also been working for Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. (Semiconductor Business)
as Sales and Marketing Manager for Asian market.

Mr. Chan Chi Hang (“Mr. Chan"), aged 42, was appointed as the Company
Secretary and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company since August 2015.
Mr. Chan has extensive experience in accounting and auditing, and is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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The Directors of the Company present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Group consist of the marketing and distribution of electronic
components, the design, development and sale of electronic products and
brand omni-channel business, venture capital investment, and internet social
media business.

Further discussion and analysis of business review as required by Schedule
5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the Chairman’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 6 to 17
of this annual report. The above discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The management of the Company, as assisted by the audit committee of the
Company, oversees the Group’s internal control and risk management system,
and conducts periodic reviews of such system to ensure good corporate
governance practice. The supervision process and outcome of the latest review
is set out in more detail in the section headed “Internal Control” in corporate
governance report in this annual report. The following is a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group. The management of the
Company meets periodically to discuss these risks, and where appropriate, will
monitor the situation closely and adopt any necessary risk mitigation measures.

Industry risk

The sale and distribution of electronic components and design, development
and sales of electronic products and brand omni-channel business are
sensitive to technology change. The industry is also subject to rapidly changing
market trends and intense competition amongst different players. This may
materially and adversely affect the Group’s business performance. To maintain
competitiveness, the management of the Company will meet regularly to
update the technology change and the industry environment.

Economy risk

The performance of the Group is affected by the overall economy growth,
especially in the electronic components market. If the economy slows down, it
is highly likely that the demand for electronic components may be reduced. Any
continued economic slowdown or recession may result in a decrease in sales,
and may lead to a material adverse effect on the Group’s business and results
of operations.
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Financial risk

Credit risk

To minimise credit risk, the Group has monitoring procedures to ensure
there is follow-up action to recover overdue debts. The Group also reviews
the recoverable amount of trade receivables by the simplified approach for
impairment at the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Board therefore
considers that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents which
it deems adequate to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of cash flow fluctuations.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to risk of changes in market interest rates related
primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings with floating interest
rates. It does not currently has any interest rate hedging policy, but closely
monitors its exposure to interest rate risk due to changes in market rates and
will consider hedging changes should the need arise.

Market price risk

The Group is exposed to the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of
individual securities. The management of the Company monitors the changes
of securities prices and may change the investment portfolio held if needed.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the environment and
communities in which it engages. The Group strives to minimise its impact on
the environment by reducing its use of electricity and water and encouraging
recycle of office supplies and other materials. The Group has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations regarding environmental protection, health and
safety, workplace conditions and employment.

Compliance with the laws and regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risks of non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations. During the year under review, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group. There was no material breach or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group during
the year under review.
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Relationship with employees, clients, suppliers and other
stakeholders

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends on the
support from its key stakeholders, including employees, clients, suppliers,
banks, regulators and shareholders. During the year under review, there
were no material and significant disputes between the Group and its key
stakeholders. The Group will continue to ensure effective communication and
maintain good relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2019 and the Group’s financial
position at that date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 81 to 211 of this annual report.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02
(2018: HK$0.02) per share for the year ended 31 March 2019.

The proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on Wednesday, 28 August 2019, will be payable on
Thursday, 19 September 2019 to shareholders whose names appear on the
registrar of members of the Company on Thursday, 5 September 2019. Based
on 908,663,302 shares in issue as of the date of this report, the total dividend
will amount to approximately HK$18.2 million.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled on Wednesday,
28 August 2019. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Friday, 23 August 2019 to Wednesday, 28 August 2019, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting,
all transfers of shares, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 22 August 2019.

In order to determine the list of shareholders who are entitled to receive the
proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company’s
register of members will be closed from Wednesday, 4 September 2019 to
Thursday, 5 September 2019, both days inclusive. Shareholders are reminded
that in order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at the above
address for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 3 September
2019.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share capital and share options are set out in notes 31
and 32 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association (the "Articles of Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company repurchased and
cancelled a total of 14,486,000 ordinary shares of the Company at an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$7,282,640 on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), and the details of the
repurchases are as follows:

iR 25 K% B8 As R
AR BIAR R AR 2 5516 - DRI E R ARG BT IS 3R
RMFE31 K32

BLRBEERE

ARFZEBERAA ((ERMAR)) AL RS X
BRERSIARABERERLARERFIRE
BEHRG 2 BEBEREH -

BE HENEEAQAT LHESF

BE-_Z—NAF=ZA=Z=+—"HBLEFE A2aRN
EBBMAZSARAR ([BFT]) LEREL
7,282,640 7 JTHE [E] & 5T 45 & $£ 14,486,000 fR A A 7]
L@k BBEIGHENT

Number of
ordinary
shares Price per ordinary share Aggregate
Date of repurchase repurchased Highest Lowest consideration
[=3:-1c1 BREBRER
BB E B8 ZERYE RS BIE BIE
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
&) &) &)
25 April 2018 3,708,000 0.500 0.490 1,828,640
“E-N\FMA-—+hHAH
26 April 2018 3,500,000 0.520 0.520 1,820,000
—E-N\FMA=+XA
27 April 2018 7,278,000 0.500 0.495 3,634,000
—E-N\FMA=++AH
14,486,000 7,282,640

Save of the disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company
during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2019, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated
in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to approximately HK$439,159,000. The share premium of the Company is
available for distribution or paying dividends to the shareholders provided
that immediately following the distribution or the payment of dividends, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements, is set out below.
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RESULTS E4
Year ended 31 March
HE-A=t+-ALEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-hE —E-N\F ZE—+F ZE-1F —E-1fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx T T FEL FEL
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BFELEER
REVENUE Iz 1,698.796 1,662,878 1342,399 1,037,023 1,957,690
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBEIER/ (B58) 55,607 163,690 276,396 757 (49,839)
Income tax FEE (414) (801) (274) 1,389 (564)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ERERN/ (F8) 55,193 162,889 276,122 2,146 (50,403)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRLEEEE
Loss for the year from RESIRCE 37
a discontinued operation FRER - - - - (14,538)
55,193 162,889 276,122 2,146 (64,941)
Attributable to: ATATELR:
Owners of the Company AREHEEA 57,278 163,267 276,122 2,147 (94,287)
Non-controlling interests RS (2,085) (378) - %) 29,346
55,193 162,889 276,122 2,146 (64,941)
Assets and liabilities EERAEE
As at 31 March
R=A=1+-H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-hE ZE-N\F ZE—+F ZE-1F “E-nfF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx T T FET FEL
TOTAL ASSETS EE#E 1,317,018 1,405,799 1,280,877 884,514 1,140,104
TOTAL LIABILITIES EBERE (201,425) (319,073) (202,583) (226,952) (485,938)
1,115,503 1,086,726 1,078,294 657,562 654,166
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. So Yuk Kwan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng (Chief Operation Officer)

Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sBs, Jp

Mr. Charles Edward Chapman

Mr. Wong Ka Kit

The Company has received annual written confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Lui Ming Wah (“Dr. Lui"),
SBS, JP, Mr. Charles Edward Chapman and Mr. Wong Ka Kit, confirming their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), and considers the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the Group as at the date of
this annual report are set out on pages 18 to 21 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the Directors is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, and approved by the board of Directors (the “Board”), as
authorised by shareholders in the annual general meeting of the Company,
having regard to their skills, knowledge and involvement in the Company’s
affairs. No Directors are involved in deciding their own remuneration.

We offer competitive remuneration package, including medical and retirement
benefits, to eligible employees. Apart from basic salary, executive Directors
and employees are eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking into
account factors such as market conditions as well as corporate and individual’s
performance during the year.

In order to attract, retain and motivate the eligible employees, including the
Directors, the Company and a subsidiary have adopted share option schemes.
The schemes enable the eligible persons to obtain an ownership interest in the
Company and that subsidiary and thus will motivate them to optimise their
continuing contributions to the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director nor a connected entity of Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which any of the Company’s
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “"SFO™)), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) contained in the
Listing Rules, are as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company
(a) Interests in shares of the Company

Directors’ Report
EEEWME

EERNRG  THAEHzER

RERSHMAEERENFASER AR B EM KB
AR ERHAREXBERBEAZR S ~ &8
FANTERREERAFEN R -

EEREETHRAERRO RAEERD
Z R

RZE-NF=ZA=+—H ARAEFRESTT
BABRARRREBEEZR (EZRBFRHER
XV ER) 2 Bt R ARRE A {0 o BB A R R IR R
FRHBIRPIE 352 F 2 MERTREZERMATR
oD HRBELETRAIMBELETETAESE
TEFZZGNBREST(BETA ) BARTAE
NE| R F R T

RARARBDZHER
@) RERARGZHER

Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Nature of interest shares of the interest in the
Name of Director and chief executive and capacity Company issued shares
ERITROESR
EZSRESTHRABHE ERMtERSH AR EERYE BARSH
Dr. So Corporate interest 314,691,026
BIE L NAER
Beneficial owner 22,058,400 37.06%
EmBEEA (Note 1)
(P3E1)
Dr. Lui, SBS, JP Beneficial owner 2,620,000 0.29%
BT - sBS  AT4T BEREBA (Note 2)
Interest of spouse (BFsE2)
fe 82 # s

Notes:

1. These shares include (i) 217,923,160 shares held by B.K.S. Company Limited
(“BKS"); (i) 96,767,866 shares held by Jade Concept Limited (“Jade Concept”);
and (jii) 22,058,400 shares held by Dr. So as beneficial owner. Dr. So is deemed
to be interested in 314,691,026 shares by virtue of his interests in BKS and Jade
Concept, the particulars are more fully described in the section headed “Interests
of Substantial Shareholders” below.

2. This represents the total number of shares held by the spouse of Dr. Lui, SBS,
JP. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. Lui, SBS, JP is deemed to be interested in 2,620,000
shares of the Company.

1. ZE %15 B 4E () B B.K.S. Company Limited ([BKS ) 545
2.217,923,160 & & 15 : (ii) 7 Jade Concept Limited ([ Jade
Concept])) #7652 96,767,866 IR (7 : F (i) &R E + (£
AESHEEA)IFHE 222,058,400 ARD o RIKERE 7
BKS & Jade Concept 2 ## 2 + 1 4% &1 314,691,026 i%
BipPEEER  BEFER T EERR 2w —
B — 2Rl -

2. ZERMIERATEL  sBs ATHEZRBIFE ZKRDE
o REBHFRAEKD - 28I - B AFMHLHR A
72,620,000 B A A 7] IR 15 R 5 A S
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(b) Interests in underlying shares of associated corporations of the (b) RELQTEBEBEBRG ZER
Company
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of ordinary shares of interest in
Name of Director Nature of interest associated associated associated
and chief executive and capacity corporations corporations corporations
HEEE HEEEER
ESRBRTRABREA ERHERSH HEEE A EERYA BRESE
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny Beneficial owner 830 Lab Limited (830 Lab") 220,000 (Note) 30.98%
HELRE ERBEBA (FizE)
Note: Bt 5

These underlying shares in 830 Lab, a subsidiary of the Company, represent interest in
the share options granted to Mr. Sunny So pursuant to the share option scheme adopted
by 830 Lab.

830 Lab (AR B —MMEAR) 22 ZHE RN ERE
830 Lab FTHRAN 2 BB IAERT 815 T8 4255 4 2 B i

5 o
m

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the Company and EERNARRRANR—HWEBARBEREZ
a subsidiary of the Company are separately disclosed in note 32 to the Em SR ERE M RRM 32 EE -

consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had registered any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” and in the share option schemes
disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during
the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

30
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2019, the following substantial shareholders (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) had interests of 5% or more
in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO:
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FERRZ2HERS

RZEBE-NF=ZA=T—8 UTZFERE (XA
BAEERRSTHRABBRINRARRBR R HEER
EEHLHAERNIE 336 K2 REA T RIF 2 ERLM
PRECER 2 5% S IA EH#E2

Long position in the shares of the Company RAEQATRBZHERE
Approximate
percentage of
Number of interest in the
Name of shareholder Nature of capacity shares held issued shares
ERTROER
BRERE HH S E kB EE BABSL
BKS Beneficial owner 217,923,160 (Note 1) 23.98%
ERBEAA (BF&E1)
Jade Concept Beneficial owner 96,767,866 (Note 2) 10.65%
ERBAA (BF5E2)
KOH Kai Boo Beneficial owner 78,268,000 8.61%
HAR ERBAEA
Madam Yeung Kit Ling (“Madam Yeung") Interest of spouse 336,749,426 (Note 3) 37.06%
SRRzt ([Hat]) [k (BF5E3)
Notes: B EE -
1. BKS is beneficially owned by Dr. So. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. So is deemed to be 1. BKSHEIB T ERESR - REZHFRAER - &HE L

interested in 217,923,160 shares of the Company held by BKS.

2. Jade Concept is beneficially owned by Dr. So. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. So is deemed to
be interested in 96,767,866 shares of the Company held by Jade Concept.

3. As Madam Yeung is the spouse of Dr. So, by virtue of the SFO, she is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by BKS and Jade Concept in which Dr. So
has interest and 22,058,400 shares held by Dr. So.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the Company has not been
notified by any person or corporation (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company whose interests are set out above) having interests
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
notified to the Company pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or which are recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business are provided under note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements. None of the related party transactions as disclosed in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements is subject to the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements of the
Listing Rules.

WIR A BKS#5H 2 217,923,160 B AR A B A R A 1

ol

2. Jade Concept HER1E + B R < RIEZ H LAEKRD -
R 1E T 4R A7 Jade Concept# 5 2 96,767,866 % 2 A
BIRGD R EA R o

3. BNt AT ZEE  BURIEE S RS
AR A RS T B HE25 2 BKS M Jade Concept A2
RN FIRRD R B 35 2 22,058,400 AR AR 17 b 1 A 1

ol
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RARB RO REBROD P HEEREZ S LBAEF
I XV ERAE AR R RA R AIRIEE Z RS &
{5155 336 R 2 ME A T IR 17 2 B RO M AT RO &R < #E AR

FBEALRS
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company and a subsidiary of the Company operate share option schemes
(the “Schemes”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operation. Further
details of the Schemes are disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions amounting to
HK$20,000 (2018: HK$312,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 27% of the Group’s total sales for the year and
sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to approximately 7%.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers for the year accounted for
approximately 98% of the Group’s total purchases and purchases from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately 62%.

None of the Directors or any of their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules),
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in
the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) were considered to have an interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group, other than those businesses of which the Directors were
appointed as directors to represent the interests of the Company and/or the
Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total number of
issued shares were held by the public during the year ended 31 March 2019
and as at the date of this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existing during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year under review and as at the date of this report, an indemnity
provision was in force. The Company has arranged appropriate directors’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors during the year under review.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out on
pages 34 to 44 of this annual report.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.22 OF THE
LISTING RULES

As at 31 March 2019, the aggregate amount of financial assistance to, and
(where applicable) guarantee given for the loan facilities granted to, affiliated
companies of the Company, exceeds 8% under the assets ratio as defined
under Rule 14.07 (1) of the Listing Rules. In compliance with the requirement of
Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, the combined statement of financial position of
the affiliated companies (with attributable interest of the Group in the affiliated
companies) as at the latest applicable date is set out below:

Directors’ Report
EEEWME

TEES
RAGBEERBRIFR HREAFHREMER
F447 o

BELEHRAE13.22FEH KR

R_E—NF=ZA=1+—H8 AQRAHEBELRES
ZHBE R (EA) R EERERBERM 2 E
RZ BB EMRBNE 1407 IEMARAEZEEL
K78% - AFE LMAAE 132 2HRE - Wi
MEABH MBARZAMMBRAER (BIERE
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Group’s
Combined statement attributable
of financial position interest
O BRR R AEBEELER
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FAT
Non-current assets IRBEE 22,934 17,200
Current assets mBEE 5,316,315 3,987,236
Current liabilities mEAE (4,436,608) (3,327,456)
Non-current liabilities eI N=E (142) (106)
902,499 676,874
Share capital A% 7R 165,000 123,750
Reserves s 737,499 553,124
902,499 676,874

AUDITOR BB

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On Behalf of the Board

So Yuk Kwan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 June 2019
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Corporate Governance Report

The Group is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance
and enhance its transparency and corporate value. The Group believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework between the Board and the
shareholders so as to enhancing shareholders’ interest and value as a whole.
The Board continually reviews and improves its corporate governance practices
to ensure the Company keeps abreast of the expectation of shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”).

The purpose of this report is to provide Shareholders with information on the
major principles and corporate governance practices adopted by the Company.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has applied the
major principles with the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance and Corporate Governance Report (the “Corporate Governance
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
Further details of the Company’s corporate governance practices will be
described in the following sections.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board should assure responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company and its subsidiaries affairs.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the formulation of the
Group's business objectives and strategies. Matters reserved for the Board
are those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, finance and risk
management. The senior management is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group directed by leadership of the Executive Directors. To
this end, the senior management has to implement, manage and monitor the
business plans, internal controls and corporate governance practices developed
by the Board.
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Board Composition
The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.

As at 31 March 2019, the Board comprised three Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”). One of the INEDs has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers the INEDs to be
independent. Having the INEDs in the Board ensure that independent judgment
is exercised and that a proper balance of power is maintained for full and
effective control of the Group and its executive management. The Directors
believe that the existing Board composition reflects the Company’s respect
for high standards of business conduct commonly adopted by multinational
enterprises. The INEDs perform an important role in safeguarding the
Shareholders’ interests.

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board composition
(which include an assessment of the skills, knowledge and experience of the
existing Directors and suitable candidates) and for formulating procedures
for appointment of its own members and for nominating them for election
by the Shareholders on the first appointment and thereafter at regular
intervals through the retirement by rotation process pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Each of the INEDs has been appointed for specific term and has entered into
a service agreement with the Company for a term of one year, which shall
continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party giving the other
not less than three months’ notice in writing. All the Directors are subjected
to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company.

In accordance with article 112 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
each of Dr. So Yuk Kwan (“Dr. So”), Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng (“Mr. Kevin So"),
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny (“Mr. Sunny So”), Mr. Charles Edward Chapman (“Mr.
Chapman”) will retire from the office by rotation and are being eligible to
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
Mr. Chapman has served as an independent non-executive director for more
than 19 years. The Board has assessed the independence of Mr. Chapman
who has met the independence guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. He has given an annual confirmation concerning his independence to the
Company. The Board, therefore, considers him to be independent.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The
positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ") of the Company
are held by Dr. So.

Dr. So is primarily responsible for overall business strategies and business
development to the Company. Dr. So is the founder of the Group and has over
43 years of experience in the electronic industry.

The Board believes that vesting the roles of both the Chairman and the CEQO in
the same person can facilitate the execution of the Group’s business strategies
and boost effectiveness of its operation. Therefore, the Board considers that
the deviation from the code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code
is appropriate in such circumstance. In addition, under the supervision of the
Board which is comprised of three executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors, the Board is appropriately structured with balance of
power to provide sufficient checks to protect the interests of the Group and its
shareholders.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to, and overseeing the
functioning of the Board to ensure that the Board acts in the best interest of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Chairman determines
that the Board is provided with direction and sufficient consultation for the
Directors in effectively discharging their responsibilities for different aspects of
the business.

The CEO, supported by senior management, are responsible for
implementation of corporate goals, business strategies and policies resolved by
the Board from time to time. The CEO assumes full accountability to the Board
in respect of the Group’s operations and development.

Save as Dr. So, the Chairman and the CEQ, is the father of Mr. Kevin So, the
Chief Operation Officer, and Mr. Sunny So, there is no relationship among
members of the Board.
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Board Meetings

Board meetings are scheduled to be held at about quarterly interval. The
senior management of the Group from time to time reports to the Directors
information on the activities and development of the Group’s business. In
addition, the Directors have full access to information on the Group and
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.

The attendance record of regular four board meetings held during the year is
set out below:

Exeel

EXCERBEEANEFTRIT R -AEEZSH
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FRBOIZOREREFGSR 2 H B LHEEHTIWM
™

Attendance/ BEME

Name of Directors Number of meetings ZEZEHH BITRE
Executive Directors HITEE
Dr. So Yuk Kwan (Chairman and BEEL

Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 (FFFRTEAEE) 4/4
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng (Chief Operation Officer) 4/4  wEBELE (EEEH) 4/4
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny 44  BRELSEA 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors HUHHITEE
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sgs, Jp 4/4 EEREE L - s AFM+ 4/4
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 4/4  Charles Edward Chapman 5t 4 4/4
Mr. Wong Ka Kit 44 BEREFLAE 4/4
Board Committees EEZEE

As at the date of the report, there were four Board Committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Corporate Governance Committee in operation and each one of them
was established with specific terms of references to assist the Board discharging
its responsibilities and maintaining proper internal controls and to promote
good corporate governance as a whole.
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Audit Committee

As at 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sBs, Jp (the Chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Charles Edward Chapman and Mr. Wong Ka Kit.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include (i) to discuss with the
external auditor before the audit commence, the nature and scope of the
audit and confirm their independence and objectivity; (ii) to review the Group’s
financial information before submission to the Board; (iii) to review the Group's
financial reporting system and the effectiveness of the audit process with
internal control procedure; and (iv) to review external auditor’s management
letter and the relationship with the Group.

In accordance with the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Audit
Committee meets at least twice a year to review the interim results and the final
results of the Company.

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held. The Audit
Committee had reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 and the interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2018. The Audit Committee had also reviewed
and discussed with the management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

The attendance record of the Audit Committee meetings held during the year
is set out below.
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Name of Attendance/ BELEE
Audit Committee Members Number of meetings BRZZEEREME BITRE
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBs, Jp (Chairman) 22 EREELE s AT@LE(FE) 2/2
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 2/2  Charles Edward Chapman 5t 4 2/2
Mr. Wong Ka Kit 22 ERGERE 212
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Remuneration Committee

As at 31 March 2019, the Remuneration Committee consists of three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is chaired
by Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sBs, Jp and the other members include Mr. Charles
Edward Chapman and Mr. Wong Ka Kit. One Remuneration Committee
meeting was held during the year to consider the salary increment of the
Directors and all members had attended the meeting.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management and reviewing the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior management
by reference to the Company's performance and profitability as well as
remuneration benchmarks in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.
No Director or any of his associates shall be involved in deciding his own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee normally meets once a year and
at other times as required. The Remuneration Committee had reviewed the
Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2019.

The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee meeting held during
the year is set out below.
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Name of Attendance/ SEHEE
Remuneration Committee Members Number of meetings HMEZEEEREHE BITRE
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBs, Jp (Chairman) 171 BERIEEL > s ATw+ (F/E) 11
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 1/1  Charles Edward Chapman 7t 4 171
Mr. Wong Ka Kit 171 BEREEAE 11
Nomination Committee REZES

As at 31 March 2019, the Nomination Committee comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The members of the Nomination
Committee are Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sgs, Jp, Mr. Charles Edward Chapman and
Mr. Wong Ka Kit, all are the Independent Non-executive Directors. Dr. Lui Ming
Wah, sBs, JP is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include (i) review
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy; (i) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors; and (iv) make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and the CEO.
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The Nomination Committee meeting held at least once a year and additional
meeting may be held as required. During the year, the Nomination Committee
held a meeting and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board.

The attendance record of the Nomination Committee meeting held during the
year is set out below:
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Name of Attendance/ BEUHE
Nomination Committee Members Number of meetings REZEEREH R BITRE
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sBs, Jp (Chairman) 171 EREEL o ses ATFm+(FE) 11
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 1/1  Charles Edward Chapman %t 4 171
Mr. Wong Ka Kit 171 ERERAE 1”1
Corporate Governance Committee u—.%"““‘iéé

As at 31 March 2019, the Corporate Governance Committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors. The members of the Corporate
Governance Committee are Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sBs, Jp, Mr. Charles Edward
Chapman and Mr. Wong Ka Kit, all are the Independent Non-executive
Directors. Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sBs, Jp is the Chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee.

—NEFE=ZA=+—8 Gt¥EREEEH=
%?%YL?F%M‘T%%%EEX°ﬁé¥'§/u§ﬁaﬁﬁk/\%5
Eﬂ%%:ﬂ: SBS ' AF#i+ + Charles Edward Chapman ¢

RERGERE - HRBEIIENITES - o HER
:t SBS - AT#+ RBEEECEZEEER °

The Corporate Governance Committee is primarily responsible for developing > ¥#%E6% ?-\@ BEHERBTARARF ZEE
and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance B AR M &R FT%%A?EHﬂE AR AR ETA
and making recommendations to the Board and reviewing the Company’s Qﬁ%?ﬁ%% SPRIZIB o

compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.

The Corporate Governance Committee meeting held at least once a year. (EEARZECELEFRT—XNTH -FRN FE
During the year, the Corporate Governance Committee held a meeting and EB/RZBEERIT A BRI A R ET AR
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and ~ MEEERTE ZBER MK E R -

regulatory requirements.

The attendance record of the Corporate Governance Committee meeting held FRBFTZCEET AT E e # 2 HELEIRYID

during the year is set out below: K

Name of Attendance/ BEHE
Corporate Governance Committee Members Number of meetings ®XERZESHERSE BITRY
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sBs, Jp (Chairman) 171 BRRZEEL s AT@E (EE) 171
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 1/1  Charles Edward Chapman 5t 4 171
Mr. Wong Ka Kit 171 ERERAE il
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board reviews the Group’s internal control system from time to time
and will take any necessary and appropriate action to maintain an adequate
internal control system to safeguard Shareholders’ interests. An internal audit
function which is internally resourced and forms part of the Group’s permanent
establishment is in charge for overall review on the effectiveness of the internal
control system and will be discussed annually with the Audit Committee.

During the financial year under review, the internal audit function had arranged
to conduct reviews over the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system to provide reasonable assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency
of operations in achieving the established corporate objectives, safeguarding
Group's assets, providing reliable financial reporting, and complying with
applicable laws and regulations.

The Board has also reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff for the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programmes and budget. Both the Audit
Committee and the Board were satisfied that the internal control system of the
Group has been functioned effectively during the year and no material internal
control aspects of any significant problems were noted.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s independent auditor during
the year, is set out as follows:

TRERAME

BHET &
FR BN RIE A EAED 2 B &5 0
T

Services rendered Frie it AR 7% Fee paid/payable
e ENEA

HK$'000

FHET

Audit of financial statements BRI BWwE 1,850

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

With the assistance of the Finance Department which is under the supervision
of the Chief Financial Officer, the Directors ensure the preparation and
publication of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in a timely manner
in accordance with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and accounting
standards. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

A statement by the Company’s auditor about their reporting responsibilities
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 73 to 80 of this report.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company established a dedicated investor relations section in order
to provide timely information to the investors as well as Shareholders and
institutional investors. The Company also conducts a meeting with institutional
investors and analysts from time to time and to maintain updated information
opened to the public regarding recent development of the Company. Relevant
information of investor relations is available on the Company’s website
(http://www.avconcept.com/investor-relations).
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SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

The Company recognises the rights of Shareholders and their opinions are
valuable to the Company. The Shareholders are encouraged to participate in
general meetings or to appoint proxies or corporate representatives to attend
and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to attend the
meetings. The Shareholders are encouraged to raise their enquiries on the
operations, corporate governance, corporate strategy and further development
of the Company during the meeting by way of shareholders’ rights. The process
of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored and reviewed on a regular
basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to ensure that Shareholders’
needs are best served. The Board members, in particular, either the chairmen
or deputy chairmen of Board Committees or their delegates, appropriate
management executives and external auditor will attend annual general
meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company has established Shareholders Communication Policy in providing
a communication platform to the Shareholders of the Company with
information about the Company and enabling them to engage actively with
the Company and exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.
Effective and timely dissemination of information to Shareholders shall be
ensured at all times. Any question regarding this policy shall be directed to the
company secretary of the Company or the board of directors of the Company.
Appropriate arrangements for the annual general meeting shall be in place
to encourage Shareholders’ participation and all corporate communication
will be provided to Shareholders in plain language and in both English and
Chinese version to facilitate Shareholders’ understanding, including but not
limited to interim reports, annual reports, results announcements, notice
of general meeting, circulars, and associated explanatory documents, other
announcements and monthly return on movements in the Company’s securities
for each month and next day disclosure returns in relation to the Company,
which are available on the Company’s website (http://www.avconcept.com).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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INTRODUCTION, ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES

The Group believes sustainability is a key to achieve continuous success, and we
have developed sustainability strategy with aims to create sustainable values to
stakeholders, and to continue lower the Group’s impact on the environment.

The Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG")
Governance Structure

The Group has established the ESG Taskforce (the “Taskforce”). The Taskforce
comprises core members from different departments and is responsible
for collecting relevant information on our ESG aspects for preparing the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”). The
Taskforce reports to the Board, assists in identifying and evaluating the
Group’s ESG risks and the effectiveness of the internal control mechanisms.
The Taskforce also examines and evaluates our performances in different
aspects such as environment, health and safety, labour standards and product
responsibilities in the ESG aspects. The Board sets up a general direction for the
Group’s ESG strategies, ensuring the effectiveness in the control of ESG risks
and internal control mechanisms.

SCOPE OF REPORTING

Given that the Group is engaged in semiconductor distribution, consumer
electronic product and brand omni-channel, venture capital and internet social
media business, unless otherwise stated, the contents of the ESG Report are
concerned primarily with the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries
in Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the “HKSAR") during the year
under review. The ESG key performance indicator (“KPI") data is gathered and
included under the Group’s business activities driven by Hong Kong office,
retail store and warehouses. The Group will extend the scope of disclosures
when and where applicable. The KPIs are shown in this ESG Report as well as
supplemented by explanatory notes to establish benchmarks.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with all applicable provisions
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
"ESG Reporting Guide”) contained in Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

For the Group’s corporate governance practices, please refer to p.34 to p.44 for
the section “Corporate Governance Report” contained in this Annual Report.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and measures taken by
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We value our stakeholders and their feedback in regards to our businesses and
ESG aspects. To strengthen the sustainability approach and performance of
the Group, we put effort in maintaining a close communication with our key
stakeholders, including but not limited to investors, customers, employees,
suppliers and business partners, government and other regulatory authorities

and local community.

We take stakeholders’ expectations into consideration in formulating our
businesses and ESG strategies by utilising diversified engagement methods and
communication channels, shown as below.

Stakeholder Groups

Engagement Channels

RIR - 8 RERARSE

K ESHR

BAERFNELREHRMAERHRERE L REAR
FENREER -RTHREAKENTHERRT
EMRE HA—EBNEIEFHELTEIE
BEPEREETIRRNKRES TP REE HER
MEBAEEH BIMEGEEREREMTRE -

BMPEBERTXATRNZ T LETARBRE
B EHEEBIASIRE 8 REAREEE ER
EMNERE o

Possible Concerned Issues

B EAR SHERE A RERAE M B RE
Investors Financial reports, annual general meetings, Business strategies and financial performance,
corporate website, direct communication corporate governance, business sustainability
development
KEE BIBHRE REBFRG  Ralf@uh - B EBERBNMBRE XL EBARE
R BE

Customers Direct communication and emails, complaint Goods and services quality, timely service,

hotlines, exhibition customers security, privacy protection

=P HEBALEDN RFRE RE FmiREES RELE TR ZE - B
Ri&

Employees Appraisals, trainings, internal memorandum Rights and benefits, employee compensation,
training and development, work hours,
occupational health and safety

=31 FZ - Bl RERE S8R EFFNEF] - B THB B FIFNERE - TIERFE
BERERELZ S

Suppliers and business partners

HEBMERAIERH

Government and other regulatory
authorities

BT ME A BB HeAE

Local community

Bt

Business meetings, tendering

E a4

Statutory filings and notification, regulatory or
voluntary disclosures

EEGFEREM BB RKE

Community activities, donations

HEEE - B

We aim to collaborate with our stakeholders to improve our ESG performance
and create greater value for the wider community on a continuous basis.

Fulfillment of promises, payment schedule
R A -~ fEEREx

Compliance with laws and regulations,
transparency of inside information
BARIMER  NEERNERE

Business ethics, fair employment opportunities,
environmental protection
FEEE DTHERS  RR

B ERERFNEAE  UERMANRE -
HERERRR UHERFEZNLEAEEX
HE(E -
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

We have considered feedback from relevant stakeholders in determining the
Group’s material ESG aspects to be covered in the ESG Report. These are shown

EEHEFME
RMEE BRSNS AR AR
RASENEERS LG REAHE ELNE U

in the table below, together with the aspects of the ESG Guide to which they & B fIF1 % & HIRE

relate:

The ESG Reporting Guide
BE HERERREES

HEETRPETR

Material ESG Aspects of the Group
FEERE HEREREEEHE

gk

AT
ERERT

RS 48 51 60 {8

A. Environmental
RIR
A1.Emissions

BRI

A2.Use of Resources

B R A

A3.The Environment and Natural Resources
RERBARER

B. Social
e
B1. Employment
=%
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Greenhouse Gas ("GHG") Emissions P. 51
mERE(DRERE]) M

Waste Management P. 53
RE &R

Energy Management P. 55
RERER

Water Management P. 56
RAKER

Indoor Air Quality p. 57
Recruitment and Promotion P. 58
BREREA

Compensation and Dismissal P. 58
BB AR R

Benefits and Welfares P. 59
LSS R

Working Hours and Rest Periods P. 59
T{RRF AR By

Diversity, Equal Opportunities and Anti-discrimination P. 59
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The ESG Reporting Guide
RIE HERERHERES

Material ESG Aspects of the Group
FEERE HEREREEHE

B. Social (continued)

e (E)
B2. Health and Safety Safety Measures
EEEET R Z 215
Employee Health Management
BTREER
B3. Development and Training Training and Development

BT

Al K B R

B4. Labour Standards Prevention of Child and Forced Labour
BT AR PHlEE T Road|ss T
B5. Supply Chain Management Supply Chain Management

B6.

HrEgEE

Product Responsibility
EmAE

HrEsE IR

Intellectual Property (“IP”) Rights
MBERE (B ER] ER

Privacy Protection

AL RE
B7. Anti-corruption Internal Control
RS PRpEE i
B8. Community Investment Community Participation

HERIEE

M E 2

.61

.62

.62

.63

. 64

.65

. 66

. 66

.67

As at the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group confirmed that it has
established appropriate and effective management policies and internal
control systems for ESG issues and confirmed that the disclosed contents are in
compliance with the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.

CONTACT US

We welcome stakeholders to provide their opinions and suggestions. You can
provide valuable advices in respect of the ESG Report or our performances in
sustainable development by email ir.dept@avconcept.com.

BE_Z-NAF=_A=t—HILFE FAEE®ER
ERRE HEREAZEHTEERAUNERE
BEREAMEZRS  YHERFARENATHAR
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B AR 3R 1M
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A.

50

ENVIRONMENTAL

A1.

Emissions

General Disclosure and KPIs

The Group is committed to ensuring the long-term sustainability in
the environment and community where the Group operates. We
recognise our responsibilities towards the potential environmental
impacts associated with our business operations and integrate
environmental consideration into our decision-making processes.

Due to our business nature, the environmental impact the Group
attributes from the operation of working office, retail store and
warehouses. Although it was limited, we strive to implement
measures in promoting energy consumption, waste reduction
and any other green initiatives. We are committed to educate
our employees in raising their awareness on environmental
protection and complying with the relevant environmental laws
and regulations.

In order to enhance our environmental governance practices
and mitigate the potential environmental impacts resulted from
our operations, we have adopted related environmental policies
and delivered the contents to our employees. Within our policy
framework, we continually look for different opportunities
to pursue environmentally friendly initiatives, enhance our
environmental performance by reducing energy and use of other
resources. Within our business nature, we continued to create a
better environment with a focus on the conservation of energy,
use of vehicles, reduction of paper usage and business air travel.

During the year under review, the Group has not identified any
material non-compliance of environmental laws and regulations,
including but not limited to Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Water
Pollution Control Ordinance, Waste Disposal Ordinance, Noise
Control Ordinance in relation to exhaust gas and GHG emissions,
water and land discharge, and the generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste that would have a significant impact on the
Group.

Air Emissions

The Group strives to improve the air quality at the roadside and
improve traffic flow problem. The Group encourages its employees
to use public transportation to replace various emission-producing
vehicles with few transit vehicles that generally emit less pollution
on a per person basis.

The key air pollutants generated from the Group’s use of vehicles
are 189g of Sulphur Oxides, 123g of Nitrogen Oxides, and 9g of
Particulate Matter.
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GHG Emissions

With the Group’s focus on semiconductor distribution, consumer
electronic product and brand omni-channel, venture capital and
internet social media business, the Group realizes the potential
environmental impacts generated by the Group were minimal.
However, the Group still focuses on nurturing and strengthening
the employees’ awareness on environmental protection in
their daily work process, and actively implements the Group'’s
environmental protection measures, with an aim to lower GHG
emissions.

The principal GHG emissions of the Group are generated from
combustion of petrol for transportation (Scope 1), purchased
electricity (Scope 2), business air travel and paper disposal
(Scope 3).

We have actively adopted the following measures to mitigate the
GHG emissions in our operations:

o Actively adopt measures for environmental protection,
energy conservation, and water saving, relevant measures
are described in “Energy Management” and “Water
Management” under Aspect A2;

o Actively adopt waste reduction measures in office, retail
store and warehouses, relevant measures are described in
the section “Waste Management” in this chapter;

° Replace highly polluting vehicles with more environmentally-
friendly ones; and

o Encourage the use of video or teleconferences when
possible in place of on-site meetings to minimize business air
travel.
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The following represents the Group’s GHG emission and its

intensity performance during the year under review:

UTRAEERDEFNHEERESH
MERETERR

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
Indicator" Unit 2019 2018
BE-E-N% BE-Z-N\&
=A=1+-H —A=1+—H
BEg By LEE HFE
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) EEBERBHM (BE—) tCOe
Petrol Consumption BB BoaltiREE 34.16 29.12
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) PR ERBHM (BE ) tCOe
Purchased Electricity SNEE S BoaltiREE 58.20 57.49
Other indirect GHG emissions Hitr (E=)
(Scope 3)
Business Air Travel P 2R IR AT tCOse
W_EtirEe 16.74 29.74
Paper Consumption BRERE tCOse
W_EtirEe 3.94 8.68
Total GHG emissions BREREHR tC0Ose
(Scope 1, Scope 2, and Scope 3)  (&E— =Kk =) WS iEE 113.04 125.03
Intensity? BmE? tCO,e/employee
W_altHE2/ER 0.55 0.67
Notes: ffzE -
1. GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent 1. RERBHRERDE_SELREES

and are based on, but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued by the World
Resources Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix II: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the HKEX, “Global Warming
Potential Values” from the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report, 2014 (AR5)
and CLP’s Sustainability Report 2018.

2. As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 205 full-time employees in total;
while the Group had 187 full-time employees as at 31 March 2018. The
data is also used for calculating other intensity data.

During the year under review, the Group’s overall GHG
emissions was approximately 113.04 tCO,e, and the intensity
was approximately 0.55 tCO,e per employee. The overall GHG
emissions has decreased from approximately 125.03 tCO,e in 2018
to approximately 113.04 tCO,e in 2019, this is mainly due to the

decrease in business air travel.
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Wastewater Management

The Group does not consume significant volume of water through
our daily operation, and therefore our business activities did not
generate material portion of discharge into water. The majority
of the water supply and discharge facilities are provided and
managed by property management company.

Waste Management

Hazardous waste handling method

Due to the Group’s business nature, we did not generate any
hazardous waste during the year under review. Despite the
Group did not generate hazardous wastes during the year under
review, the Group has established guidelines of governing the
management and disposal of hazardous wastes. In case there
are any hazardous wastes produced, the Group must engage a
qualified chemical waste collector to handle such wastes, which is
complied with the relevant environmental regulations and rules.

Non-hazardous waste handling method

The non-hazardous waste produced by the Group’s operation
is mainly generated in the daily life and by the operation of the
office, including paper, plastic, glass, and kitchen waste. With the
aim of minimizing the environmental impacts from non-hazardous
wastes generated from our business operations, the Group has
implemented measures in waste management and launched
different reduction initiatives.

Specifically, the Group adopted separation method in terms
of domestic waste management. Non-hazardous wastes were
carefully sorted, so that those recyclable wastes would be reused.
The Group also encourages its staff to bring their own lunch box
instead of ordering take-away food to avoid the generation of
food waste and food packaging waste. In order to systematically
manage the waste recycling in office, the Group has assigned
an administrative staff to manage and transport the wastes and
recyclables. The following waste reduction measures were carried
out and managed by our administrative staff:

o Organising and maintained the garbage and recycled waste
holding areas;

o Placing appropriate signage on walls and bins stating the

type of waste or recyclable should be placed in each bin;

o Ordering toner cartridges and paper prudently to avoid
overstock and collecting all used toner and ink-jet cartridges
for recycling;

o Sorting recycled waste into appropriate receptacles; and
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. Reusing the pen shafts by using refills instead of throwing . B ERECENEAERMTE
away the whole ballpoint pens. P B EIKRE -

Paper is one of the major non-hazardous wastes generated by the BEREASBMEENEEREED 2

Group. The Group has specifically adopted the following practices — o REEE R RIEREUA T 18 5 IR

to reduce paper waste at source, so to reduce the production of SRR E  LURD BMEEMAEE -

non-hazardous waste:

. Disseminating administrative notices through emails instead . iR EFE T AR A E LA
of paper documents; BITBURA

. Imposing eco-printing modes for employees and . RETEBRERITEER - WEE
encouraging them to make doubled-sided copies when P9 E AT BE {50 AR EE AR ED A
possible;

. Encouraging employees to use electronic communications . SEE TR EERAEFBAMRE
for directories, forms, reports and storage when possible; B8 - RI§ - MEFFRE

. Providing recycling bins to collect used paper products, such . REEUAE - SRR - AEFNE
as waste paper, carton box and envelope, including all non- HEBEMAZM  BIEMA RS
confidential documents; and XA

. Replacing all disposable cups and wooden stirrers with . REEMFR BEERNNFEY
items, such as ceramic cups and reusable spoons. mERPTE — IR MM AR B R o

The summary of major non-hazardous wastes discharge and its FEBEEVHREERERB MM

intensity performance:

Year ended Year ended
Types of Non-hazardous Wastes Unit 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
BE-Z-h#F HE-_ZT—)\F
BEBRVEHR By ZA=+—HLEE ZA=1+—RHILFE
Office Paper Consumption tonnes 0.82 1.20
PRERREFE WA
Intensity tonnes/employee 0.004 0.006
BE W1 8
Printing Publication Consumption tonnes 0.313 0.61
ENRI R ¥ 08 7 195
Intensity tonnes/employee 0.002 0.003
mE W, 1E &
Note: Bt EE -
3. The copies of reports being published during the year under review are 3. REFEFR - BEROMERAR1,5101 °
1,510.
The paper consumption of the Group has decreased since we have BERE Dt HE RE LA SR - AN B e 4 5ROB
adopted the above practices. Our staff's awareness on resources HEE TR -BMEIHERDONE
saving has also been improved. M ER TS -
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Use of Resources

General Disclosure and KPIs

The Group strives to optimise resource usage in business
operations, and continues with initiatives to introduce resource
efficiency and eco-friendly measures to the Group’s operations.
The Group has established relevant policies and procedures in
governing the efficient use of resources, aiming to achieve higher
energy efficiency and reduce unnecessary use of materials. All our
office, retail store and warehouses have implemented effective
energy conservation measures to reduce emissions and resource
consumption.

Energy Management

The Group aims to minimize environmental impacts in our
operations by identifying and adopting appropriate measures. The
Group has established energy policies, measures, and practices
to show our commitment on energy efficiency. All employees
are required to adopt such measures and practices, including the
purchase of energy-efficient products and services, and assume
responsibility for the Group’s overall energy efficiency. The Group
has also took the responsibility in educating staff about the
importance of energy conservation and emission reductions. In the
long run, the Group will enhance its energy saving management
in minimizing the usage of lighting, air conditioning and electronic
appliances and track its energy consumption regularly in the
coming years.

During the year under review, the Group has performed the
following measures relating to improving energy efficiency:

o Dividing the office area into different light zones and partly
installing light-emitting diodes;

o Deploying natural light as much as possible; placing energy
saving reminder labels next to switches;

o Turning off the light and air conditioner whenever and
wherever not necessary;

o Adjusting and switching off the air-conditioners according
to the temperature and situation in the office, and ensure
that the temperature should not be set under 25°C; and

o Energy efficient lightings and cooling system are installed
across the office, and placing posters “Saving Electricity,
Turn Off the Light When Leaving” in prominent places.

Our employees’ awareness on energy conservation has been
increase through these energy-saving measures.
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During the year under review, the energy consumption of the
Group and its intensity were as follows:

EEFA  AEENGEREREIETE
s

Year ended Year ended

Types of Energy Unit 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

BE-Z-h#F BHE-TZ-N\F
BERER By ZA=+—HLEE ZA=1T—RHILFE
Petrol* litres 12,843 10,949
Y H 7+
Petrol Consumption Intensity litres/employee 62.65 58.55
URERERE FRE
Purchased Electricity kWh 114,108 106,463
SMNEBEE N F R
Purchased Electricity Intensity kWh/employee 556.62 569.32
INBE TR FTREEE
Total Energy Consumption kWh 233,881 208,470
g ERE TR
Total Energy Consumption Intensity kWh/employee 1,140.88 1,114.81
BREREREEE ThRE EE
Note: Bt
4. Conversion is in reference to the conversion provided on U.S. Energy 4. BRSEXFEEREANETERREMNESE

Information Administration Energy Conversion Calculators, petrol
consumption was approximately 119,773kWh and 102,007kWh in 2019
and 2018 respectively.

Water Management

Water consumption of the Group is mainly water for basic
cleaning and sanitation. We have educated and encouraged all
employees to develop the habit of water conservation. We have
been strengthening our water-saving promotion, posting water
saving reminders, and guiding employees to use water reasonably.
The following are some measures we have implemented to
improve the utilization efficiency of water resources:

° Place posters “Saving Water Resource” in prominent places
to encourage water conservation;

o Fix dripping taps immediately and avoid any leakage of the
water supply system;

o Strengthen the inspection and maintenance on water tap,
water pipelines and water storage;

o Use water saving devices; and

o Advocate the virtue of preserving water and instill the
concept of “Water Preservation” in employees.
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The Group’s business does not involve high water consumption
and its principal office, retail store and warehouses operates in
the premises for which both the water supply and discharge are
solely controlled by the building management of the premises.
Therefore, the provisions of water and discharge data or sub-
meter are not available for disclosure. Due to the Group’s business
nature and operation mainly based in Hong Kong, the issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose is not relevant to the Group.

Use of Packaging Material

Due to our business nature, the Group does not produce any
final products nor does it have any industrial facilities. The
products with basic packaging we sold are sourced from suppliers.
Therefore, it does not use significant amount of packaging
materials during its daily operations.

The Environment and Natural Resources

General Disclosure and KPIs

Although the core business of the Group has remote impact
on the environment and natural resources, we recognize the
responsibility in minimizing the negative environmental impacts of
our business operations so to achieve sustainable development for
generating long-term values to our stakeholders and community
as a whole.

The Group works tirelessly to mitigate the environmental impact
of its activities through adopting industry best practices targeted
at reducing natural resources consumption and effective emission
management. We regularly assess the environmental risks of
our business, and adopt preventive measures as necessary to
reduce the risks and ensure the compliance of relevant laws and
regulations.

Indoor Air Quality

The Group regularly monitors the indoor air quality at workplace.
By adopting air purifying equipment in the workplace as well as
conducting regular cleaning of air conditioning system, the Group
maintains a good indoor air quality, leading to a pleasant working
environment for our staff.
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SOCIAL

B1.

Employment

General Disclosure

Human resources are the foundation in supporting the
development of the Group. The Group treasures employee’s
talent, and recognises it as the most valuable asset of the Group.
Hence, we have formulated the Employee Handbook to fulfil
our vision on people-oriented management and realizing the
full potential of employees. The Employee Handbook is formally
documented, that summarizes all major human resources
policies and procedures that are currently in force in the Group,
and to ensure transparency of information on the employees’
responsibilities and rights. We review and update the relevant
company policies regularly in accordance with the latest laws and
regulations.

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with employment-related laws
and regulations, including but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong, that would have a significant impact on
the Group.

Recruitment and Promotion

To ensure employees and applicants are treated and evaluated
in a fair way, we apply robust and transparent recruitment
processes based on merit selection against the job criteria, and
recruit individuals based on their past performance, personal
attributes, job experiences and career aspiration. The Group
also offers competitive remuneration and benefits, which are
determined by referencing market benchmarks in order to attract
high-calibre candidates. Remuneration packages include holidays,
granted leave, and medical insurance. The promotion of the
employees would be depended on the Employee Performance
Appraisal which concludes the effort, past working performance,
contribution and skill. Unreasonable promotion of the low
performance graded employees would be prohibited. The
recruitment and promotion of the Group would be governed by
the Human Resource Department to ensure it is fair and open by
their best effort.

Compensation and Dismissal

The Group constantly reviews its compensation packages to make
sure the employees are remunerated at a competitive level. The
Group has incorporated a five-day work week arrangement and
13 months payment. Any termination of employment contract
would be based on reasonable, lawful grounds and internal
policies, for instance the Employee Handbook. The Group strictly
prohibits any kind of unfair or unreasonable dismissals.
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Benefits and Welfares

The employees of the Group has offered with different benefits
as a reward of the effort paid. Employees are entitled to the
Group’s Medical Insurance Scheme and Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme. The Group also offers different types of insurance
benefits including medical insurance, employee compensation
insurance, and business travel insurance.

Different workshops and briefing sessions are provided for
employees to acknowledge about the benefit provided by the
Group, such as briefing sessions for medical insurance and MPF
briefing. Different schemes are prepared by the Group and wish to
provide the employees with more benefits that go beyond money.

The Group hold different activities, for example Christmas
party, BBQ, birthday party to enhance the relationship between
colleagues and to build up team spirit.

Working Hours and Rest Periods

The Group has formulated policies in determining the working
hours and rest periods for employees in accordance with local
employment laws. The Group has incorporated with a five-day
work week arrangement and compensation leave for overtime
work on the rest day or Public Holidays. Overtime working would
be on voluntary basis and compensated. The Group has offered
with various types of paid leave, such as examination, paternity,
maternity, marriage and bereavement. In addition to annual leave
and sick leave, female employees are entitled to maternity leave
pay, while male employees are entitled to paternity leave pay.
The working hours and rest periods are well defined to ensure
employees enjoy sufficient rest to maintain their health and
productivity.

Diversity, Equal Opportunities and Anti-discrimination

As an equal opportunity employer, we recognise the value of a
diverse and skilled workforce and are committed to creating and
maintaining an inclusive and collaborative workplace culture in
which all can thrive.

We are dedicated to providing equal opportunity in all aspects
of employment and maintaining workplace that are free from
discrimination on the grounds of age, sex, physical or mental
health status, marital status, family status, race, skin colour,
nationality, religion, political affiliation and sexual orientation and
other factors.

The Group allows zero tolerance to any workplace discrimination,
harassment or victimization for any reasons in accordance to
relevant government legislation, ordinances and regulations.
Employees are encouraged to report any incidents involving
discrimination to the Human Resource Department of the
Group. We strive to ensure that complaints, grievances and
concerns, including whistle blowing, are dealt with promptly and
confidentially.
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Employee distribution

The Company has a diverse workforce in terms of gender and age,
generating creative opinions and different level of capabilities.
As at 31 March 2019, the Group has a total of 205 employees,
of whom 112 are males, accounting for 54.6%, which the ratio
of male and female employee become more balanced. Nearly
69.8% of the employees are aged 20 to 39. The following charts
represent the distribution of the workforce in terms of gender and

age:

54.6%
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Health and Safety

General Disclosure

The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective and congenial
work environment as the Group believes that employees are
valuable assets of an enterprise and regards human resources as its
corporate wealth. The Group works hard to provide a safe, healthy
and comfortable working environment to safeguard the personal
safety of the employees as well as the safety of the workplace.

The Group follows the occupational health and safety guidelines
recommended by Labour Department and Occupational Safety
and Health Council. Employees who suffer from injury arising out
of and in the course of employment are entitled to compensation
in accordance with the local laws and regulations such as Hong
Kong's Employee Compensation Ordinance.

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with health and safety-related laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance and Employee Compensation Ordinance of
Hong Kong that would have a significant impact on the Group.

Safety Measures

The Group has also assigned a responsible person in the
Administration Department to identify any actual and potential
hazards and risks to each individual and work towards safe and
hygienic work environment in order to ensure that working
environment is in line with or higher than requirements of relevant
laws. The Group has strictly incorporated no smoking policy on the
premises and its building management office has also arranged
rescue, fire and evacuation drills to improve staff safety awareness.
Also, employees are expected to comply with the policies and
procedures, and cooperate in all safety trainings.

Employees are required to follow the safety and health measures
set out in the operating manuals, such as the Employee Handbook.
Those measures aim to minimize risks of accidents and enhance
the employees’ health and safety awareness. Besides, the
employees have to avoid adversely affecting their own health and
safety to others, such as employees contracted with influenza
or other contagious disease is required to apply for sick leave
immediately.

The Group will also organize healthy work bulletin, build up safety
warning signs, and set up safety banners and slogans, aiming to
achieve an accident-free workplace environment.
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Employee Health Management

The Group offers comprehensive health care coverage for our
employees. The Group has also continued to organize work-life
balancing activities for employees and carried out other activities
to promote healthy living practices. The activity such as the
“Physical Examination and Physical Activity” workshop has been
performed to ensure the health of the employees. The Group
has provided health and safety communications to employees
to present the relevant information and raise awareness of
occupational health and safety issues.

Development and Training

General Disclosure

Training and Development

The Group regards its staff as the most important asset and
resource of the Group as they help to sustain its core values and
culture. The Group provides orientation training to new employees
for ensuring them to have a good understanding on the Group’s
goals and vision, which also supports them to achieve a good
performance with their position in the Group.

Training and Development Policies

To strengthen employees’ work-related skills and improve
operational efficiency, the Group has developed training policies
that offer different trainings and development opportunities to its
staff.

The Group provides regular training courses and development
programmes. Newly joined employees are provided with
comprehensive trainings, which cover topics such as corporate
culture, business processes, job requirements and specific
job knowledge. For the development of existing employees,
profession-oriented trainings are offered according to the
corporate needs. The programmes ensured the employees of the
Group are well equipped and acknowledged with professional
knowledge.

A Staff Development Sponsorship Scheme has been set up
for encouraging staffs to attend seminars, courses and take
professional examinations in areas related to their work in order to
improve job performance, professional knowledge and technical
skills. Employees are eligible to apply for the sponsorship if he
or she is a full-time employee and has completed three full year
service. The employees would be sponsored with different level
of sponsorship according to the types of programmes, leave
arrangement would also be associated with the scheme.
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Labour Standards

General Disclosure

The Group strives to provide an equal and fair working
environment. The Group has strictly complied with the labour
related laws and regulations and does not tolerate any form of
sexual harassment, harassment and abuse in the workplace. The
Group also prohibit child labour and forced labour practices. The
labour resource department strictly monitors with any issue related
to labour standards.

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with child and forced labour-related
laws and regulations, including but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong which would have a significant impact
on the Group.

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited during the
recruitment process as defined by the laws and regulations. The
Group strictly complies local laws to prohibit any child and forced
labour employment.

Before hiring any job applicant, the Human Resources Department
will verify their age by checking their documents that prove the
age of applicant and ensure that the applicant’s look is consistent
with the photograph on the Identity Card in order to ensure the
staff recruited are not child labour. Besides, the forced labour
is prohibited by the Group. The overtime working of staff is on
voluntary basis. The staffs would also be compensated with wage
for the overtime working.

Supply Chain Management

General Disclosure

As a socially responsible enterprise, it is critical and vital to
maintain and manage a sustainable and reliable supply chain.
The supply chain management should be consistent with the
Group'’s sustainability strategies in establishing a mutual trust
and understanding with its business partners. All suppliers are
evaluated carefully and are subjected to regular monitoring
and assessment. The Group expects the suppliers to operate
in compliance with local environmental laws, ordinances and
regulations, so as to reduce ecological impacts.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group understands there is potential supply chain risk
associated with our key suppliers, we have established supply
chain risk management team to regularly visit and conduct
assessments of risk with our suppliers and contractors, to ensure
the possibility of a supply chain disruption could be avoided
through a formal risk detection and mitigation. The assessment
also evaluates the environment and social contribution of the
suppliers. Under the similar criteria, the supplier with more
contribution to the environment and society would be chosen.

The Group usually asks for the quotation from the suppliers at
first and selects the products which fulfil the Hong Kong safety
and environmental standards to ensure the products purchased
are free from risk. The Group would also evaluate the quality of
the suppliers on a number of factors, such as product quality,
service quality, former records, value, warranty, and social and
environmental responsibility. The evaluation would be conducted
in strict and continuous basis. The Group will also arrange regular
visit and communicate with suppliers regularly to keep update of
the latest business situation of the suppliers to avoid incidents to
be happened. To ensure sufficient supply, the Group keeps close
contact with suppliers and prepares a list of backup suppliers.

Fair and Open Procurement

The Group promotes fair and open competition that aims to
develop long-term relationships based on mutual trust with
our suppliers. The Group ensures that all parties involved in the
procurement process participate fairly, honestly and in good faith.
Employees and any parties who are in close relationship with the
specific suppliers would be excluded in the procurement process.

Product Responsibility

General Disclosure

The satisfaction of our customers is the cornerstone of the
sustainable development of the Group. The procurement from
suppliers is conducted in a manner consistent with the highest
ethical standards to ensure the product we get before distribution
is well checked. Supplier Code of Conduct helps to ensure high
products quality at all times to gain the confidences of customers,
suppliers and the public.

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with any laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong
Kong that have a significant impact on the Group, concerning
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
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Customer Privacy Protection

The Group respects the values and rights of the customers’
information assets, and is committed to abide by the related
laws and regulations in terms of consumer data privacy to ensure
customers’ information are protected. Information collected
would only be used for the purposed authorized by customers
in the first place to ensure the use of information is consistent
with those identified in the contract. The Group prohibits the
provision of consumer information to a third party without
authorization from the customers. All collected personal data is
treated confidentially and kept securely, accessible by designated
personnel only.

All computers together with backup services are equipped with
security features which require password access to information
stored on the hard disk or server. The IT Department has also
set obstruction between office and commercial net to prevent
exportation, copy, and unauthorized data use. Through internal
trainings and confidential agreements with employees, the Group
emphasizes confidentiality obligations and the legal consequences
of any breaches of obligations.

Quality Management

We have established a Quality Management System in accordance
with the requirements of ISO 9001 to develop a sustainable
performance-oriented culture to pursue continuous improvement
on quality rather than adopting a short-term and project-based
approach.

To ensure our services are complied with required standards,
quality plans will be prepared for each project, setting out
requirements for quality control, inspection and testing, process
implementation and verification. The quality plan will be updated
as necessary.

IP Rights

To protect third party IP rights and comply with relevant licensing
terms when software is used, employees are prohibited from
duplicating, installing, or using software in violation of its
copyright or license terms as part of the Group’s information
security policy. Employees in violation of the policy will be subject
to disciplinary action. The Group will also notify the manufacturers
if any illegal or unauthorised use of their hardware and/or software
is noticed.
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B7.

Privacy Protection

We recognise the protection of business partners’ privacy is
the key for our success. Therefore, protecting and maintaining
business partners’ privacy always remain in the first priority of
the Group. We have established security measures to provide
adequate protection and encryption for all data and information
upon operation. At the same time, we have established strict
policies for the collection and use of personal data.

Advertising and Labelling

Due to the Group’s business nature, the business operation of the
Group does not involve in any advertising and labelling related
matters.

Anti-corruption

General Disclosure

To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and working
environment, the Group strictly adheres to the laws and
regulations relating to anti-corruption and bribery as set out by
the government of Hong Kong. The Group values and upholds
integrity, honesty and fairness in how we conduct businesses,
therefore formulating the Anti-corruption Policy, as stipulated in
the Employee Handbook, to manage fraudulent practices.

During the year under review, the Group did not notify any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations of
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, including but not
limited to Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong.

Internal Control

The Group has adopted Code of Conduct in the Group’s Employee
Handbook that includes provision for conflicts of interest, privacy
and confidentiality of information, due diligence, bribery and anti-
corruption. As spell out in the Employee Handbook, employees
should not offer, solicit or accept anything of material value to
or from their colleagues, customers, suppliers or other business
partners of the Group unless the Group has given its consent. The
Group also provides anti-bribery and corruption training courses to
its employees regularly. All employees are expected to discharge
their duties with integrity, to act fairly and professionally, and
to abstain from involving in any bribery activities or activities
that might exploit their positions against the Group’s interests.
Employees who breach anti-corruption policy will face disciplinary
action, which could result in dismissal for serious misconduct.
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Community Investment

General Disclosure

The Group is committed to embolden and support the public by
the means of social participation and contribution as part of its
strategic development, and to nurture the corporate culture and
practices of corporate citizen in the daily work life. We aim to
promote the stability of the society, and support underprivileged
on rehabilitation to improve the quality of life. We also focus to
inspire our employees towards social welfare concerns. We would
embrace the human capital into the social management strategies
to sustain our corporate social responsibility as a part of the
strategic development of the Group.

Community Participation

We participate in community activities, for example donations,
volunteering services, and sponsorships to help the needy in the
society. To have a better understanding of the needs in the society
and strengthen the connections with local communities, we
regularly communicate with local charities.

During the year under review, the Group has made donation
to the Vocational Training Council (“VTC") to support for the
education and development of the future workforce. It has
supported for the Sponsorship of VTC Design Education Fund
2018/19 and Sponsorship for Industrial Attachment Scholarship
2019/20 for HK$10,000 each. The fund can reward for the
excellent students and support for the work of the poor students
to further study.

BS.

HERE

—RIRE
AEEEONBELELENAERES
HEMWERN D  SEMBFLR -
WHEBEIEEEPHEELCEARND
EXMEE - HPINBERE(RELE
MIRE  XEFHEHENEE  URES
HERE R - JAER DN AE R TR
HEEAEE - HHIEHANERRA
HEEERE  UWESRMANEELE
B ERAEERBERN —#7 -

HESR
RERELELEED  FINBH &
BRHAEE RS LEBEN
Ao BTET R RERILMBRE
HENBE  ROIT R RS
TR -

CEFRN AEBDRBEINRBD ([
BB BR - AXERKLEHAD
MHEMER ©XHFENDBREINRD
LA BES 201819 ME B T XM B 12
4 2019/20 ° BIE 10,0008 ° i &%
AILEEESFSELEMI B EREANT
TEE—HEE -

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019 F3f 67



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BIE - HERESRE

wmE

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEXOF THE EBEESXZMERATMNERE - &
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED SEREBMEESDABRERSIK
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPls Description Section/Declaration
BHEH —REER
BRENIEE ik 3-8 1
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT: B
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to Exhaust Gas
and GHG emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
— KR BRBERALAEREHER  rKRIHHEES BEREE  HIW
EEYHEESH
@ B%E: Rk
b) BFHETARBERZENHBERIROINER -
KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions — Air Emissions, GHG Emissions,

("comply or explain”)
BB RIEIR AL
([N E<FRLARRE])

KPI'A1.2
("comply or explain”)
RERIEIRAL2
([N E<FRLARRE])

KPI'A1.3
("comply or explain”)
MRERIEIRAL3
([N E<FRARRE])

KPIA1.4
("comply or explain”)
MREBERUIEIR AL
([N E<FRARRE])

KPI' A1.5
("comply or explain”)
MRERIEIRALS
([N E<FRARRE])

BEyiE IR RARRA P BUE

GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and intensity.

N
BER

BN E ) BB -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity.

P A ERENEE CAEHE) BB -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity.

FRFELBEREYAE UMFTE) REE -

Description of reduction initiatives and results achieved.

B ESHENEERAFRR
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Waste Management

B - RN REREHN  BWERE

Emissions — GHG Emissions

B RERBIN

Not applicable — Explained

TER-EHE

Emissions — Waste Management

B - R IR

Emissions — GHG Emissions
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Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration

BE —BREER

HRERER i -1

KPI'A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Emissions — Waste Management

("comply or explain”)
HREBISIRALE
([TNE<FRERRE])

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2: ERER
General Disclosure
— MR

KPI'A2.1

("comply or explain”)
R R IR A2.1
(I E-FRUBERED

KPI' A2.2
("comply or explain”)
R A IR A2.2
(I E-FRUBERED

KPI' A2.3
("comply or explain”)
R A IR A2.3
(I E-FRUBERED

KPI A2.4
("comply or explain”)
B A BIEIEA2.4
(I E-FRUBERED

KPI' A2.5
("comply or explain”)
R A BUIEIRA2.5
(I E-FRUBERED

handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HIREEEREEEZMN L  HEELESNEELA
BRR -

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.

BRMERER(BREER  KREMEME) BB -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and
intensity.
RERESOERER AREEREEERTE -

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BFEKEREE -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
AR A B A B R TG RR -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is
fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

$i SR EUE F7KOR Ll B A RE DA RSB T Rk st &)
KPS -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)
and with reference to per unit produced.
HRBFABEEMENAE CAETE) RELEBMEE -

B — YRR IR

Use of Resources
ZRER
Use of Resources — Energy Management

BEREA-BEEE

Use of Resources — Water Management

BRER-RKER

Use of Resources — Energy Management

BEREA-BEEE

Use of Resources — Water Management

BREA-EREE

Not applicable — Explained

TER-CRE
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

BE - -REER
HRERER

Description

i

Section/Declaration

EE B

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EBEA3: BERARER
General Disclosure
— MR

KPI'A3.1
(“comply or explain”)

B RAE RUIE IR A3
(ITMETREED

Aspect B1: Employment
EEB1: EfE

General Disclosure

— MR

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.
REBETAERERRAERERERNTZENEE -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

M EBTHHIRRRRAAEGRNEATLE REERNE
BEBTENTE -

Information on:
(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, antidiscrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

ERFMREE BERSH  IERE - BH - 5

e il RERAREMFBEREN :

(@) BUEE: K&

(b) BTHBETABEAZENHERMEELRIIHER
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Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description
BE —BREER
HRERER i

Section/Declaration

EE B

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EHEB2: BREERE

General Disclosure Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

— R E FRRHZ2TIHEREMREBEREEBERENLEEN

(@) EX &
(b) BFHEITAEERFENREEIERBOHNER -

Aspect B3: Development and Training
FEE B3 : & K iE3
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.

BRRTHE BIETT TIER R 6V A0 3 M R BE BV BUR -
BHIES -

— R E

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEBA : BT #H|

General Disclosure Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.

—PRIKEE BRAMTIEZE Toadl s TH
(@ H%E: &
(o) EFHBITABEAZBHEBERIADINEHR -

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
fEmEBS : fEEER
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.

— MR EEHEENRENEERBEBER -

Health and Safety

Development and Training

R BT

Labour Standards

& T 2R

Supply Chain Management

HrEgEE
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Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description
BE —BREER
HBRERER #t

Section/Declaration

EE B

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : ERMEE

General Disclosure Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

— R EMFRHEESNBBORFEARS K - BRER
BHE LRI AR
@ BE: R

(b) BTHBTABEAZENHERMEELRIIHER

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7: RET

General Disclosure Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

—RIWE BRI - 1R - REEROLAREN -

=l

@ B®: K&

(b) BTHBITABEAZENHEBERLRIIHER

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EHEB8: HtEBIRE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates

and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

BRI RS EREREEMELRTEMBRALER
EEEE RALR N R AECR o

— MR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Ernst & Young TGRSR AT Tel 3% +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower BEBDR Fax {8 & : +852 2868 4432
EY& i 1 Tim Mei Avenue WEE1 ey.com
7 Central, Hong Kong PlERE2218

To the shareholders of AV Concept Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AV Concept Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
81 to 211, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

HRESER

Estimation of fair values of investment properties

REMEAFEEM

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s investment properties measured
at fair value amounted to approximately HK$126 million, with the
corresponding fair value changes recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. The valuation process is inherently subjective, and
dependent on estimation of adjusted unit price. The Group has
engaged an independent valuer to value the investment properties at
the end of the reporting period.

The significant accounting judgements and estimates and disclosures
about fair values of investment properties are included in notes 3 and
13 to the consolidated financial statements.

R-F-NAEF=ZA=1+—H EBEKERATEEAENRENE
#)%126,000,000 87T - MBEAFEBEZHNIERR AR -
ERFASGEETEN  WAKBGFEHBELER  HE5E
EXEBVAEMNBERARARENRETHE-

ITREFHB AT UAREERENERIFEENREEHER
A MBRRMEIRI3 -

BIC BT AR EZ AN Tt 47 & B TR R
EHEF—HMINET EEERLSFENE
Bt RANBA TERERRITERBHRMY
A MR LR B AR E &R R
MREF - ZFINEFTEF (BEREE T EEMHR
TR MER R FIEBEMER S MR NERT
BRIEHER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ET R EERETER

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent valuer engaged by the Group. We also
obtained valuation reports prepared by the independent valuer,
understood the work of the independent valuer and evaluated
its work by assessing the relevance, completeness and accuracy
of the data used as inputs for the valuation, and assessing the
major assumptions and methodologies adopted in the valuation
by checking to the price of similar properties. We also involved
our internal valuation expert to assist us in evaluating the major
assumptions and methodologies of the valuation of certain
investment properties held by the Group.

BMEHE EEEZBBYAEMESHE HENRE
RARREEE - RAMEBIS B AEMRENEERS &
TRRBIGEMNTE WEBFEREAERAENRER
BER - TERER  FFEBAEMNTE  UREZEE
MENER  UFEHEERBNIERRETE - HATHE
AMHEZERGYFE EXREMFETREVENIZRR
KAE(ETTE
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Key audit matter

BRETER

Valuation of unlisted investments at fair value through profit
or loss

ERBRBRAVPEESRNELTREME

The Group has unlisted investments at fair value through profit or
loss which are measured at fair value. As at 31 March 2019, the
unlisted investments at fair value through profit or loss amounting
to HK$54,638,000 were categorised as Level 3 within the fair value
hierarchy, representing 4.9% of the Group’s net assets. For Level 3
valuation, the Group has applied valuation techniques to determine
the fair value of the unlisted investments at fair value through
profit or loss that are not quoted in active markets. These valuation
techniques, in particular those that included significant unobservable
inputs, involved subjective judgements and assumptions. The
sensitivity of the assumptions used may have material impact on the
valuation of these unlisted investments at fair value through profit or
loss.

The significant accounting judgements and estimates and fair value
measurements of financial instruments are disclosed in notes 3 and
39 to the consolidated financial statements.

EEERESRBREATEENERENIELTRE  ZEHREY
BRAFEBEFE - RZTE—NF=ZA=1+—H ' BRBERNIEAF
BEYIRAIE TR E 54,638,000 THEARAFLBESRAE
BONE=E HER BEEEETFEMNLII% HRE=-EMH
B BESEERAMERINETTERNERMSRETEBIER
BEAFEEMENELMEENQAFEBE -ZEHERMN(CER
B REERTIERE A BN F R EBHE RERR - ATA
BEOBEEETHZEERERRATEEYRNIELTE
ENHEELEEATE -

FTEeHHAMEAET ARSI ENAFEENENGEEUER
KW E3I R 39FEE o
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN EST R EERETER

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
independent valuer engaged by the Group. We obtained and
reviewed the subscription agreements, insurance statements or
sales and purchase agreements of the unlisted investments. We
focused on valuation methodologies and assumptions used for
the valuation of financial instruments that were categorised as
Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy. We, with the assistance
of our valuation specialists, evaluated the valuation techniques,
inputs and assumptions, such as market comparables, discount
rates, volatility, through comparison with the valuation
methodologies that are commonly used in the market and
checking unobservable inputs used against available market
information.

We assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

HRETER

Provision against inventories

FERE

As at 31 March 2019, the net inventories balance of the Group
amounted to HK$62 million.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ESTNAEEERETER

We understood and evaluated the basis which management used
in estimating the level of provision for inventories by considering

the stock ageing as at 31 March 2019 and the subsequent

The Group is engaged in the marketing and distribution of electronic
components and design, development and sale of electronic
products, which are subject to changing market demands and market
competition. Management judgement is required for assessing
the appropriate level of inventory provision in light of the current
challenging business environment.

The significant accounting judgements and estimates and disclosures
of the provision and the balance of inventories are included in notes
3, 6 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

R—F-NhF=ZA=+—8"
62,000,000 8 7T °

EEENTFERERFER

sales after year ended 31 March 2019. We also compared the
carrying amount of the inventories, on a sample basis, to their
net realisable value through review of sales of the inventories
subsequent to the year end.

BMEEBZERR T NF=A=1T—HHNEFRREREE
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Ip Hing Lam.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 June 2019
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2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B FHEx FHT
REVENUE Ik &% 5 1,698,796 1,662,878
Cost of sales SHERAR (1,673,533) (1,623,512)
Gross profit EF 25,263 39,366
Other income and gains EHab U A R Wz 5 14,737 14,042
Changes in fair value of investment WEMENTFEBEZEE
properties 13 1,515 6,716
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (17.684) (12,526)
Administrative expenses THEA (81,736) (83,419)
Fair value gains/(losses), net: NEEEKE (BE)FE
Equity investments at fair value through FRBERIEAFEETEZ
profit or loss RAGE
— held for trading —HEEE = 555
— designated as such upon initial — RV IAFETR T 18 TE
recognition 13 =bll = (59,164)
Fair value losses on financial assets at FRBERRATEBYEZ S/
fair value through profit or loss, net BEZAVEEERE F58 (28,501) =
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale HE—EAHEERE
investment 2z - 128,918
Other expenses, net H & BFEE (17,861) (26,708)
Finance costs B & AR 7 (6,478) (4,737)
Share of profits and losses of: Db ) R B
Joint ventures SENE 166,655 160,199
Associates FA= /NG (303) 448
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B A 8 R 6 55,607 163,690
Income tax FriS®t 9 (414) (801)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRER 55,193 162,889
Attributable to: AT AL (L -
Owners of the Company ZiN/NCTEZ PN 57,278 163,267
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR 25 (2,085) (378)
55,193 162,889
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE KATEBAEBEESREF
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 11
Basic N HK6.30 cent #&fll  HK17.61 cent /&l
Diluted B HK6.30 cent #fll  HK17.60 cent &l
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2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRER 55,193 162,889
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Hih2mEB A (BE)
(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) RERHMEMEEFSEE
that may be reclassified to profit or Bamz EMEmKA
loss in subsequent periods: / (E518)
Available-for-sale investments: ATHEERE
Changes in fair value N EEZE - (17,651)
Release of revaluation reserve upon HE—IBAHEERER
disposal of an available-for-sale Bl B h# %
investment - (128,918)
- (146,569)
Exchange differences on translation of REBINEBREEZ
foreign operations VEH =% (4,483) 7,658
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS THAT RE#HEAEKEHF I EE
MAY BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR BRzHM2EBETFER
LOSS IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS AND FREMEZEES  HRHIE
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (4,483) (138,911)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR SR HEUW A A5
THE YEAR 50,710 23,978
Attributable to: AT AL :
Owners of the Company KRARER A 52,818 24,356
Non-controlling interests FEPERRAE = (2,108) (378)
50,710 23,978
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2019 2018
ZB-NE —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B o BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB RERE 12 39,594 46,055
Investment properties EYE 13 125,798 125,673
Goodwill EES 14 = =
Other intangible assets HEtmpEE 15 4,234 4,160
Investments in joint ventures REEREIRE 16 723,034 619,544
Investments in associates REEERBZKE 17 1,698 1,148
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 18 = 22,353
Financial assets at fair value through ERBRIEAFEESEZ
profit or loss EHEE 19 23,110 =
Deposits e 22 2,178 198
Pledged time deposits B EAE TR 24 = 2,623
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 919,646 821,754
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories BE 20 62,219 160,176
Trade receivables FEWE 5 R 21 70,937 67,967
Due from associates JIE Wi Bt & R B FRIE 17 115 359
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TBff3RIE 1Z& REMBEWRIE 22 40,462 22,389
Equity investments at fair value through BRBEEAFEEIERZ
profit or loss RA%E 23 - 99,265
Financial assets at fair value through BRBREATEAENEZ
profit or loss EREE 19 117,648 =
Tax recoverable AT Uy Bl 7 18 2 2
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERBFEEE 24 105,989 233,887
Total current assets mBEERE 397,372 584,045
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2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
ihg=2 TR FHET
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables, deposits received and ERNE SRR BEBIRE R
accrued expenses et &R 25 48,159 128,338
Contract liabilities EHEE 26 16,298 =
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Bt B ERATE K 27 72,366 129,658
Finance lease payables FE < & T & I8 28 1,439 820
Tax payable FEH I8 126 494
Financial guarantee obligation MIEERE T 29 46,160 39,575
Total current liabilities mE A ERRE 184,548 298,885
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 212,824 285,160
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBARS
LIABILITIES 1,132,470 1,106,914
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowing Bt B ERATIE K 27 = 4,441
Finance lease payables FE <t & 7 & 1B 28 2,720 1,726
Deferred tax liabilities BLEHIEEE 30 14,157 14,021
Total non-current liabilities IR A EAE 16,877 20,188
Net assets BEFE 1,115,593 1,086,726
EQUITY e
Issued capital BEITRA 31 90,866 92,315
Reserves f#E 1,010,615 981,804
Equity attributable to owners of RRAREE AEIEER
the Company 1,101,481 1,074,119
Non-controlling interests JEVE R R 14,112 12,607
Total equity T 1,115,593 1,086,726
So Yuk Kwan So Kevin Chi Heng
I8 wEE
Director Director
EFE EF
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Attributable to owners of the Company

RARER AR
Available- Equity-
for-sale settled
Share investments Asset  share-based Exchange Non-
Issued premium Capital Other  revaluation  revaluation payment fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve® reserve reserve profits* Total interests equity
e RiEEE
REEf  EEER LRGBAR  EXR®
BREARA  ROEER  RAERT  EhEk g i g BE  REEH™ a7 JiEREs  BsEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
s TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR
At 1 April 2017 RZZ-t5MA-A 77,29 453,469 19,484 (38,483) 145,199 38,765 110 (1,027) 372,138 1,066,949 11,345 1,078,294
Profit for the year EREH = = = = - - - - 163,267 163,267 (378) 162,889
Other comprehensive income/(loss) £ RE 2 EMA/
for the year: (%)
Changes in fair value of available- I EREATEE
for-sale investments, net of tax 228 MBHE - - - - (17,651) - - - - (17,651) - (17,651)
Release of available-for-sale nE-FRANER
investments revaluation resernve AT EREER
upon disposal of an investment G f& - - - - (128918 - - - - (128918 - (128918
Exchange differences on translation %85 £ HEEL
of foreign operations LEXER - - - - - - - 7,658 - 7,658 - 7,658
Total comprehensive incomel(loss)  ERZERA/ (E18)
for the year et = = = = (146,569) - - 7,658 163,267 24,35 (378) 23978
Issue of bonus shares Bk 31 15,459 (15,459) - - - - - - - - - -
Repurchase of shares BORH 3 (510) (2,756) - - - - - - - (3,266) = (3,266)
Exercise of share options feERE 31 7 299 - - - - (110) - - 261 = 261
Share options lapsed BRRERE 32 - - - - - - - - 1278 1278 (1,278) =
Dividend paid BRRE = = = = = - - - (15,459) (15,459) = (15,459)
Incorporation of a subsidiary SR RER F ML
with non-controlling interests —HKBAR - - - - - - - - - - 2918 2918
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F=A=1-A 92315 435,553* 19,484* (38483)* (1,370 38,765* = 6,631* 521,224* 1,074,119 12,607 1,086,726
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Attributable to owners of the Company

KRAAREARE
Available-
for-sale
Share investments Asset Exchange Non-
Issued premium Capital Other  revaluation  revaluation fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve®* reserve profits™ Total interests equity
AHIEE
REEf KEEf EikE
BRIRA  REREE BARRE R L1 [ L1 REER™ B8 FEREZ RREE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Bt TER TER ThR ThR ThR ThR ThT TR TR TR TR
At 1 April 2018 RZE-EMA-R 92,315 435,553* 19,484* (38,483)* (1370)* 38,765* 6,631% 521,204+ 1,074,119 12,607 1,086,726
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 FAEERBREEREN
(note 2.2(a)) %2 (W22 - - - - 1370 - - (1,370) - - -
A1 April 2018 (restated) RZE-\EmA-R
(%51) 92,315 435,553 19,484 (38,483) - 38,765 6,631 519,854 1,074,119 12,607 1,086,726
Profit for the year FRET - - - - - - - 57,278 57,278 (2,085) 55,193
Other comprehensive loss for the year: ~ FAEMZ2EHE :
Exchange differences on tranlation BEBNRBRELL
of foreign operations 352 - - - - - - (4,460) - (4,460) @) (4,483)
Total comprehensive income/(oss) FRZAYN/ (B1E) 8%
for the year = = = = = = (4460) 51,278 52818 (2.108) 50,710
Repurchase of shares BERH 31 (1,449) (5,834) - - - - - - (7,283) - (7,283)
Dividend paid BRES = = o = - - - (18,173) (18,173) = (18,173)
Incorporation of a subsidiary with AFPRRERERR T -
non-controling interests il N3 - - - - - - - - - 3,613 3,613
At31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1-H 90,866 429,119* 19,484* (38,483)* - 38,765* 2,171* 558,959* 1,101,481 14,112 1,115,593

##

##H

86

Included in the balance of the capital reserve as at 31 March 2019 was a capital
redemption reserve balance amounting to approximately HK$16,142,000 (2018:
HK$16,142,000).

The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from owner-occupied
properties to investment properties carried at fair value. In accordance with HKAS 16,
this balance was frozen and was not available to offset the current and future years’
revaluation deficits on investment properties until the retirement or disposal of these
assets.

As at 31 March 2019, there was goodwill of HK$12,427,000 (2018: HK$12,427,000)
arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years which remained eliminated
against the consolidated retained profits.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$1,010,615,000 (2018:
HK$981,804,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2019.
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2019 2018
ZB-NE —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B o BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 355 A g A 55,607 163,690
Adjustments for: A THEAELFE
Finance costs BB KA 7 6,478 4,737
Share of profits of joint ventures DIEE &R ERA (166,655) (160,199)
Share of profits and losses of associates DREEE R RDEF & EE 303 (448)
Depreciation e 6 4,320 3,623
Changes in fair value of investment REMEQNFEEZEF
properties 13 (1,515) (6,716)
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hith\mp & E 2 #iE 6 19 19
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of HEiEPEEE 2 RE
other intangible assets (BtmE) B 6 (387) 381
Impairment of property, plant and ME - BE R FEZRE
equipment 6 369 -
Impairment of trade receivables, net JEWE SRR BIEF A 6 5,511 2,330
Recovery of bad debts i B Bk 5 - (311)
Provision for impairment/(recovery of TEZRERE, (B
provision) of inventories #E) 6 7,926 (1,308)
Impairment of other receivables H fth fE U GRTE 2 R E 6 7,619 20,740
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, HHE&EE « BE L& #
plant and equipment BEZEBE () 5,6 1,287 (636)
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale HE—BAHEEREZ
investment Iz 6 - (128,918)
Gain on derecognition of financial RIEERMBERAEEZ
guarantee obligation W z5 6 (77.261) (50,412)
Impairment of investments in joint ventures MR AE M 2R E ZHE 6 77,261 50,412
Fair value (gains)/losses, net: ﬁ$§f§ﬁ(ﬂﬁlﬁ?&)/§?i§
SFRE
Equity investments at fair value through FiRBEmRATEEIIR
profit or loss ZRARIEE
— held for trading —BEEE 6 - (555)
— designated as such upon initial — VIR FE SR HE T
recognition p=qlig bl 6 = 59,164
Fair value losses on financial assets at fair BREBEREATEEYERZ
value through profit or loss CMEEZANFEMEERE 6 28,501 =
Dividend income from listed equity ERERE 2 R EWA
investments 5 (376) (15)
Bank interest income SRITH B UL A 5 (46) (586)
Interest income on convertible bonds AR (& 5 I BB A 5 (1,184) (2,324)
Interest income on listed bond investments &5 E 2 F B U A 5 (2,876) =
(55,099) (47,332)
Decrease in amounts due from associates JFE Uk Bt 42 N B RN IR D 244 401
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERLD (3 hm) 83,368 (70,946)
Increase in trade receivables JE W Z 5 BR ZKIE N (9,216) (18,775)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other AT FXIE ~ 12 & K& E g Uk
receivables FRIALE N (24,476) (19,176)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables, deposits JE{+HE S E - BUWIEE K&
received and accrued expenses FEETER ) /3 m (66,278) 68,156
Increase in contract liabilities EHBEEM 5,811 =
Cash used in operations KEFAR S
- page 88 —%£888 (65,646) (87,672)
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2019 2018
ZB-hE —T-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B FExT FET
Cash used in operations KEmARS
- page 87 — 2878 (65,646) (87,672)
Purchases of equity investments BEEBBREAFEER
at fair value through profit or loss H Rz IR & = (88,640)
Proceeds from disposal of equity investments 1+ &35 B 182512 A FBESIEE
at fair value through profit or loss KR A 12 & P15 RUR = 32,821
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale & A] ## i & & & £ 715 5008
investment - 242,926
Purchases of financial assets at fair value HEEFRBEREATEER
through profit or loss PR BREE E (78,922) =
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEFERBREATEE
at fair value through profit or loss PBR 2 S RLE EFTS IR 31,281 -
Dividend income received from Bl —HEEERERSKA
a joint venture 69,930 69,930
Overseas taxes (paid)/refund (B /BREGINGIE (660) 120
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating CEEEATE, (FTH)
activities ReneFE (44,017) 169,485
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHMBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received BUERTTAIE 46 586
Dividends received from listed investments ~ B U E I E K E 376 15
Interest income on listed bond investments  _EFI{EHFRE 2 7 B HKA 1,940 =
Decrease/(increase) in pledged time deposits A # i 7E BAfF 7R 4 (38 0) 2,623 (2,623)
Decrease in non-pledged time deposits EEAEREFEIORD - 3,193
Purchases of items of property, plant and HEEME KERZEEE
equipment 34(b) (2,302) (8,615)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HE®ZE - BE&KXEEE
plant and equipment FriS5%78 5,459 638
Additions to other intangible assets NEHMEEE = (1,321)
Proceeds from disposal of other intangible ~ H& H b EF & E P13 708
assets 261 204
Subscription of shares in a joint venture RIE—HEELERD - (33,750)
Subscription of shares in an associate RS — I AR R (2,000) =
Proceeds for dissolution of an associate iR B — A1 & A BRI PT 1S 7B - 852
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing wEESAE(FTA)
activities REemEFRE 6,403 (40,821)
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2019 2018
ZB-NE —E-)N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B o BT T

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHMERERE

ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings FrERITER - 12,332
Repayment of bank borrowings ERRITER (57,932) (7,200)
Net (decrease)/increase in import and HEORETRIEERCRD)

trust receipt loans EANEEE (1,057) 7,805
Capital element of finance lease FEMERSHIBEBEREH

rental payments 34(b) (1,634) (890)
Interest paid SRS 7 (6,306) (4,605)
Interest element on finance lease FEMEH S FIEF EE D

rental payments 7 (172) (132)
Repurchase of shares i B % {n (7,283) (3,266)
Issue of shares for exercise of R T M B ITRD

share options - 261
Dividend paid B E (18,173) (15,459)
Capital contribution from non-controlling —EM B AR EERRR A

shareholders of a subsidiary 3,613 2,918
Net cash flows used in financing activities BB EBARSREFE (88,944) (8,236)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH ReRERBESER GRBL)

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B nE s (126,558) 120,428
Cash and cash equivalents FUzREeRERERIER

at beginning of year 233,887 111,600
Effect of foreign exchange rate MEREE) o B FHE

changes, net (1,340) 1,859
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZESRERARSER

AT END OF YEAR 105,989 233,887
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASHAND R&RZERELEALZHZ

CASH EQUIVALENTS 2T
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RE MR R RS

in the consolidated statement of REeERERMBAZESR

financial position and in the consolidated ZRBELIEE

statement of cash flows 24 105,989 233,887
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

AV Concept Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office
address of the Company is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104 Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is located at
6th Floor, Enterprise Square Three, 39 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay,
Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was engaged in the following principal
activities:

o Marketing and distribution of electronic components;

o Design, development and sale of electronic products and brand
omni-channel business; and

o Venture capital investment

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

AEIREBEER

AV Concept Holdings Limited ([ N2 &]]) AR
EHSHAMKL 2 BRRE c NAF 2
E R4 A P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands * fH * 2
EEWE AN EBNEERRBEIVRLER
H=Hi6iE -

FRAEELEUTEIZEG

. BFABZTBEERSH:

o BIERIZBH ARRHEARDE

EREEE R
. BlEREA
FHEMBELR &R

ARRZEEMBRRFEMT

Place of Issued/ Percentage of
incorporation registered equity attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
a8 AMRIREERSE BERT/EMRE APAEERFED L TEEH
Direct Indirect
H# Bk
AV Concept Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
FERITAERRA & 287 REZR
HK$1,000,000°
1,000,000/ L@
AV Concept Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore SGD4,000,000 - 100 Trading of electronic
GipIIbd 4,000,000 7T components
BES LK
AV Electronics Group Limited* British Virgin Islands/ US$40,000 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 40,0005 7T REZRK
RERLEE/BA
E-GoGo Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
&k 18T REER
Signeo Design International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Design, development and
N 100/%7T sale of electronic products
Fit RERHEZFER
AVC Technology (International) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Trading of electronic
ZRRE(BER)BRAR B 1T components and
electronic products
BEEFIAREFEM
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2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAIREEER @
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EEME AR ZER (@)
Place of Issued/ Percentage of
incorporation registered equity attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
£ AMRUREEHE BT/ ERRAE AAFEERABL L TEEK
Direct Indirect
H# ik
New Concept Capital Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
("New Concept”)* Hong Kong EV and venture capital
RERLES /BB investment
REBRREIFRE
Whizoo Media Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Internet social media
BE 10,0007 7T business and online
advertising
EREHREBERR
BEES
e Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst @ I 3R BB LK G 5T AN F 55 P ok H th 2ok BB X
& Young global network BEBEZ
e Represents deferred shares issued by AV Concept Limited @ BARBITERARBITZELERNR
& New Concept is a venture capital organisation # New Concept 7 — & 8% 48 4
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the FRINTEERRENFEXEBNETERE
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or KA EBEEFEEEZS D 2 AR A
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give BRRE  -EERA WMILEMHBARZF
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result 15 SEHRERBRITEK -
in particulars of excessive length.
BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 mBEE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
equity investments and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, certain available-for-sale investments and investment properties
which have been measured at fair value. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

ARV BRRDREBTLGHMOAG ([FE
SRR ) BAHZEBMBERELER ([FE
MmE R ) (BEAATEMHHRE LR -
FEEH R (THFEGH L)) k2l &
BLAREARUREER G2 BEERER
2o REBBSRRAVEEIIRZBEARE R
TREE BETAHHERERREMERA
FEEREIN  ARE M B MERTIIRE LA
EHIRE - A B mRIIAET ([BT])
25 MrABHBES  ABEEEDIREE
RELZ TR -
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

92

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year's consolidated financial statements.

Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKFRS 15

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28

2014-2016 Cycle

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 15, the adoption of the above new and revised HKFRS has had no
significant financial effect on these consolidated financial statements.

(@) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three
aspects of the accounting for financial instruments: classification
and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting.

The Group has recognised the transition adjustments against the
applicable opening balances in equity at 1 April 2018. Therefore,
the comparative information was not restated and continues to be
reported under HKAS 39.

2.1

2.2

WEEE @

SAKREEEE

i A BT Sk P B AN B 2 I - RN AR IE
BRO)ZMBAT Y BE (QERE) REME -
(i) FE 2R AR HE 2% 7 BE T 28 IR (i) R A 26 79
Sy RHAEEE YRR DUREZA
FEE - () FHRB A ARE 2 AT EE R i)
BT AR LS 2 BB AEAL  £ATRE
2T A TR 75 B e (5 365 1R A 8
HEHERPEAEREBENARA Y EE &
FHOMEEBAERIRD R (@A)

B BRERREZEE

AEBEERANFEZHFAMBIREE KRB
THR] REERT E B MBS AR o

BEMBREENE 25

URGNAK S 2 7R

CCHES) itE
AR BREEF45 R B L ERE
CCHES) ERBE A —HE
BB B ERE
IFEHTA
BARBREEFH £HITA
ERERBREENEISE  KEEFLAZUE
BRARBREENS ISR EEERAYEHLENE
CCHES) I5HREEFEHNZ

BRGEANF % (BITAR) EEREYE

% (ERMBRERE INEXZRBUTAE
ZEE)-REELH

ZE-NERZF-NFHY BRENEHREERE

ZFEHE SREREER
% 2858 (1BFT &)

BRIXEEREEENEREEANEIRRE
BB HREERE 1S RNTEIN - R _ Ll
AT RRIERI BB M SIS EAE I TR A M
BRUBELBAUBHE -

(a) ERUHEELAEIORLWTAN T
— \FE— B — B 3 bA 14 B9 9 22 B
MAEE R EAEIORSHTA - #
RBEHE AHERTARHZAA=

ErnmE: DBRREE REREPEE -

AEEEBRAN-_Z—/\FEOA—H@
R RS ERIERRAE - Bt
HREHT EESTEBRIER LSS
HRIFE 3R 24 o
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

94

22 EBEREEZEE @

(@) (continued) (a) (&)
Classification and measurement PERIE
The following information sets out the impacts of adopting HKFRS T BRI R A E B R
9 on the consolidated statement of financial position. IREFEA T BMARNTE -
A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under HKAS 39 BEEBSTERE R ENREE
and the balances reported under HKFRS 9 as at 1 April 2018 is as HR_ZE-N\FMOA-BREEEVH
follows: WAEAERIF O 2 MM AR 2 R BRI
T
HKAS 39 measurement HKFRS 9 measurement
BABHERENEHE EAMBREENEIRHE
Category Amount  Reclassification Amount Category
EHl ka2 BENDE &8 £5l
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL THL
Financial assets SREE
Avalable-for-sale investments EHERE AFS! 22,353 (22,353) = N/A
TR
To: Financial assets at fair value HEE  ERERBEATER
through profit or loss (Note) BI85 S RERE (HHFE) (22,353)
Equity investments at fair value ABRRERATER
through profit o loss SI|BR 2 A& FVPL2 99,265 (99,265) = /A
TR
To: Financial assets at fair value HEE BRBERATEE (99,265)
through profit or loss (Note) SR S RERE (M)
Financial assets at fair value through BB BR R A FEESIE
profit or loss LEREE N/A - 121,618 121,618 FVPL
TEH (mandatory)
(&%)
From: Available-for-sale investments @1 : ATELHERE (M)
(Note) 22,353
From: Equity investments at fair B ERERRATEE
value through profit or loss Bz RARE (fits)
(Note) 99,265
121,618 - 121,618
1 AFS: Available-for-sale investments 1 AFS: A[ {1 B &
2 FVPL: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2 FVPL: BREEIEAFEEIIREZEHE
B
Note: The Group has classified its investments previously classified as available- i AEEEEBTIEAHREERENE
for-sale investments and equity investments at fair value through profit B RFEBEFIE AT EBEY R ZRARE
or loss as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss as DHEAFBEREATEEIE 2 E®E
these investments did not pass the contractual cash flow characteristics E AAZSKRERARBREYHBHRESE
test in HKFRS 9 or they were held for trading. AIEIRMAEHNRE R EFEAHKE D
BARKIEES -
AV Concept Holdings Limited
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 ETBEREBEEZEE @)
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(@) (continued) (a) (&)
Impact on reserves and retained profits HEGERREBENZEE
The impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on reserves and retained BEZEEMBHREERE IREREER
profits is as follows: REBHNZZEWT -
Reserves and
retained profits
RERREREF
HK$'000
FHET
Fair value reserve under HKFRS 9 ERUBBRELEAFEIRE N 2 AL EERHE
(available-for-sale investments revaluation (REFBETEAEIHE 2 AHHERSE
reserve under HKAS 39) BEEHEE)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 under HKAS 39 RZZE—N\F=ZA=+—BFBGHELE
395%IA T 2 &R (1,370)
Reclassification of financial assets from available-for- &R EERAEHEREENDEEER
sale investments to financial assets at fair value BREATEEIEZcREE
through profit or loss 1,370
Balance as at 1 April 2018 under HKFRS 9 R-E—\FWNA—AEFBHERE %A
FORBE TN 28 _
Retained profits REEF
Balance as at 31 March 2018 under HKAS 39 R-E— N\F=ZF=+—BEFESE]
39BN 2 a8 521,224
Reclassification of financial assets from available-for- & RIEEMAHEHEREEH DEE
sale investments to financial assets at fair value ERBREATEEINEZCMEE
through profit or loss (1,370)
Balance as at 1 April 2018 under HKFRS 9 RZZT—\FMNA—BAEBVHREEL
FIRET 2484 519,854
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

96

DISCLOSURES (continued)
(b) HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11 Construction

Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and

it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-

step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to

be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard
also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The disclosures are included in note
5 to the consolidated financial statements. As a result of the
application of HKFRS 15, the Group has changed the accounting
policy with respect to revenue recognition in note 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method, the
standard can be applied either to all contracts at the date of initial
application or only to contracts that are not completed at this date.
The Group has elected to apply the standard to contracts that are
not completed as at 1 April 2018.

The cumulative effect of the initial application of HKFRS 15 was
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits as at 1 April 2018. Therefore, the comparative information
was not restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 11,
HKAS 18 and related interpretations.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) (continued)
Set out below are the amounts by which each consolidated
financial statements line item was affected as at 1 April 2018 as a

22 EBERBEECEE @

(b) (&)

TXA#RRAE BN B RELERNES
FHR T N\FHA-BZ28EEH

result of the adoption of HKFRS 15: BRREEEATEZSHE
Increase/
(decrease)
#in, GEa)
HK$'000
FAT

Liabilities =R
Trade payables, deposits received and accrued ZHREMNFKE  BElRe R

expenses (Note) FEETF 2 (Bt 3E) (10,644)
Contract liabilities (Note) EHEE M) 10,644
Total liabilities BfEEE =

Set out below are the amounts by which each consolidated
financial statements line item was affected as at 31 March 2019
and for the year ended 31 March 2019 as a result of the adoption
of HKFRS 15. The adoption of HKFRS 15 has had no impact on
profit or loss and other comprehensive income or on the Group’s
operating, investing and financing cash flows. The first column
shows the amounts recorded under HKFRS 15 and the second
column shows what the amounts would have been had HKFRS 15
not been adopted:

AT S E SR E BT MREERIE 155K M e
RECB-NF=A=1+—RARBE_ZT-NF
SAZT - ALEFEZRRAMBEBRERE
FENDHE - RMNTEYBREELE 155
HERELHEBEHRRAIARENLE  RE
MRERSRELEZE - F—RBTRES
BB REERE 1S FEARNESER - £ _WE
s I RN E B I TS S RIS 15 5% A
FREVE R -
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22 EBEREEZEE @

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) (continued) (b) (#&)
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019: R-E—NWE=ZA=1+—B2HGaU%

98

I
Amounts prepared under
REUTERGRNSE
Increase/
HKFRS 15 Previous HKFRS (decrease)
EEMBRE BEEBI®
ZERIE 155 wEZEA #m, GRd)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Trade payables, deposits BoEMNFE B
received and accrued Be RERT
expenses (Note) s (E) 48,159 64,457 (16,298)
Contract liabilities (Note) SR8 E () 16,298 - 16,298
Total liabilities BfEBE 201,425 201,425 -

Note: Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Company recognised
consideration received from customers in advance as deposits received.
Under HKFRS 15, the amount is classified as contract liabilities.

Therefore, upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Company reclassified
HK$10,644,000 from deposits received to contract liabilities as at 1 April
2018 in relation to the consideration received from customers in advance

as at 1 April 2018.

As at 31 March 2019, under HKFRS 15, HK$16,298,000 was reclassified
from deposits received to contract liabilities.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Definition of a Business?

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Leases!
Insurance Contracts®
Definition of Material?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement'
Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23!

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
ks No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

BERBREEREIR

(FA)
BERBREEREIR
(FA)

BERBRELERFE 105
REE G ERF 285
(ZF——%) (E71A)

BERBRELERFE 165

BERBRELERFE 175

BRI EAFIRRER
BETERIE 85 (BATK)

BEETHERF 9%

CoES)
EEEiIENE28%
CoES)

5 (ERBBRERE

RE®)-REE3R
—E-LFE_F—+F
B FEH#

—T-NF—A—

T-TF—A—

T —F—A—

2.3 BIEME MR EN T BB IR
B

AEBWENZESRE
R M ARERZFTET &

e

MBRREABTIIEHE
RIETEBUBRESRE

EBEH?
ABRWEZIEFEN
#it
REZHABERAZEE
PEAZEELET TN
HE'

REEH

EAZER’

SR AR

REZRAREETFEEZ
R
FiRREE T REERE

EEMBREEREIR
EAMBREEAE
% EAGEAR 128
REBEIEAE23H
CHESK

B2 B 2 MR

sk % Bts 2 R ARG

Rz kRnz FERRE

¢ 1w AR HESE 5% ) AE 2K B AR - (B TR

BEHERNARBEZ BEBUBREER 2HE—

FERMANT o

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019 F i 99



2.3

100

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on the
definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated
set of activities and assets to be considered a business, it must include,
at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A business
can exist without including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs
and acquired substantive processes together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed
the definition of outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair value
concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in
dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or
loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate
or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion of a
broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However,
the amendments are available for adoption now.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term leases.
At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability
to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing
the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-
of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless the
right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment property in HKAS
40, or relates to a class of property, plant and equipment to which the
revaluation model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased
to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease
payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest
expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease liability
upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term
and change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors
will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as
in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases and finance leases.
HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures
than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using
either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019. The Group plans to adopt
the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 to recognise the cumulative effect
of initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits at 1 April 2019 and will not restate the comparatives. In addition,
the Group plans to apply the new requirements to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and measure the lease
liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the Group's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application. The right-of-use asset will be measured at the amount of the
lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position immediately before the date of initial application.
The Group plans to use the exemptions allowed by the standard on
lease contracts whose lease terms end within 12 months as of the date
of initial application. As disclosed in note 36(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, at 31 March 2019, the Group had future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate of
HK$1,871,000. Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, certain amounts included
therein may need to be recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities. The Group is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16.
Further analysis will be needed to determine the amount of new right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities to be recognised, including but not limited
to, incremental borrowing rate to be applied for different leases.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material if it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the primary
users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 April 2020. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of HKFRS
9 only includes interests in an associate or joint venture to which the
equity method is applied and does not include long-term interests that
in substance form part of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture, to which the equity method has not been applied. Therefore, an
entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including the impairment
requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term interests.
HKAS 28 is then applied to the net investment, which includes the long-
term interests, only in the context of recognising losses of an associate
or joint venture and impairment of the net investment in the associate
or joint venture. The Group expects to adopt the amendments on 1
April 2019 and will assess its business model for such long-term interests
based on the facts and circumstances that exist on 1 April 2019 using the
transitional requirements in the amendments. The Group also intends to
apply the relief from restating comparative information for prior periods
upon adoption of the amendments.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current
and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”).
The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope
of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers
uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the assumptions an entity makes
about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how
an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers
changes in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use of hindsight or
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment
to the opening equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group expects to adopt
the interpretation from 1 April 2019. The interpretation is not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which
it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of
the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture
or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method. In
all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or
joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment
and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, certain available-for- sale
investments and equity investments and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial assets
and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person

(0}

(ii)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(0}

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

an entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 2% - 3%
Leasehold improvements 20% - 33',%
Furniture, fittings and office equipment 20% - 33',%
Plant and machinery 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties,
the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting is its fair value
at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of
change in use, and any difference at that date between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as movements
in the asset revaluation reserve. On disposal of a revalued asset, the
relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuation is transferred to retained profits as a movement in
reserves.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Club memberships

The Group’s club memberships are stated at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, on an individual
basis.

Trademarks and customer relationships

Trademarks and customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of five years.

Mobile application

Mobile application is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of five
years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest element,
to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature
are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at
cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant
and equipment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April 2018)” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018) (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at
fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value profit or loss are also recognised as other income in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any dividends
or interest earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable
before 1 April 2018)" below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition and
only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018) (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans
and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial assets
in unlisted equity investments. Equity investments classified as available
for sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investments revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investments revaluation reserve to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding
the available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable before 1
April 2018)" below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these financial
assets due to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets if management has the ability and intention to hold the
assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category, the
fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new
amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest
rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018 and policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and policies under HKAS
39 applicable before 1 April 2018) (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for Expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

24 FESHHEERE@m

RIEBIAETHMEE(B-Z—-/\FNA
—AEEAZEBYBREEREIR
HNZBER_-_ZE—N\FHNA—-HAE
RzEBETEREIIRET Z2BXR)
(%)

DERTABEL2REHERELE  NRZEE
ZEEHSRENEETWERKENRELIR
BEEMEPIREESE -

THEERE(BE-T-—N\FHA—H
RERAZEBVBREEREIRET
Z R
AEEBRLH W IFZEBBHER N FEETIR
MABEH TARMEERR (BHEES
B WEE  BHEEBEIDARES OERN
MENReRERASERARRNAERS
MEZRNEZRAEE  BMEAERMNERA
AR - AR SR E R BIEE HIRKE
RE D BB HEMIS A ERYMBHNRERE
FEMEENREEMASNRDRE -

—RI*E

TREME B RN W (B R BRIE TSR - 3L B VIR
REFERRY EBREEMOEERRTE
BHEREEERERR T @A AR L LR
ENEHERNEEBEMEL (T @EAE
HEEER) - e NS ERELCEEEM
MEERRME  THABELEENEH R
#HTRERFEHANTRREREEBEBREAIRER
BE(2HEHEEER)

REREDH  AEEFEAVITHB RS H
TANEERBRETEAREM - B EHE
B ARELBRBERNERTAELED
RERERNTHEAENEMTAELEZOR
B YRR ABEKRARB NNIERTEEA
BHABRRAIXKHER BEEBENMAELE
£t

FEBEA DNRERHORBRASTER
BH - WA EBTFERT - MABRNBE
BHRER - fE 3 R A R B A S E %
AT - A ETA T R MIREIR IR A K
WF  BIARERTRASRAESTEL -
SRAENEARENTRES WRERER
3 o

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019 F i 117



24

118

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018) (continued)

General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage2 -

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured

at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes
in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018) (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that an
investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective
evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against
the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 April 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April
2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or
payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, interest-bearing
bank borrowings, finance lease payables and financial guarantee
obligation.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1
April 2018)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in ‘Impairment of
financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)";
and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 April 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April
2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKAS 39 applicable before
1 April 2018)

A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair
value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of (i) the amount
of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and includes all
costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is based on
the estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks and other
financial institutions, including term deposits, which are not restricted as
to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

3 when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

3 when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

3 in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes assets and deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group a
significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April 2018)

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(@)  Sale of products
Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the products.

(b)  Provision of services
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised at the point in
time when the services was rendered.

Other income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Trademark licence income is recognised when the trademark is used.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of

the dividend can be measured reliably.

Management fee income is recognised when the service is rendered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 April 2018)
(continued)
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on
the following bases:

(a)

(b)

(0)

(d)

(e)

from the sale of products, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

trademark licence income, when the trademark is used; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment
has been established.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 April 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to
a customer for which the Group has received a consideration (or an
amount of consideration that is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays the consideration before the Group transfers goods or services
to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is
made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company and one of its subsidiaries operate share option schemes
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial model, further details of which are given in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit
expenses, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant
date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised.
Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if the
original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based
payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the
Group's employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China, Singapore, Korea and Indonesia are required to participate
in pension schemes operated by the respective local municipal
governments. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the pension schemes. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the pension
schemes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company’s memorandum and articles of associate grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from
the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a property
generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets held by
the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
If these portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the unused tax losses can be
utilised. Recognition primarily involves judgement regarding the future
performance of the particular legal entity or tax group in which the
deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety of other factors are also
evaluated in considering whether there is convincing evidence that it is
probable that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will ultimately
be realised, such as the existence of taxable temporary differences, tax
planning strategies and the periods in which estimated tax losses can be
utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets and related financial
models and budgets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and to the extent that there is insufficient convincing evidence that
sufficient taxable profits will be available within the utilisation periods
to allow utilisation of the tax losses carried forward, the asset balance
will be reduced and charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 March 2019 was
approximately HK$471 million (2018: approximately HK$417 million).
Further details are contained in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar properties,
the Group considers information from a variety of sources, including:

(@  current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those differences;
and

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties (continued)

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March 2019 was
HK$125,798,000 (2018: HK$125,673,000). Further details, including
the key assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity
analysis, are given in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of trade receivables, deposits and other receivables
The Group makes impairment provision for trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of
these receivables. Impairment provision is made for these receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires the use
of judgement and estimates, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each debtor. Where the expectation on the
recoverability of these receivables is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of these receivables and
impairment provision in the periods in which such estimate has been
changed. The aggregate carrying amount of trade receivables as at
31 March 2019 was HK$70,937,000 (2018: HK$67,967,000). The
aggregate carrying amount of deposits and other receivables as at 31
March 2019 was HK$39,835,000 (2018: HK$21,053,000).

Provision for inventories

The Group’s management reviews the inventory ageing analysis
periodically, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for sales. The Group
carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product basis at the end
of each reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving items through management’s estimation of the net realisable
value for such obsolete and slow-moving items based primarily on
the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. The aggregate
carrying amount of the Group’s inventories as at 31 March 2019 was
HK$62,219,000 (2018: HK$160,176,000).

Useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group amortises its intangible assets with a finite useful life on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
lives reflect management’s estimate of the period that the Group intends
to derive future economic benefits from the use of these intangible
assets. The carrying amount of other intangible assets at 31 March 2019
was HK$4,234,000 (2018: HK$4,160,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurement of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

When the fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair
values are measured using valuation technigues including the use of
market comparable and other valuation techniques commonly used by
other market participants. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Further details of these valuations are given in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and has four reportable operating
segments as follows:

(@  the semiconductor distribution segment engages in the sale and
distribution of electronic components;

(b)  the consumer electronic product and brand omni-channel
business segment engages in the design, development and sale of
electronic products, and brand management, brand licensing and
product sourcing services;

(©)  the venture capital segment engages in the investments in listed/
unlisted equity and debt investments with an ultimate objective
of obtaining capital gains on investee’s equity listing or, in some
circumstances, prior to listing. It also includes investments in real
estate, managed funds, convertible bonds and listed bonds; and

(d)  the others segment mainly comprises the Group’s internet social
media business.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure
of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before tax except that
bank interest income, dividend income from listed investments, rental
income, share of profits and losses of associates and joint ventures, gain/
loss on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment, impairment
of property, plant and equipment, impairment of other receivables,
changes in fair value of investment properties, finance costs and
unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude investments in joint ventures and associates,
tax recoverable, pledged time deposits, cash and cash equivalents and
other unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities, interest-
bearing bank borrowings, finance lease payables, financial guarantee
obligation and other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4, REHTEE @

Consumer
electronic
product and
brand omni-
Semiconductor channel Venture
distribution business capital Others Total
HEEET
EmRmE
YRR 2REEK B 2ty it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TR TR TER
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-Z-h%=AH
=t-HLEFE
Segment revenue ik 16
Sales to external customers MRER ZHE 1,602,398 88,525 - 7.873 1,698,796
Other losses HinEE - - (23,922) - (23,922)
Total KR 1,602,398 88,525 (23,922) 7,873 1,674,874
Reconciliation: ¥R
Add: Other losses (note) i Eiegsa () 23,922
Revenue as presented in the RERBEX 22 W
consolidated statement of
profit or loss 1,698,796
Segment results PIEE (14,319) (23,048) (28,250) (10,216) (75,833)
Reconciliation: ik
Bank interest income HRITFIBHA 46
Rental income HEHA 5328
Share of profits of joint ventures 254 & EHEF 166,655
Share of losses of associates AeBEARER (303)
Loss on disposal of items of HENE BERREEEZ
property, plant and equipment 518 (1,287)
Impairment of property, nE BERRERE
plant and equipment (369)
Impairment of other receivables  E At I FIE 2 W (E (7,619)
Changes in fair value of RENMEATEELZS
investment properties 1,515
Unallocated expenses RAOBRES (26,048)
Finance costs RMEXA (6,478)
Profit before tax B AR A 55,607
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

138

4, RBREHTEE @)

Consumer
electronic
product and
brand omni-
Semiconductor channel Venture
distribution business capital Others Total
EERET
B R
FEESH PREES =l At it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THL THT TAT FET
Year ended 31 March 2018 BE-ZT-\%=R
=t+-RALFE
Segment revenue g1 €
Sales to external customers MNRER ZHE 1,592,122 66,847 820 3,089 1,662,878
Other revenue Hit iz - - 71,478 - 71,478
Total e 1,592,122 66,847 72,298 3,089 1,734,356
Reconciliation: B
Less: Other revenue (note) Bt (FI3E) (71,478)
Revenue as presented in the A BRREN 2 e
consolidated statement of
profit or loss 1,662,878
Segment results DHEE 4,012) (4,699) 67,975 (10,134) 49,130
Recondiliation: i
Bank interest income H|ITHEWA 586
Dividend income from listed EREZREBRA
investments 15
Rental income Al A 5,860
Share of profits of joint ventures & & EHEF 160,199
Share of profits of associates Akt AN 4438
Gain on disposal of items of HENE  BERFZEERA 2
property, plant and equipment & 636
Impairment of other receivables  E b FEYIFIE 2 R (B (20,740)
Changes in fair value of BRENELNTEBZEY
investment properties 6,716
Unallocated expenses RABRAZ (34,423)
Finance costs A A (4,737)
Profit before tax PR AT R A 163,690
Note: Other revenue/(losses) in segment revenue was classified as other income and fsE : pEUkE ARz Hiblezs/ (B518) B ALZA R

gains, fair value gains/(losses) of equity investments and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and gain on disposal of an available-for-sale

investment in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4, REHTEE @

Consumer
electronic
product and
brand omni-
Semiconductor channel Venture
distribution business capital Others Total
HEEET
Emkmg
YLERAH SREEY A& Hfth @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THT AT TET FAr
31 March 2019 —E-hE=ZA=+-H
Segment assets STHEE 624,028 120,013 155,963 6,311 906,315
Recondiliation: iR
Elimination of intersegment B3P SR
receivables (453,664)
Investments in joint ventures REEREIRE 723,034
Investments in associates NN g 1,698
Corporate and other unallocated AR REfADEEE
assets 139,635
Total assets BERAE 1,317,018
Segment liabilities PBEE 52,022 200,834 204,385 54,906 512,147
Recondiliation: iR
Elimination of intersegment B3 D SN R
payables (453,664)
Corporate and other unallocated AR REMADEEE
liabilities 142,942
Total liabilities BfEaE 201,425
31 March 2018 —“Z-)\#=ZA=1+—H
Segment assets SHEE 638,601 115,515 124,184 13,318 891,618
Recondiliation: iR
Elimination of intersegment 88 5 2P e kA
receivables (369,065)
Investments in joint ventures REEGEZRE 619,544
Investments in associates i AN A 1,148
Corporate and other unallocated AR REMADEEE
assets 262,554
Total assets BERE 1,405,799
Segment liabilities AHEE 111,598 173,523 162,156 41,445 488,722
Reconciliation: R
Elimination of intersegment HE D BE RS ZE
payables (369,065)
Corporate and other unallocated A AR EMASEEE
liabilities 199,416
Total liabilities BfREE 319,073
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RBREHTEE @)

Other segment information: Hitt pE &R :
Consumer
electronic
product and
brand omni-
Semiconductor channel Venture
distribution business capital Others Total
HEEET
EmRmE
F¥ERSH PREEK A& Hity @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR TR AT TAT
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-E2-h§=A=1-H
LEE
Depreciation & 2,180 549 1,112 479 4,320
Amortisation of other intangible ~ E A&/ & & 2 # 54
assets 19 - - - 19
Provision for impairment of REZRERE
inventories 3,048 4,878 - - 7,926
Impairment of trade receivables, [EWNE SRR 2 REFE
net 2,986 2,425 - 100 5,511
Impairment of property, plantand  #1% + B &% 2 5l E
equipment 116 253 - - 369
Reversal of impairment of other ~ A& EE ZREKE
intangible assets (387) - - - (387)
Impairment of other receivables  E 1 B IR 2 RifE 7,619
Impairment of investments in joint A& &b % 2 & 2 {E
ventures 77,261
Capital expenditure* BAHY * 736 1,698 2,600 544 5,578
Year ended 31 March 2018 HE-Z-/\$=A=t—H
FFE
Depreciation e 2,093 418 871 241 3,623
Amortisation of other intangible  E & A E 2 4
assets 19 = = = 19
Reversal of provision of inventories 77 & 2 %2l & (1,037) @71) = = (1,308)
Impairment of trade receivables,  JEWNE ZER 2 REFE
net 1,748 562 - 20 2,330
Recovery of bad debts BRI E 311) = = = 311)
Provision for impairment of other  E & B & 2 RE B
intangible assets 381 - - - 381
Impairment of other receivables 1 B IR B 2 R 20,740
Impairment of investments in REEhEZREZRE
joint ventures 50,412
Gain on disposal of an HE—HAHEEREY
available-for-sale investment g = = (128,918) - (128,918)
Capital expenditure* BARSL * 1,919 749 - 7,013 9,681
o Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment. * EARAFASYBIEAEYME  BENERE -
AV Concept Holdings Limited
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4.

Geographical information i & & R

(@) Revenue from external customers (a) XRENMRBEFEzWSE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E—)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Hong Kong B 419,145 333,363
Singapore s 1,277,682 1,326,013
Korea [ 67 3,502
Taiwan =0 1,550 =
Indonesia ENfE 352 =
1,698,796 1,662,878

The revenue information above is based on the locations in which
the sales originated.

e

bt U e B R AR IR 8H 6 B A P AE M B

(b) Non-current assets (b) FRBEE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Hong Kong B 768,053 663,035
Mainland China ellEilnpiu) 98,458 98,220
Singapore s 26,615 27,479
Korea [ 658 7,846
Indonesia EIfE 574 —
894,358 796,580

The non-current assets information above is based on the locations
of the assets and excludes financial instruments.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 March 2019, no revenue from the Group’s sales
to a single customer amounted to 10% or above of the Group’s total
revenue (2018: Nil).

LRSERBEEEHZEEMETE -

ERTEEERIA-

FBXERFZEHR

BE-Z-NF=ZA=T—RHIFE  HEX
BARER—RE-FFMEHEZWRSIGAR
SEKRBFI0%IAL(ZTE-NEF &) -
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. Uk - Httl A R W=
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: W~ A RK S 2 AT
Revenue W =
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Revenue from contracts with customers EEANNKE
Semiconductor distribution FEp N 1,602,398 1,592,122
Consumer electronic product sales and HERETERHEER
brand omni-channel business mEERBER 88,525 66,847
Venture capital Bll% - 820
Others Hi 7,873 3,089
1,698,796 1,662,878
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHZWEH
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) WRmERBHA
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE-ZE-hE=HA=+—HILLEE
Consumer
electronic
product and
brand
Semiconductor  omni-channel Venture
Segments distribution business capital Others Total
HEEST
ERRag
28 YERIH PREEE fR Hity @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR T T TR
Total revenue from contracts with RERPEN WEEE
customers 1,602,398 88,525 - 1873 1,698,796
Geographical markets BBMS
Hong Kong BE 332,649 78,623 - 1873 419,145
Singapore AT 1,269,682 8,000 - - 1,277,682
Korea #H 67 - - = 67
Taiwan =) - 1,550 - - 1,550
Indonesia Elfe - 352 - - 352
Total revenue from contracts with REXPAEN WEEE
customers 1,602,398 88,525 - 1873 1,698,796
Timing of revenue recognition WEBZNRE
Transferred at a point in time REBERSEY 1,602,398 88,525 - 1873 1,698,796
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in
the current reporting period that were included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised
from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

5.

W - A KRR @
Mok - HiM A RIS AT ¢ (48)

REFEFEH2ZWE (F)

() W@EBERSAEGE
TRIITRAREHRERZ RS,
ZEHEEHABREHVANABELEE
EHRERNBEOEEPER

2018
b AN
HK$'000
FAET
Revenue recognised that was included in contract ~ BERFT ARG BN L EEP RS
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:
Sale of products $HE E W 7,682

(ii) Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods
and payment is generally due within 30 days of issuance, except
for well-established customers, where the terms are extended to
over 60 days.

Provision of services

The performance obligation is satisfied when the services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days of issuance,
except for well-established customers, where the terms are
extended to over 60 days.

(i) BHEE
FEBRBOBEEERBRAT

HEEm
BHEBEFEINEREERRNTBE
EELRIORAEN @ EEERENT
FPERIN HHREREBB6E0X °

FEH IR

J& #) B {2 BB 12 (1 AR 76 B R & A I (N
FHEBEHRIORAEN  HEEEREFN
BEPBRIN HHRIEREEBO0OX °
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: (continued)

W - EUA R K& @
Wizt - H AU A RIS AT ¢ (48)

Other income and gains H A & Wz
2019 2018
—E-hE —T—-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Other income and gains H A R
Bank interest income RITHAE A 46 586
Interest income on convertible bonds AR E S 2 A B A 1,184 2,324
Interest income on listed bond investments = {&53& & & F B WA 2,876 =
Recovery of bad debts I B3z B - 311
Dividend income from listed equity FARAKRE 2 BREWRA
investments 376 15
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - BWERBEERZ
plant and equipment Uy 2 - 636
Trademark licence income [GEEEE TN 204 272
Rental income e WA 5,328 5,860
Foreign exchange differences, net M H Z 5 H 1,532 3,074
Management fee income from a joint SETPEBTREBRA
venture 358 =
Others HAt 2,833 964
14,737 14,042
AV Concept Holdings Limited
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

6. BRFLANREA
REEZBRADEFD NG (GHA) -

2019 2018
—E-AF —E—N\FE
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
s FBx FAT
Cost of inventories sold*** SH AR Fxx 1,661,774 1,622,128
Provision for impairment/(reversal of FERERE
provision) of inventories*** (B fEfE) <> 7,926 (1,308)
Depreciation neE 12 4,320 3,623
Amortisation of other intangible assets** =t 4 2 & & 2 # i ** 15 19 19
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of  E b 2 & &R (E (B E)
other intangible assets* B 15 (387) 381
Impairment of financial assets, net: BREE B
Impairment of trade receivables, net BWE SERREFE 21 5,511 2,330
Impairment of other receivables H i FE WK IE 2 BB 7,619 20,740
Minimum lease payments under operating & ¥ & v &K & %
leases 4,930 2,902
Auditor’s remuneration ZHEH S 2,031 2,013
Staff costs (including directors’ EIRA(BIEESEME—
remuneration - note 8): MEES)
Wages, salaries and other allowances ~ T & ~ & & H =284 56,632 57,529
Pension scheme contributions RIRE T2 1,981 1,990
58,613 59,519
Fair value (gains)/losses, net: ATFEE (W) BiEFE:
Equity investments at fair value through  #EBIBSIE A FEEDIER
profit or loss ZRAREE
— held for trading —REEE - (555)
— designated as such upon initial — R ERRIEE R
recognition L 28 R - 59,164
Fair value losses on financial assets at fair BB EZIZ AT EENEZ
value through profit or loss, net EREE AT EAEEBER
HEE 28,501 =
Foreign exchange differences, net HNEE ZFE F RE (1,532) (3,074)
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale ~ H& — ARt HERE ~
investment Uz = (128,918)
Impairment of investments in joint REEREZIREZRE*
ventures* 77,261 50,412
Gain on derecognition of financial RIEERBEREE
guarantee obligation* W5 * (77,261) (50,412)
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant &Y - KE &R EEE
and equipment* 2R 1,287 =
Impairment of property, plant and M - BE R ERE*
equipment* 12 369 =
Direct operating expenses (include repairs W B EFREL 2 HE
and maintenance), arising on rental- LB (BIEEE R
earning investment properties =) 650 881

& These balances are included in “Other expenses, net” on the face of the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

xx This balance is included in “Administrative expenses” on the face of the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

***  These balances are included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

* ZERBB TG AR RRR [ EMBEMFE] -

> ZEBDRARERERZITRER] -

o ZEBBIRIAGERERZHEKA] -
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FINANCE COSTS 7. BERAK
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMEXRERZDNAET :
2019 2018
—E-hE —E—\E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Interest on bank borrowings RITERZFE 6,306 4,605
Interest on finance lease BMEHREZFE 172 132
6,478 4,737
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 8. EEFBMRANFMBESZES
PAID EMPLOYEES
Directors’ remuneration EEEHM

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Rig ER A BB QR &G FE383(1)a)
(0) * (O R () ERAR (KBEEFNIER) AP
F2HMFEBELFRNESTHFHOT :

2019 2018
=E-NEF —F-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
Fees fiake 300 300
Other emoluments: HEb e
Salaries, housing and other allowances, e FEREAMERNAR
and benefits in kind EWHz= 14,220 23,185
Pension scheme contributions RIRE AT SR 210 371
14,430 23,556
14,730 23,856
AV Concept Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 8.
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

(a)

Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the
year are as follows:

(%;E%FE}H&EE&%‘F@H%%Z{EE

EEFM (8
() BYFHTES
FAXNTELIFMTETZHRESMT -

2019 2018

—E-NEF T —-N\F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHERT FHET

Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBs, Jp BRAEEE 1 - sBs - AT+ 100 100
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman Charles Edward Chapman %t 4 100 100
Mr. Wong Ka Kit ERESLE 100 100
300 300

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2018: Nil).

FRALEEMENBLIFNTES M
B(ZE-N\F: 8&) o
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 8.

PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(b)

(%;E%FE}H&EEQ%EH%EZEE

Directors’ remuneration (continued) EEHM(E)
Executive directors (b) HMITE=E
Salaries,
housing and
other
allowances, Pension
and benefits scheme Total
in kind contributions remuneration
Fe EER
H 2R AR EBiRkE
BEYF= sTEIH R e k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
2019 —E-hEF
Executive directors: HITESE
Dr. So Yuk Kwan BiEiE L 9,250 39 9,289
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng BEELE 2,765 138 2,903
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny BRES A A 2,205 33 2,238
14,220 210 14,430
2018 —ZE-N\F
Executive directors: HITES:
Dr. So Yuk Kwan i giE L 12,344 43 12,387
Mr. So Chi On (Note) A kA (MEE) 4,881 203 5,084
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng BmEELE 4,370 107 4,477
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny BREREE 1,590 18 1,608
23,185 371 23,556

Note:

Mr. So Chi On resigned as an executive director of the Company and its

subsidiaries on 26 December 2017.

There was no other arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2018: Nil).
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Annual Report 2019 F3R

Mz MELAER-FT—LF+=-A=+7AH
BEARAREMBATZHITES -

FABECAEHRESTREXRERR
ERFM BT (T —\F: &) -



DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 8.
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2018:
four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out above. Details
of the remuneration of the remaining two highest paid employees (2018:
one) for the year are as follows:

%?ﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%%%%ZEé

EUFHES2EE

FR - AuFHESBERE= (TN
) EE - EHBFIEEN L - FRE
BRLFHEe2EE (ZE—N\F: —f)zZ
HENFREDT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —=—)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - EBE R E WA 2,958 1,879

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

FN U THER NSRS IEEEREZA
T :

Number of employees

EEAM

2019 2018

—®—h%E =

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 T 1 -
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7 2 2,000,000 7% 7T =

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 T £ 2,500,000 7% 7T 1 —

2 1

INCOME TAX 9.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group did
not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Frig®

Pl 5 7 B B0 P 4 £ 7 4 2 A O AR B
WA SRR BRI RIS - At
PSR B30 ) 2 B IR T A S A T A 1
AR 2B R E -

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\EF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHTT

Current — Elsewhere BIVER — E fh 3th [

Charge for the year FARZH 292 856
Deferred (note 30) HRIE (MI5E30) 122 (55)
Total tax charge for the year FABIBAS LB 414 801
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INCOME TAX (continued) 9.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge at the effective
tax rate is as follows:

e @
RARATREASSHERD T A EEE
ZETB R E 2 BB AR FIER 2 BB X
RRERB R E BB HRET -

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Profit before tax B 5 A1 A 55,607 163,690
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% BEERE16.5% (2T — )\F -
(2018: 16.5%) 16.5%) 5T & 2 Hi1E 9,175 27,009
Effect of different tax rates in other HEfeAEEREER 2 &
jurisdictions (138) 258
Profits and losses attributable to joint AR R E QR ISR &
ventures and associates 518 (27,448) (26,507)
Income not subject to tax DA WA (3,035) (24,408)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR X 9,792 13,494
Tax losses not recognised RERZBIBER 11,938 12,232
Tax losses utilised from previous periods B Fi i@ 4+ Hifd 2 TR I8 & 18 - (1,229)
Others Efh 130 (48)
Tax charge for the year FAKIEBES L 414 801

The share of tax attributable to joint ventures and associates amounting
to HK$35,912,000 (2018: HK$31,969,000) and nil (2018: Nil),
respectively, is included in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures
and associates” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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10. DIVIDEND

1.

10. RS

2019 2018
—E-hEF —FT-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Proposed final dividend — HK$0.02 BREAHRE -8R EER0.02
(2018: HK$0.02) per ordinary share BIL(ZZ—/)\F :00287T) 18,173 18,463

At the Board meeting held on 26 June 2019, the Board resolved
to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02 (2018:
HK$0.02) per share for the year ended 31 March 2019. The proposed
final dividend is not reflected as dividend payable in the consolidated
financial statements until it is approved by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 909,704,962 (2018:
927,256,568) in issue during the year.

The Group had no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue for the
current year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is
the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on
the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares
into ordinary shares.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on:

11.

RZZE—NFAAZTAABIZESEER
F EEeRAERRNBE_Z—NF=A
=t —HLEFEZRARESR0.02ET (=
T—)\F :00287) - BHEARBREL KR
EARREERRBES KNS LER T ERER
AU HHRE AR AEMES

RRTEEARIEERER

BREXRBFNSEDRBEARLRESR AEMN
FREMNMFRNEETLTRBR Z NEFHE
909,704,962 J& (==& — )\ 4F : 927,256,568 %)

AEERAERYECETRABCHEZEL
Rl

BREERN SR REARRAHEE ARIGF
MEFEE - BN E 2 TR INEF IR
R ESRERRMNZ FAE HETE BRI
B ARBREE[/ITERL A A LEEH
BREZEARARETRARRDRERTZER
BN 8

FREAREERNTIREBEA TRIEFHE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Earnings BF
Profit attributable to owners of the AU ESRERNREERF 2
Company, used in the basic and diluted ~ ZANA Bl A A FE(RE A
earnings per share calculation 57,278 163,267
AV Concept Holdings Limited
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

152

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (continued)

1. RRFHEEAEEERER @)

Number of shares

RHEE
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\E
Shares & 17
Weighted average number of ordinary AU ERERBHZFA
shares in issue during the year used in BRI RARME T
the basic earnings per share calculation 909,704,962 927,256,568
Effect of dilution — weighted average BE e — LmRINE T8
number of ordinary shares:
Share options AR - 181,238
909,704,962 927,437,806

Note: On 19 September 2017, 154,588,883 shares of HK$0.10 each were issued
under bonus issue on the basis of one bonus share for every five existing shares.
Details of the bonus issue were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 19 September 2017. In determining the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31 March 2018, the 154,588,883
shares issued by way of capitalisation from reserves have been regarded as if

these shares were in issue since 1 April 2017.
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RZZF—tFALATIB  NARRSHEAR
AR ERE — RAR 2 B RIBALRET
%17154,588,883 R BARE H0.10/8& 7T 2 AR 17 °
ARBTZHABANRARABHAA-_ZT—tF
NATHAZAH REEEE-ZT—/\F=A
=+—BIFEEBEITLRRZ NETHE -
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12.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y%  BERRZE
Leasehold Land and Furniture,
and and buildings fittings
buildings (outside Leasehold and office Motor Plant and
(Hong Kong)* ~ Hong Kong) ~ improvements equipment vehicles machinery Total
THRET
AELHR (BENSN G £ER
BF(FR) BE): HENREE  HOERB hE  HERHE fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn Tn Tin Tén T#n Tién
31 March 2019 Z2-NEZA=t-R
At31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018:  R=F-E=A=F-AR
“3-\¥MA-R:
Cost A 39,567 15,875 1210 6,845 12,234 1163 82,954
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (12,053) (4,369) (6,958) (6,130) (1153) (236) (36,899)
Net carrying amount RETE 27,514 11,506 312 5 5,081 927 46,055
At 1 April 2018, net of accumulated  R=F—-/\FEA-A "
depreciation TR 2iHE 21514 11,506 Mn 715 5,081 97 46,055
Additions hE - - 917 1385 3216 - 5578
Disposals HE - (6,257) (481) ® - - (6,746)
Depreciation (note 6) & (Wiste) (923) (695) (357) (415) (1,697) 233) (4320)
Impairment (note 6) WE(HEe) - - (253) - (116) - (369)
Exchange realignment EiA% - (499) - @ (101) = (604)
At31 March 2019, net of RZE-NE=R=T-R"
accumulated depreciation NBZitHE 26,591 4,055 138 1673 6,443 694 39,594
At31 March 2019: RZE-NE=ZA=T-R:
Cost A 39,567 8,909 7,585 7,839 15,386 1163 80,449
Accumulated depreciation 218 (12,976) (4,854) (7.447) (6,166) (8,943) (469) (40,855)
Net carrying amount RETE 26,591 4,055 138 1673 6,443 694 39,504
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

12.9%  BERRKE@®

Leasehold Land and Furniture,
and and buildings fittings
buildings (outside Leasehold and office Motor Plant and
{Hong Kong)* Hong Kongl*  improvements equipment vehicles machinery Total
THRET
RELHR (BB ffil- RER
BT (&) Rt HEMERE  BAER N ERREB 2t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T TiEx
31 March 2018 ZZ-\¥ZA=1-A
At 1 April 2017; RZE-tEMA-A:
Cost A 39,567 8,562 6,942 6,657 13,333 643 75,709
Accumulated depreciation ZiHhE (11,130) (3419 (6,612) (6,529) (8,726) (32) (36,448)
Net carrying amount REFE 28437 5143 330 128 4,607 616 39,261
At 1 April 2017, net of accumulated  R=F—+FMA-A "
depreciation Il S 28437 5,143 330 128 4607 616 39,261
Additions hE - 6,368 328 753 1717 515 9,681
Disposals & - = = 2) = = 2
Depreciation (note 6) & (Wiste) 923) (635) (346) (173) (1,342 (204) (3623)
Exchange realignment EXHE - 630 - 9 9 - 738
At31 March 2018, net of RZE-NE=A=+-R"
accumulated depreciation NBZitHE 27514 11,506 3n 715 5,081 927 46,05
At31 March 2018; RZE-\E=A=1-R:
Cost A 39,567 15,875 7210 6,845 12,234 1,163 82,954
Accumulated depreciation 2ihE (12,053) (4,369) (6,958) (6,130) (7.153) (236) (36,899)
Net carrying amount REFE 21514 11,506 312 75 5,081 927 46,055
# As the land lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and # AR T HAENREEE T REFHHE A E

buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

The net carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
held under finance leases included in the total amount of motor vehicles

at 31 March 2019 was HK$5,285,000 (2018: HK$3,370,000).

At 31 March 2019, the Group’s property, plant and equipment with a
carrying value of HK$26,591,000 (2018: HK$27,514,000) were pledged

to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 27).
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13. REYE

2019 2018

—E-NF —ZE-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FHET

Carrying amount at beginning of year FHZRESHE 125,673 115,955
Changes in fair value of investment BREMERNTEBEZZD)

properties 1,515 6,716

Exchange realignment PE 5 % (1,390) 3,002

Carrying amount at end of year FRZEMESE 125,798 125,673

The Group's investment properties consist of one residential property in
Hong Kong, four office properties and several serviced apartments in
Mainland China and one residential property in Singapore. The directors
of the Company have determined that the investment properties consist
of three classes of asset, i.e., residential properties, office properties
and serviced apartments, based on the nature, characteristics and
risks of each property. The Group’s investment property in Hong Kong
was revalued on 31 March 2019 based on a valuation performed
by management with reference to recent market transactions at
HK$6,500,000. The Group’s investment properties in Shenzhen and
Chengdu were revalued on 31 March 2019 based on valuations
performed by Roma Appraisals Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuer, at HK$71,797,000 and HK$26,661,000, respectively.
The Group’s investment property in Singapore was revalued on 31 March
2019 based on valuation performed by THEO Property Consultants Pte.
Ltd., independent professionally qualified valuer, at HK$20,840,000.
Each year, the Group’s chief financial officer decides to appoint
which external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of
the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’s chief financial officer has discussions with the
valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation results when the
valuations are performed for annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 36(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included on
page 212.

REBZREMELREMNES 2 —BEED
¥ - RFBEAMZ MEHRAEMERSER
BRABARM R INE 2 —BEEME - K
NAEBHR  EREWEZHE - BEERA
B ZEREVEAEDA=LEEE  AFE=E
ME -  PREVERBRBAAE - AEBEUR
EAEZEREVERNERE2RIOIEMERS
EITHE R-_Z—NE=ZR=+—HEREA
6,500,000 7 7T ° 7N 52 B 7 7R 7R Il 2 Bk &R 2 1%
BYXBRBIEEEEREERMZE SR
ERARETHE RZZE—NF=ZA=+—
B % Bl & & & 71,797,000 JT K& 26,661,000
B AEBARFMEZIREMERB L
HE L B {HERNTHEO Property Consultants
Pte. Ltd. #71THE R -_Z—NE=A=+—H
F14/520,840,00075 7T - AL EEH B SEE
BEATZAZINEBEERM  BEUEAEEZ
VIEHEATINEB (A E - BUE RGBS A H
BE CBUERETHESIETE R FE
MIERMETHER  ASEEFEVBEER
HREEMTREERIRGEESR -

REMEDRBEXHERTE=7 £—F
BB IFRHNERE B HKRMEE36() °

BERARBREMFRZE—SHBHRNRFE 212
=0
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group’s investment properties:

13. REVE @)
A EBESERERE
THRIRAEBREYE Y AL BEFEZR
4% -

Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2019 using
R-ZE-HAE=A=+—H2Z

AT EEFERER
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SERT IS BARAEHE BEATABE
ZHE BWAE BWAE
(%5—18) (=) (=) a5t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET
Recurring fair value THFEZEE Y
measurement for: AV EERFE :
Residential properties FEME - - 27,340 27,340
Office properties ENES 7S - - 71,797 71,797
Serviced apartments REXAE - - 26,661 26,661
- - 125,798 125,798
Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2018 using
RZE—-N\F=A=+—H2
N EEERER
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
E RS BAAHER BEATABE
ZIR(E #wAE wAE
(B5—F) (F=FE) (F=FE) &5t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET
Recurring fair value THEIB 2 & BN
measurement for: ANV EERE :
Residential properties FEWE - - 27,453 27,453
Office properties BN YES - - 72,044 72,044
Serviced apartments REXAAE - = 26,176 26,176
- - 125,673 125,673
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FRN - F-RE_EATFEEFEZETES

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3

(2018: Nil).
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13. REVE w0

Fair value hierarchy (continued) NTEESRESE@®E

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of AERNTEESREBE=E 2 AV EE
the fair value hierarchy: S8R

Residential Office Serviced
properties properties apartments
FEmE WAEYE REXAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FAET

Carrying amount at 1 April 2017 R=ZF—tFWHA—HZ

RESH 24,915 67,688 23,352
Net gain from a fair value R A BERAER
adjustment recognised in RN EEFABERFE
the consolidated statement of
profit or loss 1,078 4,356 1,282
Exchange realignment PE 5 F 2 1,460 = 1,542
Carrying amount at 31 March  RZZE—N\F=A=+—HK
2018 and 1 April 2018 —ET-N\FMHA—HZER
k- 27,453 72,044 26,176
Net gain/(losses) from a fair value 454 B35 K AHER
adjustment recognised in AFEEFAERE
the consolidated statement (F#8) 558
of profit or loss 577 (247) 1,185
Exchange realignment PE 5 & (690) - (700)
Carrying amount at R-ZT—NAF=A=+—8
31 March 2019 ZEEEEHE 27,340 71,797 26,661
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13. REWE @)

AP EESREE @
REMFGERRZ GERTREZHAER

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs

to the valuation of investment properties: g
Valuation Significant Value/Range
techniques unobservable inputs (weighted average)
fRER T EXFUBEGAE BEEE (NEFY)
Residential property Market comparison Adjusted unit price HK$12,104
situated in Hong Kong approach (per square foot) (2018: HK$12,104)
UREBEEZEEYE 5 LB R HEE B (B 12,104 7T
(B¥AR) (ZZE—N\F : 12,1048 7T)
Residential property Market comparison Adjusted unit price SGD19,459
situated in Singapore approach (per square meter) (2018: SGD18,919)
RLRET I 2 EEWEE 5 LB R HEE BB 19,459 % 7T
(B¥7K) (ZZ—/\F : 18,9193 )
Office properties Market comparison Adjusted unit price RMB61,353
situated in Mainland China approach (per square meter) (2018: RMB59,954)
RFRE N AEDE 5 LB R HEE B B AR#61,3537T
(§FHK) (ZZ2-—N\%F:
AR#59,9547T)
Serviced apartments Market comparison Adjusted unit price RMB20,958
situated in Mainland China approach (per square meter) (2018: RMB20,000)
RFRENM 2 REXDE 5 LB R HEE B B AR#20,958 T
(§FHK) (ZZ2-—N\%F:
AR #20,0007T)

REBEMIGLLEL - MERTIGEEETHE
ERRBUABRAIELE - A2 RBE TS
BRZAIELBHERE - LBABERR 55
BZERAAELBMEZEREMR -G/
EREEELEE AR UG RMEER &
Mg BEREMABERSER -

Under the market comparison approach, the properties are valued on
the market basis assuming sales in their existing state with the benefit of
vacant possession and by making reference to comparable sales evidence
as available in the relevant markets. Comparison is based on prices
realised in actual transactions or asking prices of comparable properties.
Appropriate adjustments are then made to account for the differences
between such properties in terms of age, time, location, floor level and
other relevant factors.

KHEEMEREE L (T S E83UREY
EAFEEEE LA (T -

A significant increase (decrease) in the adjusted unit price would result
in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties.
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14. GOODWILL

14. BHE

2019 2018
—E-NF —T—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

At beginning and end of year: FURER :
Cost B AR 32,780 32,780
Accumulated impairment ZFHRE (32,780) (32,780)
Net carrying amount BRTE SRR - =

Impairment testing of goodwill and other intangible
assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets acquired through business
combination are allocated to the cash-generating unit of the
semiconductor distribution business and the mobile application
development business for impairment testing.

Semiconductor distribution business
Goodwill allocated to semiconductor distribution business was fully
impaired in previous years.

Mobile application development business
Goodwill allocated to mobile application development business was fully
impaired in previous years.

Key assumptions
Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
semiconductor distribution business and mobile application development
business in previous years. The following describes each key assumption
on which management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross margins
achieved in the year immediately before the budget year, increased for
expected efficiency improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant units.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on budgeted gross margins
and discount rates are consistent with external information sources.

BERAEMELEERENR

BREBAMKBZBELEMEBTEED D
REYEROHEBRFREREAFREER
ZHEEEBN - ERBERR -

FEBDHER
TEEFEROVHEBZHECNLE—FER
BURE -

FHRERRAMBER
DEEFHEREAFEER 2 HEENERE
FEZBURME -

FER/RR

Rt EBEFEFEROHEBT L FHRERRE
ARBEBERABERSEAMRRK - TXH
IR ERELAE L H IR 2R EBTRRAETITRE
BAZEBETERR

REENFE -EEREEMNEESREERF
ZEEREEREFEAN —FMIEZFHE
X FRABERBERTTARTBHTIZERE

MEE-FIRMREAHAMTRRABELZ
FrERBR LXK -

Ik

BEENERIEREEER
SRR E B HRIR— B o

Eokc EER
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15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

160

15. HttEBEEE

Club Customer Mobile
memberships Trademarks  relationships application Total
g8 [ EFBE FHEREA &3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THR TiEn TR iR
31 March 2019 ZE-AEZA=1-R
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018: RZE-N\E=A=1t-HEK
- \fmMA-A:
Cost AR 4,987 87 25,602 9,400 40,076
Accumulated amortisation and impairment  ET LAl E (827) (87) (25,602) (9,400) (35.916)
Net carrying amount REFE 4,160 - - - 4,160
Costat 1 April 2018, net of accumulated ~ R=F—/\FEA—AMRE -
amortisation and impairment NR2HERRAE 4,160 - - - 4,160
Disposal HE (261) - - = (261)
Reversal of provision (note 6) RO B4E (Mite) 387 = = = 387
Amortisation (note 6) B (o) (19) - - - (19)
Exchange realignment B A% (33) - - - (33)
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NF=A=1+-H 4,34 - - - 4,234
At31 March 2019: RZZ-NE=A=1+-8:
Cost AR 4,682 87 25,602 9,400 39,771
Accumulated amortisation and ZiHBERAE
impairment (448) (87) (25,602) (9,400) (35,537)
Net carrying amount RESE 4,234 - - - 4,234
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15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

15. HttBEREEE @)

Club Customer Mobile
memberships Trademarks relationships application Total
e% AR EPE%  FRERRES =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHL TR THEL T
31 March 2018 ZZ-\§=A=1-A
At 1 April 2017: RZZ2—tEMA-A:
Cost KA 3,837 87 24,931 9,400 38,255
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2t 8 8 L8 (426) (87) (24,931) (9,400) (34,844)
Net carrying amount REFE 3411 - - - 3411
Costat 1 April 2017, net of accumulated ~ R=F—tFWA—RMMA -
amortisation and impairment NR2HERRAE 3411 - - - 3411
Additions hE 1,321 = = - 1,321
Disposal HE (204) - - - (204)
Impairment (note 6) i (HizEe) (381) - - - (381)
Amortisation (note 6) (o) (19) = = = (19)
Exchange realignment TR 32 - - - 32
At 31 March 2018 R=E-\F=A=1—-H 4,160 - - - 4,160
At31 March 2018: RZZ-N\EZA=1+-H:
Cost AR 4,987 87 25,602 9,400 40,076
Accumulated amortisation and impairment  R& 8 85 KRB (827) 87) (25,602) (9,400) (35,916)
Net carrying amount REFE 4,160 - - - 4,160

In the current year, the impairment for club memberships were reversed
due to the increase in market value. The directors had consequently
determined to recognise a reversal of provision for club memberships
amounting HK$387,000 (2018: impairment loss of HK$381,000).

RAEE  ERERTESNmERL - Ft
EERTHERASHEL R 2 B ER 387,000
B (ZZT—/\F : R{EEE381,000/87T) °
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162

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 16. REELXZRE
2019 2018
—E-NF —ET-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Share of net assets NIhEEFRE 676,874 579,969
Financial guarantees provided (note 29) B IR B #IER (H7E29) 46,160 39,575
723,034 619,544
Particulars of the material joint venture are as follows: EREELEFBOT
Percentage of
Bl
Place of
Issued incorporation Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
Name shares capital and business interest power sharing  activities
ALK
a8 BRITRE EXEY REEER RERE AMEEF  TEEH
AVP Electronics Limited* 165,000,000 ordinary shares  Hong Kong 75 50 75  Trading of electronic
components
REARAR* 165,000,000 % & 17 % B EEEFi
* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst @ I 3R B A LK G 5T A B 75 F7 sk H Ah 2ok BB A

& Young global network

The above joint venture has a financial year end of 31 December.
The consolidated financial statements are adjusted for the material

transactions between 1 January and 31 March.

AVP Electronics Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, “AVPEL
Group”), which are considered a material group of joint ventures of the

Group, are accounted for using the equity method.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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16. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
of AVPEL Group adjusted for any differences in accounting policies

16. REELEZRE ®
TRIRABERY MEERES (DT
SHHEZBHELREE) U RESAMBERE

and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial NERE S/ HER
statements:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FET
Cash and cash equivalents RehERBELIEB 671,864 569,374
Other current assets HEims & E 4,644,451 3,747,921
Current assets MENEE 5,316,315 4,317,295
Non-current assets EMBEE 22,934 24,710
Financial liabilities, excluding trade and cRBE(TaEENE SRR R
other payables H b e FR8) (3,837,446) (3,233,153)
Other current liabilities HupmEaE (599,162) (335,418)
Current liabilities mEEE (4,436,608) (3,568,571)
Non-current liabilities EmBAalE (142) (142)
Net assets attributable to owners of RIEARAGER A
AVP Electronics Limited EIEEEFE 902,499 773,292
Reconciliation to the Group’s interests in ~ EEREBR A LM 7
the joint ventures: e HIHR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REHE B RELL A 75% 75%
Group’s share of net assets attributable to AL B S (HREARABHEE A
owners of AVP Electronics Limited ElEEEFE 676,874 579,969
Financial guarantees provided (note 29) BRI IS &R (FTsE29) 46,160 39,575
Carrying amount of the investments HERBEE 723,034 619,544
Revenue g 24,675,783 21,419,542
Interest income IR ON 4,058 238
Depreciation e (1,510) (1,532)
Interest expenses Ese-3=! (139,822) (99,933)
Tax 7R (47,883) (42,625)
Profit and total comprehensive income FRRMNEEERALE
for the year 222,207 213,599
Dividends paid B E 93,000 93,000
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17.

164

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 17. REBEE QR ZRE
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —F-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Share of net assets PIEEEFE 1,698 1,148
Due from associates FE M B R R 3R IE 115 359
1,813 1,507
Less: Current portion B OmENE S (115) (359)
Non-current portion EmEE o 1,698 1,148

The balances due from associates are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of the balances due from
associates approximate to their fair values.

All associates have a financial year end of 31 March, which is
coterminous with that of the Group.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of losses of
certain associates, namely Xocial Limited and Signeo Venture Limited
because the share of losses of these associates exceeded the Group’s
interests in these associates and the Group has no obligation to take
up further losses. The amounts of the Group’s unrecognised share of
losses of these associates cumulatively at the end of the year were
HK$3,109,000 (2018: HK$3,109,000).

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the
Group’s associates that are not individually material:

FEMHE & N RIFR 2 R AR EIER  TEE R
REBRER - RUHE R RIFUR 2 BRIk E
SREHNFEEREE -

EBMERRZMBRFEFERAR=H
=t—B EAKERFT-

R 5 h#E T8 2 2R (B Xocial Limited &
Signeo Venture Limited) 2 5B iR BN & BN RZ
LW NT 2R BAEEW ERKREE
— BB MASEBRIEERE S %S
ERRIZER - AEBRERDEZSFHER
AIEE 2 FREF©FR3,109,0008 T (=F
—\4F :3,109,000/8 L) °

TEIFAEEEIETEA 2 HEAT 2o
BERBE -

2019 2018
—Z-NE —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Share of the associates’ profit/(loss) DEEBE R RFERREH, (BE)
for the year (303) 448
Share of the associates’ total DMEBERRZERA
comprehensive income/(loss) (B518) B (303) 448
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s N&EERE & A7) 2
investments in the associates HEREARE 1,698 1,148
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18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

18. AIfHERSE

2019 2018
—E-hF —ET—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FATT
Unlisted equity investments, at cost FE AR E - KA
(note a) (MizEa) = 3,893
Key management insurance contracts, FEEBASRREL -
at fair value (note b) ZATEE (HEEb) - 22,353
Convertible promissory note, at cost Al AR SRR - AR
(note o) (BtzEC) = 15,540
Impairment (notes a and c) A (FisEa &) = (19,433)
- 22,353
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BERAITA -
Non-current assets FERBEE - 22,353

The above investments in unlisted equity investments, key management
insurance contracts and convertible promissory note were designated as
available-for-sale investments and have no fixed maturity date or coupon
rate. As at 1 April 2018, upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, the above
balances were reclassified to financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss.

BRRFETERAKRE  TBERABRRE
HRATMBARRBENRETEE ST
ERE  HERTIHPAXEMEX -R-F
—NFOA—B RKABFBHMBHRELEREI
iR LBEBEROREERRERATE
BIRZEREE -
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18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)

166

Notes:

(a)

(©

As at 31 March 2018, certain unlisted equity investments with a carrying amount
of HK$3,893,000 were stated at cost less impairment. The Group does not
intend to dispose of them in the near future.

At the 31 March 2018, a full provision for impairment of HK$3,893,000 was
made for available-for-sale investments with an original carrying value (before
impairment) of HK$3,893,000 because they have been making loss for years and
had deficiency in assets at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2018, the insurance contracts represented life insurance
plans with investment elements relating to two members of key management
personnel of the Group and the joint venture. The total sum insured is
US$15,800,000 (approximately HK$122,800,000) with an annual minimum
guaranteed return of 2%.

As at 31 March 2018, if the Group withdrew from the insurance contracts,
the accounts value, net of surrender charges of US$376,722 (approximately
HK$2,927,000), would be refunded to the Group. The amount of the surrender
charges decreased over time and was no longer required from the 19th year of
contract conclusion onwards.

The Group held a convertible promissory note with a principal amount of
US$2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,540,000) (the “PN") which was issued by a
private company.

The PN was unlisted, interest-bearing at 8% per annum and was issued for a
maturity term of 6 months from 26 November 2014 to 25 May 2015 which
was indefinitely extendible for another 6 months at the issuer’s discretion. The
Group had the right to convert the PN into 49% of equity interest of the private
company.

The PN was designated as an available-for-sale investment which was stated
at cost less impairment. The Group does not intend to dispose of it in the near
future.

As at 31 March 2018, a full provision for impairment of HK$15,540,000 was
made for the PN as in the opinion of the directors, the PN was not expected to
be recovered.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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18. AIHEERE @)

B

(a)

(©

R-ZZBE-NF=ZA=+—HB HEHEZER
3,893,000 7.2 & T I LR AL E TR A H
BOmEFIER - AEBEBRTAR R EEZER

R-ZTE—NE=ZA=+—8 aREREEHEE K
ERT) 43,893,000 7T 2 A 4 HH B 188 % F k8%
BEBRNBEPEEREEEEBAL  REH
ZEA R EIREE L 2 BUR(E R 3,893,000 7%
=

R-ZZE—NEFE=ZA=1+—0 " RRAVAEHEAX
EERAECEMBTEEEABMBIRERD
2 ANEREE S - (R 48FE & 15,800,000 7T (Y
122,800,000 7T) * FEHERFRIRA2% °

RZZE—NE=ZA=+—8 " HEAEEHR
IR FEE (BRERFERE36,72FET (B
2,927,000 7T) S ERETALEE - RRFEE
SEEREMRD BT ANE 19F TS H/K
B e

AEEREEH-—EALARAMETASES
2,000,000 7 (#8E 7 15,540,000 7T) Z A] #2
A 2 ([AT R A BB ) ©

AARA N ERTIE LT - BFIRSE BRI
R-T—WmF+—A=+~"AE=-ZFT—AFAHA
Z—+HH6EA M (TREITATENEH
ER6MEA) T - AEBEHRBGATRRANE
HIBBRAARRZ49% BAED ©

A AR R SRR Ty T R ABORES IR
AHEERE - AREESNTAKRREEZE
RE -

RZZE—N\F=ZA=+—0 AREERAEEH
e U Bl AR A AR - B BE AT IR AR AR R R
AR 2 HUR B 15,540,000 7 7T ©



19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 19. BRBERRAFEEIERZEME
PROFIT OR LOSS =3
2019 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FHET FET
Investment in convertible bonds AR ERIEE (a) 11,327
Listed equity investments ETRAKRE 38,354 =
Listed bond investments EHERKRE 43,885 =
Unlisted equity investments EEM/RARIRE (b) 24,082 =
Key management insurance contracts FEEBAERBED (0 23,110 =
140,758 -
Analysed for reporting purpose as: HEBBEBNINR
Current assets mBEE 117,648 =
Non-current assets ERBEE 23,110 =
140,758 -

The above listed equity investments and listed bond investments at 31
March 2019 were classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss as they were held for trading.

The investment in convertible bonds and key management insurance
contracts at 31 March 2019 were mandatorily classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows
are not solely payments of principal and interest.

The unlisted equity investments at 31 March 2019 were classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as the Group has not
irrevocably elected to classify the unlisted equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

RZE-NF=A=+—8 L EHkA%K
BN EmEFRENERERBEREATEE
IRz EMEE  REARZERERIERES -

RIE-NF=A=+—H THRREFKE
REREBABRRELBRHIEDEREBRE
SR ATFEEIRZEREE  RARANR
EREL MR [N AE RS

RIE-NF=ZA=+—H FLTREKE
DRREBRBERATEBRIRZEREE
[RE R AR B A A B R A IF LA
AERENBRBEBEMEERARATFEES
BR o
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

168

Notes:

(a)

(©

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group subscribed the convertible
bonds issued by IE Limited (“IEL”) with aggregate principals of approximately
HK$19,425,000 on 8 June 2016 and HK$38,850,000 on 3 November 2016,
respectively. The bonds were interest-bearing at a fixed rate of 4% per annum
and repayable within two years since their respective issuance dates, which can
be converted into common shares of IEL, at exercise prices of KRW500 and
KRW819 per share, respectively, at any time after one year from their respective
issuance dates. The investment was classified as equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss as at 31 March 2018. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, the
investment was reclassified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
on 1 April 2018. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the convertible bonds
issued by IEL were in default. Management has assessed that the fair values of
the convertible bonds issued by IEL based on the valuation report performed
by an independent valuer with reference to the available published financial
information of IEL.

On 13 April 2018, the Group subscribed 3,353 preferred shares of Vinus
Entertainment Co., Ltd. (“Vinus”), an independent third party, at a consideration
of US$1,000,000 (equivalent to HK$7,770,000). Together with the 6,527
preferred shares and the 7,326 ordinary shares acquired in the prior year, the
Group has 16.9% equity interest in Vinus as at 31 March 2019.

In the prior year, the Group acquired 753 ordinary shares of Luxury Choice
Investment Limited (“Luxury Choice”), an independent third party, at a
consideration of US$500,207 (equivalent to HK$3,887,000). Also, the Group
subscribed 10,000 preferred shares in Global ESports Limited (“Global ESports”),
an independent third party, at a consideration of HK$1,000,000. At 31
March 2019, the Group has 6.1% equity interest in Luxury Choice and 3.8%
equity interest in Global ESports. These investments were classified as equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss as at 31 March 2018. Upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9, the investments were reclassified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss on 1 April 2018.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group subscribed a convertible bond
issued by Mad Runway Holdings Limited (“Mad Runway"), an independent third
parties, and was classified as equity investments at fair value through profit or
loss as at 31 March 2018. On 2 October 2018, the Group exercised the option to
convert 1,200,000 Mad Runway common shares, representing 2.3% of equity
interest of Mad Runway.

During the year, the Group subscribed 888,000,000 common shares,
representing 10% equity interest in Urban City Joint Stock Company, an
independent third party, at a consideration of Vietnamese Dong 11,628,000,000
(equivalent to HK$3,881,000).

As at 31 March 2019, the key management insurance contracts represented
life insurance plans with investment elements relating to two members of key
management personnel of the Group and the joint venture. The total sum
insured is US$15,800,000 (approximately HK$122,800,000) with an annual
minimum guaranteed return of 2%. The key management insurance contracts
were classified as available-for-sale investments as at 31 March 2018. Upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9, the investment was reclassified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss on 1 April 2018.

As at 31 March 2019, if the Group withdrew from the insurance contracts,
the accounts value, net of surrender charges of US$366,596 (approximately
HK$2,848,000), would be refunded to the Group. The amount of the surrender
charges decreased over time and was no longer required from the 19th year of
contract conclusion onwards.
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19. ZREZEAFEEIRZEME
E @)
MisE :

REBE-_T—tE=A=+—BLLEE A£H
& B IE Limited ([1EL]) A BIR =T —~"ERAN
AR=ZE—AE+—A-BBETASRED T
#919,425,000 7% 7T, 1 38,850,000 7 7T 2 AT # A%
& HEEFRETFMNEIEF L ARA
EEETAMBRTMEANEE  LATRBEEEE
TR BB —F R 2 EMERE 2 RIRITEE SR
5003 E R 819 EEM RIELZ B - R E
R-ZE—NF=ZA=+—REDABEBIBIER
FEERZBRAZE - RESPERSERE
ISR MNE  RBREN T \FHNA—BE&E
HEDABRBREATEEIRZ SREE -
REBE_Z-NE=A=+—RALFEF ' IELEIT
ZABRESREY - ERECREB L GHEMS
ZA1SH ELE T B E B TR H M ERE T
fRIELB T Z AR EH M A FEE -

RZZE-—NFEA+=8 AEENURE
1,000,000 7t (48 7 7,770,000 7% 7T ) 7R B J8 32
% =75 Vinus Entertainment Co., Ltd. ([Vinus|) Z
3,353 RESLAR - R EFE IR 6,527 RIEL
M K%7,326 LB RZT—hFE=ZA=1+—
B NEBEEA Vinus 9 16.9% B AHERS o

K E—FE  NEBUAKES00,207%7T (HHE
7 3,887,000 7 7T ) Y i 38 37 58 = 77 Luxury Choice
Investment Limited ([ Luxury Choice |) 2 753 B& &
A% o beSN - AR PARK(E 1,000,000 8 TR EE B
7% =77 Global Esports Limited ([ Global ESports |)
210,000 REBAER RZT—NE=ZRA=+—
B+ A% @ Luxury Choice & Global ESports 7 Al
HEH6.1%Kk3.8%MKRARER - ZEREN-Z
—\F=ZA=1+—HEADAEBERIZATEE
AR Z RAIZE - RE BB REERF 5 E
R ZEREN T N\FNA—-—BEHE
PREBARBANTEBEIRZ ERMEE °

REZE-_T—N\F=ZA=+—HLEFE &%
[E 78 % 7 % = 77 Mad Runway Holdings Limited
(I'Mad Runway |) 817 2 AT EH WK — T — )\
FZRA=+—HABARBBEREATEEYR
ZRARE -RZZT—N\F+A=-R A&ET
155 HA# 3¢, 1,200,000 i& Mad Runway % 3% + 18
& 7 Mad Runway ) 2.3% & AN

N - AN E R E5888,000,000 % &AL - HE
¥ 32 885 = 75 Urban City Joint Stock Company &9
10% BEA MRS R84 11,628,000,000 # /& (48
B 3,881,000587T) °

RZZE—hF=A=+—0 FTZEEERRE
HERAREEREECEMEEIEERAEEH
KT E A A FRBRET S - 1{R4 58 A 15,800,000
%7t (49122,800,0008 7T) * F [E HIKAR F B ]
KR2% - FEZBERAERBENNR T —N\F=
A=+—HEH AT#HEERE - REBMBER
EREREIFERMNE ZREVR T —\FN
A—RE#HED BEBIESZATFEEIIENS

REZZ—hF=ZA=+—0 " HEAEERLRRE
&%) AIBRFEE (N R R & 366,596 % 7T (4)
2,848,000 7T)) #HREEAREE - RIRE S TEME
FEMEBMRLD  MAEHRTNE 19558
TEEZRRE -



20. INVENTORIES

21.

0. &

2019 2018

—E-hEF —F-)N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Finished goods SUAK B 62,219 160,176

TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. EWREFERRA

2019 2018

—EB-hEF —E-N\E

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade receivables BWE HEER 82,427 75,289
Impairment BB (11,490) (7,322)
70,937 67,967

The Group’s trading terms with customers vary with the type of products
supplied. Invoices are normally payable within 30 days of issuance,
except for well-established customers, where the terms are extended to
over 60 days. For customer-specific and highly specialised items, deposits
in advance or letters of credit may be required prior to the acceptance
and delivery of the products. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control policy to minimise credit risk. A credit
committee consisting of senior management and the directors of the
Company has been established to review and approve large customer
credits. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s
trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there
is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

AEEBREFIVZ XS EFRETFHREZEMR
BRIMAMTR - RFGBREANZEREHRZ30
BAXH  EERYRARBRRZEFP 2K
HRIE=#B60 ARSI - BBEFRAIEE R
BREMZAR  EERMTERINEmMRZA
ARARNREKFALERRE BR2FFAR
EEELER - REBBUHERKE Z EKK
RE MRS WHEEEEHBR L&
BREGFERR RARRZSRERBRE
FHERZEEZEGEEKL - ARH R
RBEFPEE - EN X - ARAKEZ
KRB SRAFREARBBREEDRIEFER
At \mEAEHEERR - AEBEWRHZ
SESIHAEMERRREMRICER G
FEWE BT FE -
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21. EWE FERR @)
ERBE QT MGEREE  HNIREHEE
R RENE BER Y RROTIT

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

170

2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Within 1 month 18R A 15,505 50,327
1 to 2 months 12218 A 34,864 14,400
2 to 3 months 2&31@A 6,507 1,411
Over 3 months B3 & A 14,061 1,829
70,937 67,967
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables EWE SRR 2 REBEREZSHNT :
are as follows:
2019 2018
—E—-hF —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHT
At beginning of year F9) 7,322 6,348
Impairment losses, net (note 6) B EEFEE (MiE6) 5,511 2,330
Amounts written off as uncollectible YE A&7 ] Uk [B] FR I8 #f 55 (1,306) (1,448)
Exchange realignment VE 5 % (37) 92
At end of year FiR 11,490 7,322
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21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. BWE 5 R @0
Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 March BE-Z-NF=A=+—BHLFER
2019 BMBHRELNFEIRET ZRE
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a REwE B EEAREBEEITRED T - A
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates AEEHEEER BEXDEREGELE
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments BEANZEE P 5 EHER 86 B EEHE (B
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, IR - EmEL  BEEEMETR - A
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other RiERZESEMEAERRBARERE)
forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability- FZETERM TR NELER - B RREEN
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and R mE AR ESHENBEEME - SRk
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past R AR REOBEAR IR & B R ] LR AR -
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. —RiME - ERE SR a B BE —F kB
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more than one AR RREHIITIES) BT LA -
year and are not subject to enforcement activity.
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the TRETE R REEBAITH A BN EE ER
Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix: ESEFNEERBRER
As at 31 March 2019 R=ZB-AF=ZA=+—H
Past due
k]
Less than 1t03 Over
Current 1month months 3 months Total
UL HR-18A -E=fif SEANUL &
Expected credit loss rate BAGEREX 0.00% 1.78% 10.88% 41.72% 13.94%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) REZE(TAT) 15,505 35,495 7,301 24,126 82,427
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) BHEEBE(TAT) - 631 794 10,065 11,490
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. EWE R @)
Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31 BE-Z-\F=A=+—BHLFER
March 2018 BEERAEI9RET ZHE
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables, RZT—N\F=ZA=+—8  REBEGHE
which was measured based on incurred credit loss under HKAS 39, BIZE 395 THE R EEEBIETE2M FEK
as at 31 March 2018 was a provision for individual impaired trade B SRFRERERED ERNRERKE S
receivables of HK$7,322,000 with a carrying amount before provision of 7,322,000 7% 7T & B4 AT AR E € %8 7,322,000
HK$7,322,000. AT e
The individually impaired trade receivables as at 31 March 2018 related RZEBE-NF=ZA=1+—H  EERIRAEEY
to customers that were in financial difficulties and the receivables are not ESRFANRVBR#E s TFEM &S5k
expected to be recovered. WeskIETE B~ eI e ] o
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31 March 2018 that RZBE-N\F=ZA=+—H BEEEFTE
were not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired under BII 28 39 % 3 #% (8 B sk H R AR AR E 2 EUE
HKAS 39 is as follows: SRR ZERAOTAOT ¢
2018
—ZET-N\F
HK$'000
FAT
Neither past due nor impaired SR B R N SR (E 50,327
Less than 1 month past due B HR DR fE A 14,400
1 to 2 months past due w1 E2M@A 1,411
Over 2 months past due 60 HAER 3R 2 1 A 1,829
67,967

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a number of
independent customers that had a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company were of the
opinion that no provision for impairment under HKAS 39 was necessary
in respect of these balances as there had not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances were still considered fully recoverable.
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22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

22. ENRE RERHEMERFE

RECEIVABLES

2019 2018
—E-hF —F-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT F#ET
Prepayments TEfTRIE 2,805 1,534
Deposits and other receivables e R H A EUEE 48,752 39,565
Impairment allowance RER (8,917) (18,512)
42,640 22,587

Portion classified as non-current: DEAIERB 2 HBH
Other deposits Hipiz & (2,178) (198)
Current portion mEnE o 40,462 22,389

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits, deposits
with suppliers and loan receivables. An impairment analysis is performed
at each reporting date by applying a loss rate approach with reference to
the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect
the current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions, as
appropriate. The loss rate applied for where there are no comparable
companies as at 31 March 2019 was 100% on the gross other
receivables of HK$8,917,000 (2018: HK$18,512,000) before impairment
allowance. The Group assessed the loss allowance of the deposits and
other receivables of HK$39,835,000 under the application of HKFRS 9
was insignificant.

The financial assets included in the above balances that were not
impaired relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default.

ReERHEMERZBEIZERERS  HED
ReREWER RERESAE  AEEKRA
B AW EARAEENBAEBLEHET
RED - BEXEREEREEDAEUR

& ATAR R R AR R A AR R TER] c M=
—NF=ZA=1+—8 EEELBEQFIER
T -k E B MBR B4R BB (BRI (B B B AT
8,917,00078 7T (=& — \ 4 : 18,512,000/ 7T)
HRAZEEERAE100% NEBT (G EAE
RIS RS AR B 9 SREE ¢ 1RS M E R MR
18 39,835,000 7% 7T BY BT 18 B B 15T =L 43 o

B R E AR BRI & B A ST BN
HRADERZ RWIRE R
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23. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

174

23. g?@ﬁéﬁﬁ%tﬁﬁmﬁzriﬂ&&

2019 2018
—E-AF T N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHT

Investment in a joint venture, at fair value R—EAEDEZIRE
(note) BRATFEE M) - 23,300

Investment in convertible bonds, RABRBREF2KE -

at fair value BAFEE - 24,993
Listed equity investments, at market value ~ETIIRAIEE - HE - 15,455
Listed bond investment, at market value ~ ET{EAIEE - EHE = 7,981
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value ~ 3F EMIRAIZE « 2 AT EE = 27,536
- 99,265

Note:

For the year ended 31 March 2017, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with an independent third party to
acquire 50% equity interest in the shares of J-Tex Holdings Limited (“J-Tex") at
a consideration of HK$30,000,000. The acquisition was completed in February
2017. The investment in J-Tex was classified as an investment in a joint venture
as the Group exercises joint control over the financial and operating policies of J
Tex.

As this joint venture was held as part of the venture capital organisation’s
investment portfolio, it was carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at fair value. This treatment is permitted by HKAS 28 (2011)
“Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures" which requires investments
held by venture capital organisations to be excluded from its scope where those
investments are designated, upon initial recognition, as at fair value through
profit or loss and accounted for in accordance with HKAS 39, with changes in
fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
of change. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, the investment was reclassified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss on 1 April 2018. The
investment was disposed during the year.
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME

24. REREFASHARERERN

DEPOSITS

2019 2018
—E—-h#F —T—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Cash and bank balances BEe RIRITHET 97,031 210,403
Pledged time deposits BHERE TR - 2,623
Deposited with other financial institutions R H b & @& 2 77 7% 8,958 23,484
105,989 236,510

Less: Pledged time deposits classified as 38 : DAEAERBEE 2
non-current assets BB TEHTR = (2,623)
Cash and cash equivalents REeEREREFEER 105,989 233,887

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to approximately
HK$878,000 (2018: HK$2,775,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
and other financial institutions with no recent history of default.

RmEHBEERE  AEBEUARBE (AR
) EtE RS RIRITEFH5878,0008 7T
(ZZ—N\F :2,775,0007T) - ARERATH
MEBAHME - AW - RIEPE A Z I
fEE IR0 R AEME - S RMEFERTE A
SENEBEREEITINEER ZRITIAR
BEBRABEMER -

FHRRITZASREBRITZEAFRAE
BZEBNERRRAE - EHEHFERNF—H
EZAAAE DRIAKEZAKREFH
Ri5E - WRE B 25 8 E B 5K A X BRERF
B o BENERRNMEE RIF 2 RIT RO &
HoRFLER 2 Hofth & BRAHE -
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TRADE PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES

25.

ENEEP&%’\ BERRERETE

2019 2018

—E-hF T N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FHT

Trade payables BB SER 29,164 93,059
Deposits received Bz e 1,761 12,304
Accrued expenses EErER 17,234 22,975
48,159 128,338

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting

BREMRIHA  RESHEEREZENE

between 30 and 90 days.
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period, based on the payment due date, is as follows: SRR ZEBRAOTAOT ¢
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FER FHT

Trade payables: FERE SR :

Current BN ER 18,832 90,238
1 to 30 days 1£230H 9,269 550
31 to 60 days 31260H 158 19
Over 60 days iHBiEe60 H 905 2,252
29,164 93,059
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled BB SERTDTEHE - —MR30E0HRA



26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. EHEE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tl Tt
Contract liabilities amaE 16,298 =

Details of contract liabilities as at 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2018 are as

RZE—NF=ZA=+—BEK=ZF—N\FHEA

follows. —BAWENBEFFEET :
31 March 1 April
2019 2018
ZE-NF RZE—N\F
=A=+—H MA—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET

Short-term advances received from TFEUYL B = 52 B E
customers

Sale of products SHEEMm 16,298 10,644

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver
semiconductor and electronic products. The increase in contract liabilities
in 2019 was mainly due to the increase in short-term advances received
from customers in relation to the sale of products at the end of the year.

EHNEERERRRIERLEFEMMEAK
BEPMEMHE - —T-NFNAPAEEM
TEZANFRRHEERTAKET P BN

TRIEIN -
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. M ERITER
2019 2018
“E-NE 2%
Effective Effective
annual annual
interest interest
rate Maturity HK$'000 rate Maturity HK$'000
ERERIE HEA Thn  ERERE 38R a1
Current ik
Import and trust receipt loans - unsecured EORETUEER-BER 3.99% -4.35% 2019 72,366 345%-374% 2018 76,167
“E-hE —E-0\5
Bank loans - secured ROEH-5ER N/A N/A - 253%-325% 2018 53,491
TER TEA “F-N\&
72,366 129,658
Non-current Eik)
Bank loans - secured BIER-ERE N/A N/A = 3.66% 201 4441
Nl Nl “Eo-f
72,366 134,099
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Analysed into: PR
Bank loans repayable: RT3 EAEAEERE ZRITER -
Within one year or on demand —FRHRER 72,366 129,658
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=ZEFAF
(BEEMEBELEN) - 4,441
Total A&t 72,366 134,099

All the Group’s bank borrowings bore interest at floating rates at the end
of the reporting period in the current year. In the prior year, except for
bank loans of HK$4,441,000, which bore interest at fixed rate of 3.66%
per annum, all the Group’s bank borrowings bore interest at floating
rates at the end of that reporting period. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to their fair
values.

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s bank loans are
secured by mortgage over the Group’s property, plant and equipment,
which had an aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period
of HK$26,591,000 (2018: HK$27,514,000) (note 12). In the prior year,
certain of the Group’s bank loans were secured by pledge of certain of
the Group’s time deposits amounting to HK$2,623,000 (note 24).
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REBE 2P

BRITBRDERERRNZB AR E » &
SEZMSRTERZFASEELRFEE

A -

RIREHEERE - AREE TRITERAR
EEZME  BERXBRBERRE  HR®
24 B 45 SR B 2 BR T 4218 /5 26,591,0007%8 7T
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28. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES
The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles for the Group’s marketing
and distribution business. These leases are classified as finance leases and
have remaining lease terms ranging from one to six years.

At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease payments under
finance leases and their present values are as follows:

28. EfREHERE
AEERETEEERDHERERE TS
B gEHER I EAREHE $THESF
HRA T — A o

RZZ-hF=A=+—H REBEHEZ
AREEEEMNKEBERERENT ¢

Present Present
value of value of
minimum minimum
Minimum lease Minimum lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BEEEMAR REEERK
BEAEMNR RERERK ZHRE ZHE
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\E “E-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET FHET
Amounts payable: RT5I SRR 2 508 :
Within one year —ER 1,605 913 1,439 820
In the second year FER 1,337 913 1,228 850
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=-FFERF
(BEREBREN) 1,537 950 1,413 876
After fifth year Tk 93 - 79 =
Total minimum finance lease payments ~ S{EFEHENHLE 4,572 2,776 4,159 2,546
Future finance charges ARBEER (413) (230)
Total net finance lease payables ERRERENEFEER 4,159 2,546
Portion classified as current liabilities AEARBEBZHH (1,439) (820)
Non-current portion E kb 2,720 1,726

The carrying amounts of the Group’s finance lease payables approximate
to their fair values.

AEERNBEHEN R ZRESREELNF

BEMES -
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FINANCIAL GUARANTEE OBLIGATION

During the year, the Group has provided financial guarantees to joint
ventures in relation to the bank lending facilities granted to these joint
ventures, and the Group will make payments to reimburse the lenders
upon failure of the guaranteed entity to make payments when due. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
the guarantees.

The Group does not provide financial guarantees except for limited
circumstances. All guarantees are approved by the board of directors.

The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the higher of the
ECL allowance and the amount initially recognised less the cumulative
amount of income recognised. The ECL allowance is measured by
estimating the cash shortfalls, which are based on the expected
payments to reimburse the holders (i.e., the banks) for a credit loss
that it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive from
the debtor (i.e., the joint ventures). The amount initially recognised
representing the fair value at initial recognition of the financial
guarantees was based on the valuation from an independent valuer
engaged by the Group. The method used in determining the fair value of
these guarantees was by reference to the recovery rate and key financial
ratio of the guaranteed entity.

The credit exposure of the financial guarantee contracts is classified as
stage 1. During the year, there were no transfers between stages.
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30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as follows:

30. SEIEHEEE
FRELEHRIBEEZEFHNOT -

Revaluation
of properties
YIEEM
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—tFWHA—A 14,109
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated statement FAFTAGE BRI ZEERIE (FIFE9)
of profit or loss during the year (note 9) (55)
Exchange realignment M 5 A (33)
At 31 March 2018 and RZZE-—NF=A=+—H
1 April 2018 E=ZE—NFWMA—H 14,021
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement FANKREREBmR 2 EERIE ()
of profit or loss during the year (note 9) 122
Exchange realignment ME WA 14
At 31 March 2019 R-ZB-HAE=A=+—H 14,157

The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$465,088,000 (2018: HK$406,477,000) that are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which
losses arose. The Group also has unrecognised tax losses arising
elsewhere of HK$16,329,000 (2018: HK$10,616,000) that will expire
during 2019 to 2024 (2018: 2018 to 2023) for offsetting against future
taxable profits. Deferred tax assets in respect of these losses have not
been recognised as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-
making for some time and, in the opinion of the directors, it is not
considered probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

At 31 March 2019, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax
liability (2018: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of the Group's subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

AREEBRBEBELE 2B R EEIS
465,088,000 7T (—Z — J\4F : 406,477,000
BoT) - ATEREBAEEESS BB AR
RIRFERB S F o AEBRE MM T EEZ K
ERBIBRIE A 16,329,000/8 7L (—T— \4F
10,616,000 7T) - R =ZFE—NFEZ=F N
F(ZE—NEF 22— N\FEZT==%F) 3|
B - A AR SE R SRR BB A o WL RS
BERERECHELE BRSEBIADH
SER—BREEBZHBAREL  EEUTR
AT BEH 78R 2 AR R ERR B s ) LA S B T8 /S
B o

RZE-NF=A=+—H0 REEEZHB
DA BERRREELRREL BN 2 EN
BEME  YEEXNREREEHRAAB (=
T-N\FE) -

7 R R I L AR SR R 8 T B A S B
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SHARE CAPITAL 31. BRA
Shares ;&
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Authorised: JERE
2,000,000,000 (2018: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,000 f& (=& — \ 4 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 2,000,000,000 f%) &% &
0.108 T2 A% 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR
908,663,302 (2018: 923,149,302) 908,663,302 % (=T — )\ 4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 923,149,302 %) & ME{E0.10
Bz EBR 90,866 92,315

A summary of movements in the Company'’s share capital is as follows:

ARRRAZEHEBOT -

Number of Share

shares in issue capital

ERITRAEE &N

HK$'000

FET

At 1 April 2017 R-E—+FmMA—Q 772,944,419 77,294

Bonus issue (Note (a)) BITAIRR (KI5E(a)) 154,588,883 15,459

Share options exercised (Note (b)) TETTE BERRAE (FY5E (b)) 720,000 72

Shares repurchased (Note (c)) TERE [0 AR 15 (FTRE () (5,104,000) (510)

At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 KRB N\F=A=1+—HK

—“ET—N\&EW™A—H 923,149,302 92,315

Share repurchases (Note (d)) i 15 &l (Pt 3 (d)) (14,486,000) (1,449)

At 31 March 2019 RZE—NF=A=+—H 908,663,302 90,866
Notes: P& -

(@) On 19 September 2017, 154,588,883 shares of HK$0.10 each were issued
under bonus issue on the basis of one bonus share for every five existing shares.
Details of the bonus issue were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 19 September 2017.

(b) The subscription rights attaching to 720,000 share options were exercised at the
subscription price of HK$0.3625 per share (note 32), resulting in the issue of
720,000 shares for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$261,000.
An amount of HK$110,000 was transferred from the equity-settled share-based
payment reserve to share capital and share premium account upon the exercise
of the share options.
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31.

32.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Shares (continued)
Notes: (continued)

() The Company repurchased 5,104,000 of its own shares through The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) at a total consideration
of HK$3,266,000 which was paid wholly out of the share premium account. The
repurchased shares were cancelled during the year ended 31 March 2018 and
the total amount paid for the repurchase of the shares in excess of the par value
of HK$2,756,000 has been charged to share premium account of the Company.

(d) The Company repurchased 14,486,000 of its own shares through Stock
Exchange at a total consideration of HK$7,283,000 which was paid wholly out of
the share premium account. The repurchased shares were cancelled during the
year and the total amount paid for the repurchase of the shares in excess of the
par value of HK$5,834,000 has been charged to share premium account of the
Company.

Share options

Details of the share option schemes of the Company and one of its
subsidiaries and the share options issued under these schemes are
included in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Share option scheme adopted by the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “AV Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the AV Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including the independent non-executive directors, other employees of
the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of
the Group, any person or entity that provides research, development
or technological support to the Group, any non-controlling interests
in the Company’s subsidiaries, any advisor or consultant to any area of
business or business development to the Group and any other group or
class of participants who have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business arrangements to the
Group. The AV Scheme became effective on 3 August 2012 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

31.

32.

&N P

IR (&)
GERRCD

© RARABEBEBHARGMARRA R ([HR
Fr)) BE 815,104,000 8 &K & 2 B 1p - BRE B
3,266,000 % 7T+ & R D m BRR AT - FTiE
ERHERBEE-T—NE=A=+—AHLEF
EEl RBERMAXFRERLIEEZEE
2,756,000 % 7T B #E AR A 7] 2 B0 i B BRI bR ©

(d  AARRERFTIER 14,486,000 R4 & 2 A& () -
128 4A7,283,000/8 7 + & &M I 15 5 (B IR 5%
o FREEE AR B R EMES - s RARD AT 2
2 8% FERE L E B2 = 885,834,000 T E #¢
ANARZ IR R BRI ©
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option scheme adopted by the Company
(continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted
to be granted under the AV Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon
their exercise, to 30% of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The total number of ordinary shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the AV Scheme
(excluding any which have lapsed) and any other schemes of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the ordinary shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of the adoption of the AV Scheme.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the AV Scheme within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders” approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after the
vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than the expiry date
of the AV Scheme.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but
may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; and
(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote
at shareholders’ meetings.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 32. BRETE @

Share option scheme adopted by the Company
(continued)

R RERAN 2 BB IR B ()

2019 2018
—B-nF “EN\F

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
IEFHTEE BREHE MEFHTEE BREZA
HK$ '000 HK$ '000
BT T4 BT T4

per share per share

(BR) (BK)
At beginning of year F4) - - 0435 600
Adjustment during the year FARE - - (0.0725) 120
Exercised during the year FRETE - - (0.3625) (720)
At end of year FHR - - - -

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was estimated as at
the date of grant using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. The following
table lists the inputs to the model used on date of grant:

ERbhzBEGERBREATFEEIRELA
R BARGEE  YEFEZEFCREE
B Z AR MR - TREIINR B B
BRRAzBAE:

13 March 2013

—E—=F

=A+=H

Dividend yield (%) % B & (%) 1.032

Expected volatility (%) TEHR R 18 (%) 56.939

Risk-free interest rate (%) 48 2 8 1 2R (%) 0.229

Expected life of options (years) TERTEERR R N HA (5F) 2.500
Weighted average share price TR E (BRABTT)

(HK$ per share) 0.435

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the
past three years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no outstanding
share option under the AV Scheme (2018: Nil).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, the
Company had no outstanding share option under the AV Scheme.

BB ARERIBE=F ZELEE
S YTRTAELBRZITERER - HHIK
R R R BRE LR IR Al RS AR EZ 2R » 7§
RABREREBEBRER

SAEATEERLEZERL 2BEhiE R

RIBEHRGRE - NRFRAVEBIIA TH
BHATEERE(CT-N\F &) -

Rt ERGEMBHRRER - ARERAVE
B0 B R TT R R RO o
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option scheme adopted by a subsidiary

On 5 August 2013, 830 Lab Limited (the “830 Lab"”) adopted a share
option scheme (the “830 Lab Scheme”). Under the 830 Lab Scheme,
830 Lab may grant options to any of its full-time employees and directors
and any eligible persons as defined therein to subscribe for the respective
ordinary shares of 830 Lab.

The following share options were outstanding under the 830 Lab

32. B RESE @
—EEARRMN B ERE
R-ZT—=%/\AHAH - 830 Lab Limited ([830
Lab]) SRANEE AR AE ST 2] (1830 Lab T &) - 1RIR
830 Lab5T &/ - 830 LabA] A H TR 2BHEE &
EELAK830 LabrrEIFTAE 2 A B A
TR AR - DARREE AR 2 830 Lab Ei@AR o

FA - 7830 LabFH BIH T ARTTE Z AL

Scheme during the year: TS
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise Exercise
At Granted lapsed  Exercised  Cancelled Expired At Date of period of price of
Name or category 1 April during during during during during 31 March grant of share share
of participant 2018 the year the year the year the year the year 2019 share options options options
a2 RZB-NE RER RER RER RER RER RZB-1F ERE ERR ERE
S5 mA-A Rt & Bk it E® ZA=t-H RiAH 28 %R
(both dates HKS
inclusive) per share
(BREEMA) AL(ER)
(Note)
(K&t
Director of 830 Lab and
the Company
80LabRAARZES
So Chi Sun Sunny 220,000 - - - - - 220,000 5 August 2013 6 September 2015t 8.0
gEd “2-=%/\AZA 5 August 2023
“5-1f
NARAZE
2
NAER
Employees of 830 Lab 15,000 - - - - - 15,000 5 August 2013 6 September 2015 to 80
830Lab 2 EE ZE2-=£)\REA 5 August 2023
“Z-1f
NARBE
= s
NAER
Total 235,000 - - - - - 235,000
CE

Note: The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the
commencement of the exercise period.
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32.

33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 32. BRERTE @)
Share option scheme adopted by a subsidiary (continued) — B B 2 R B AR 2 BB AR R 5T 81 ()
2019 2018
“Z-N% —Z-N\F
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
MEF9THEE BREHE METHTEE BREHE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T4 o SN
per share per share
(BR) (Bk)
At beginning of year F4) 8.0 235 8.0 265
Lapsed during the year FERRH - - 8.0 (30)
At end of year Fix 8.0 235 8.0 235
The share options lapsed in the prior year amounted to HK$ 1,278,000 RIBAFE RS B A201,278,000 7T -
and the whole amount was reversed in retained profits. 2HERBIRBEF -
The fair value of the share options granted during prior years was RBTFERECEREZAFEEAR
HK$12,453,000, of which no share option expense was recognised by 12,453,000 7T - BREPERLBREE N
the Group since all share options granted had been vested during prior RAFERERB B ASETEEREPEM
years. BAERX -
At the end of the reporting period, 830 Lab had 235,000 share options IR BRI A R EF - 830 Lab 74 830 Lab T E178
outstanding under the 830 Lab Scheme. The exercise in full of the T2 MARITERE AR LB /% 235,000 179 ° 7£830
outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure Lab B 2 IRAEE T - BEITREARITEEZ
of 830 Lab, result in the issue of 235,000 additional ordinary shares of I 19 8 BZB 8B HNEE 1T 235,000 % 830 Lab
830 Lab and additional share capital of HK$1,880,000 (before issue A% - 3P A 1,880,000 7T 2 BEYME A (F1BR
expenses). BITRZA °
At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, 830 RBLERGE MWK E R 830 Lab 830
Lab had 235,000 share options outstanding under the 830 Lab Scheme, Lab 5T E1I8 T 2 MR TR A AR #E 21 B /& 235,000
which represented approximately 33.1% of 830 Lab’s shares in issue as 2 HEEMN830 LabRZ BE EHTKRH A
at that date. 33.1% °
RESERVES 33. %

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 85 to 86 of the consolidated financial
statements.

AR E AR R EEE 2 RS TR
B2IIRGAMBRE S BEEE 26
ABEBE -

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019 F i

187



34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  34.

CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

(@ In the current year, the increase in investments in joint ventures
amounting to HK$6,585,000 (2018: HK$25,024,000) was
attributable to the recognition of financial guarantee obligation
of HK$83,846,000 (2018: HK$75,436,000) and the derecognition
of financial guarantee obligation of HK$77,261,000 (2018:
HK$50,412,000).

(b) In the current year, the Group entered into a finance lease
arrangement in respect of an addition of an item of property, plant
and equipment with a total capital value at the inception of the
lease of HK$3,276,000 (2018: HK$1,066,000).

RERERBRMEE

FEFRERS

(a)

(b)

REAFE RAELEZRER
n6,585,0008 L (=& — N\ F -
25,024,000 70) * T HA A TE R B IS 4
R & 1£83,846,000F L (=T — N\F :
75,436,0007% 7T) J 4% |E TR B IS B AR
E1£77,261,0008 . (=ZF— )\ F:
50,412,000 7T) FTER °

RAFEE  AEERAE —BREEHRS
BB AN 4818 /53,276,000 7T (—F— )\
% :1,066,00087T) 2 W%  BE KRB
BEAVMEREL -

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities BETITEfMEEcEEET

2019 —B-NF

Interest-bearing Finance lease

bank borrowings payables

Fy SR 1T AR ENRERERE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTHERT FTHERT

At 1 April 2018 RZZE—-/\FMA—H 134,099 2,546

Changes from financing cash flows MERER=ELZH) (58,989) (1.634)

New finance lease FRERE - 3,276

Exchange realignment M 5 AR (2,744) (29)

At 31 March 2019 R-B-hF=H=+—H 72,366 4,159
2018 “E-N\F

Interest-bearing Finance lease

bank borrowings payables

M B ERIT A &L E M SRR

HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FET

At 1 April 2017 RZZ—tLFMA—H 116,073 2,334

Changes from financing cash flows MERERELH 12,937 (890)

New finance lease FREEE - 1,066

Exchange realignment bE X F 2 5,089 36

At 31 March 2018 RZB—NF=A=+—H 134,099 2,546
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35.

36.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for

35. RAREE
PR HIRS A SRES - RIS A TR R AR

in the consolidated financial statements are follows: B2 ABELNT :
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET

Guarantees given to banks in connection BETFALGEZEERET

with facilities granted to joint ventures RITZ R 3,091,267 3,233,153
As at 31 March 2019, the bank lending facilities granted to joint RZZE—NF=ZA=+—8 AEEREE D

ventures subject to cross-guarantees given to the banks by the Group
were utilised to the extent of approximately HK$3,091,267,000
(2018: HK$3,233,153,000). For the financial guarantees provided to
joint ventures in relation to the bank lending facilities granted, the
Group has recognised the financial guarantee obligation amounting to
HK$46,160,000 (2018: HK$39,575,000) as a liability as at 31 March
2019 which was disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor
The Group leases its investment properties (note 13) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from one to three years. The terms of the leases generally
also require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

At 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
falling due as follows:

ERRZBTEREERRRIEERTIRT
2 1% 3 #93,091,267,0005 7T (=& — J\ & :
3,233,153,000/87T) - R EEEEER 2
RITEREEMREZHBHER  RNEBE
RZZE-—NWFZA=+—BRYBERES
46,160,000 7t (= Z — )\ & : 39,575,000/
T EREBE  FREREREMERERME29
W -

36. EXMAERH

(a)

ERHAA
AEBERBEFHELHLEELEY
E(MEE13)  EEFcAEFHNT—
E-F -HEZHEK—RAEERAT
XNFREFEER  URFERRIEE BT
mRHEESEHAR -

R-ZZE—NF=A=+—H AEER
BEARIZZTABEEERE TR
iz R RSEEWAERBLENT

2019 2018

—EB-hEF —E-N\E

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FHET

Within one year —FR" 3,247 3,316
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EERF(EEMFRE

ER) 8,894 10,788

12,141 14,104
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36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office premises, staff quarters
and warehouses under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to two years.

At 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

36. ¥XMHEZTH @

(b) EBEBA
AEBERBELLAERHERLETH
AEYE BIFSREA -AHDE
CEEAEEEN T —EME -

RZZE-NAF=ZRA=+—H KEER
BARBUEEXHEER THFHAHZ

follows: RRFAEAERERENT -
2019 2018
—2-hF —F-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FH&T
Within one year —F R 1,832 1,357
In the second to fifth years, inclusive =~ £ -—ZF R F (HBRMF
BEEAN) 39 990
1,871 2,347

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these

190

consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following

material transactions with related parties during the year:

37. EREALRS

(a) BZFHLREMBEMREM

BB S 2 X
250 AEBRFRNEFEALET
TUTEARRS

2019 2018
—E-NF —E—N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHERT FET
Associate: Ll /N I
Sales of products HEEM (i) = 358
Purchases of products HEEEMD (i) - 158
Trademark licence income PR A (i) = 68
Joint venture: AEDE:
Sales of products HEEmM (i) 32,201 =
Purchase of products HEEE®D (i) 1,626 4,846
Dividend income & S 4 A (iii) 69,930 69,930
Management fee income BEEBIA (iv) 358 =
Notes: B EE -
(i) The sales to and purchases from an associate and a joint venture were (i) m—EEEARM—EAEDEEL 2

made with reference to the cost of products.

(ii) In the prior year, the trademark licence income from an associate was

received with reference to the actual costs incurred.

(iii) The dividends declared by the joint venture of the Group were for the
interim dividend for six months ended 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017
and the year-end dividend for the years ended 31 December 2018 and

31 December 2017.

(iv) The management fee income from a joint venture was based on the
actual staff costs and related costs incurred for the provision of services

to a joint venture.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

38.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of

the Group

37. EBEEALTRZ @)
(b)) XEBEFTEEBEAEZ2HE

The Group's key management personnel are the executive
directors of the Company, and further details of their emoluments
are included in note 8(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2019
Financial assets

38.

LUl

AEBEZIEZEERABRARRZHIT
EF AERSHecE—THBER

rRA B IR MTFES(D)

EMIAZDE
SHFIEMT ARNRE DRSS 2 EASH

—E-hF
TRMEE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

BATEEFABEIE
ZERMEE
Designated Financial
as such assets at
upon initial Held for amortised
recognition Trading cost Total
RE R A
RS SR Z
BRAREE BEEE SRMEE &t
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
By &E TER TER TER FTER
Due from associates & e Bt & /8 R R 17 - - 115 115
Trade receivables FEIE R 21 - - 70,937 70,937
Financial assets included in FAEMATIE e R
prepayments, deposits and H fth FEURIE 2
other receivables SRMEE 22 - - 39,835 39,835
Financial assets at fair value BATEBFABRYEZ
through profit or loss SRMEE 19 58,519 82,239 = 140,758
Cash and bank balances Re RRITET 24 - - 97,031 97,031
Deposits with other financial ~ R EM & BERE 2 7%
institutions 24 - - 8,958 8,958
58,519 82,239 216,876 357,634
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

192

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

38. M ITE>SE @)

R eRTANBRERRERS Z KBS

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) R (8E)
2019 —E2-NF
Financial liabilities cHAE
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost
R AT R
ZEeMEE
Notes HK$'000
B FExT
Trade payables B SRR 25 29,164
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Bt ESRITE K 27 72,366
Finance lease payables FEAS B & T & 5K IE 28 4,159
Financial guarantee obligation WS EREL 29 46,160
151,849
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(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued)

2018
Financial assets

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

38. M ITE>SE @)

T (&)

—F-N\F
TREE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

R eRITANBRERRERS Z KBS

ARBHEATER
S eREE
Designated Available-
as such for-sale
Loans and upon initial Held for financial
receivables recognition trading assets Total
BH R il e
BRFE  BAREE REER PRHEE G
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iR T T T T T
Due from associates JEliE & A AR 17 359 = = - 359
Available-for-sale investments HHERE 18 - - - 22,353 22,353
Trade receivables B &R 2 67,967 - - - 67,967
Financial assets included in prepayments, ~ stABENFE - ke REMERR
deposits and other receivables LEREE b 21,053 - - - 21,053
Equity investments at fair value through ERBRRLTEREIRL
profit or loss BARE 23 - 75,829 23,436 - 99,265
Cash and bank balances Be RFITER 2% 210,403 = = = 210,403
Deposits with other financial institutions REMSREE 2 FR 2 23,484 - - - 23,484
Pledged time deposits BERERER 2 2,623 = = = 2,623
325,889 75,829 23,436 22,353 447,507
Financial liabilities cREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REH AT R 2
TRAE
Notes HK$'000
B 3 FHET
Trade payables FERTE B R 25 93,059
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Bt B ERTTE R 27 134,099
Finance lease payables FERNRERERE 28 2,546
Financial guarantee obligation B EREE 29 39,575
269,279

AV Concept Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2019 F i

193



39.

194

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

39. %g:ﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ?%ﬁ%%&

rEEeRTA(RESREQFEES R
BEERN 2 FEASELATEENAT

Carrying amounts Fair values
RESHE NFEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-hE —Z2-)\fF —E-NE —2-N\F
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THx TR FEx
Financial assets THEE
Available-for-sale investments measured & AFEEFE2
at fair value At ERE - 22,353 - 22,353
Financial assets at fair value through ERBHRATEEFEZ
profit or loss PRERE 140,758 - 140,758 =
Non-current deposits FnBES 2,178 198 2,178 198
Pledged time deposits BEHEATHER = 2,623 = 2,623
Equity investments at fair value through  BBEBHEATFEENEY
profit or loss B E - 99,265 - 99,265
142,936 124,439 142,936 124,439
Financial liabilities SREE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings fit SERITIE N 72,366 134,099 72,366 134,099
Finance lease payables FENRERENE 4,159 2,546 4,159 2,546
76,525 136,645 76,525 136,645

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, amounts due from associates, trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables (other
than non-current deposits and pledged time deposits), trade payables,
current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings, current portion of
finance lease payables and financial guarantee obligation approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager reports
directly to the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied
in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with the
audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

The fair values of non-current deposits, pledged time deposits, finance
lease payables and interest-bearing bank borrowings have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for finance
lease payables, and interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31 March
2019 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity and bond investments at financial assets
and fair value through profit or loss are based on quoted market prices.
The fair values of unlisted equity investments at financial assets and
fair value through profit or loss have been estimated with reference to
multiples of comparable listed companies, such as the average of the
enterprise value to sales ratio (“EV/Sales”), price to earnings ratio (“P/E")
or issued prices of recent transactions. The fair values of investments in
convertible bonds measured at financial assets and fair value through
profit or loss has been estimated with reference to the available
published financial information. The fair values of key management
insurance contracts classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are based on the account values less surrender charges,
quoted by the vendors. The directors believe that the estimated fair
values resulting from the valuation technique, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the related changes
in fair values, which are recorded in profit or loss are reasonable, and
that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting
period.

39.

SRTAQAFERERAFEESR
2R )

SRAEREE Y ATEENEHIANAHE
X577 (MIERATEREE) MRS T2

252 BAK - TIAERBR
T

RAREER

FnBrE  FEMAEHER  ENRERE
REARMBRITERZ A FEEDERRE
UER  EERRESRTIHEZ TAZRE
MEREARRRERERRAMAE -R=F
—hEZA=1t—8 FAEEAEMNRERE
SRR DA R Fft 2SR 1T i SR B AR 2 J8 K0 L P 12 AT
ERLTERX e

BREBEREEREERAFHEBYIRZ £k
AREHFREZ R FEETIIREMETET
- BRBREREREERAFEEIEKR I
LHBRAREZ ATFEEISERNELK LT
RAZBHE(GIMFHLEEERYEHER (D
REE/HEEDEX TmARER(HARE) K
MR HHBETEGLE - BBESREREE
RAFEEAEZABRREFKREZ A FEE
E2EABARMBEREE - DB RBEBEA
SRAHEEIRZEREENTEEEASR
RREMNZ A FEEDKRREFEERERRE
R (RHETRE)HE - EFHE - UEER
M/t 2Bt ATFEE(REeMBRRERE
B)RAFEEZABEES (NBELE) B
B UYARESHHARKREEZEE -
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SRITAQAFEERAFEESR
2R )

SRMIABER-"T—AER-T—/\E=H
S+—BrEATTBRE AGERT B

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 39.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of
financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at

31 March 2019 and 2018: EofrigamT
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of
technique unobservable input  Value fair value to input
RER EXTABEHAE 8E ATEEHBRAEZHRE
Unlisted equity investments classified as ~ Market comparable EV/Sales 0.48x to 5.37x 5% increase (decrease) in EV/Sales
financial assets at fair value through companies EEE/HEE (2018:0.42xt03.8x)  multiple would result in increase
profit or loss (2018: equity investments 145 ] & L&A 7] 048f5E 5376 (decrease) in fair value by HK$364,000
at fair value through profit or loss) (Z2—N\E: (2018: HK$703,000)
FETRARE  HERBEBEHREA 0.4215F3.81%) EEE/BEELE LA (TR)5%
TEEFIR eREE(ZT—N\F: HEHNTEE 7 (TE) 364,000
FBRRRATEENRRARE) BT (ZF—\F : 703,000 7T)
P/E 9.13x 5% increase (decrease) in P/E multiple
[RES (2018: 12.72x) would result in increase (decrease)
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9.13f%

in fair value by HK$500,000 (2018:

(ZB-N\%F: HK$1,177,000)
12.721%) AR (TR)5% EERATER
A CF8) 500,000 T (ZZE— N\
£ 11,177,000 1)
Marketability 15.8% 5% increase (decrease) in the

discount

HERTE

(2018:15.9%)
15.8%

marketability discount would result
in decrease (increase) in fair value by

(ZB-N\F: HK$1,228,000 (2018: HK$1,432,000)
15.9%) ASH TR B (TFR) 5% &5
ATEETH(LEFA) 1,228,000 T
(ZF—\F :1,432,00057T)
Minority discount 22.36% 5% increase (decrease) in the minority

DBRRERITE

(2018:20.63%)
22.36%

discount would result in decrease
(increase) in fair value by HK$86,000

(ZB-N\%F: (2018: HK$460,000)
20.63%) DEBR IR L7t (TFE) 5% 168

RATEET® (LF)86,000/ T
(ZZ— )\ : 460,000 TT)



39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

39. SRITEAFEERATFEESER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) b= A0 )
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of
technique unobservable input  Value fair value to input
fEE R M BEXTABERAE #HE ATLEEHBAEZHRE
Key management insurance contracts N/A Account values HK$25,958,000 5% (2018: 5%) increase (decrease)
classified as financial assets at fair value i F REEE (2018: HK$25,280,000) in account values would result in
through profit or loss (2018: available- 25,958,000 7T increase (decrease) in fair value by
for-sale investments) (ZE—N\F: HK$1,298,000 (2018: HK$1,264,000)
FTEEBABRREND  DEAER 25,280,000 7T RPEE LA (TE)S% (22N
BREATEEIEZCHEE F:5%) BEBATEELA(T
(ZZ-N\5F: IHEHERE) %) 1,298,000 8T (ZF—\F :
1,264,000/ 7T)
Surrender charges HK$2,848,000 5% (2018: 5%) increase (decrease)
RREA (2018: HK$2,927,000) in surrender charge would result in
2,848,00078 70 decrease (increase) in fair value by
(ZZ—-N\&F: HK$142,000 (2018: HK$146,000)
2,927,0007%7T) RIREM LA (TR)5% (ZF—N
F:5%) BB TFEE TS (L)
142,000 70 (ZF—/\4F : 146,000
BIT)
31 March 2018
—E-\&E=ZA=t+—H
Investments in convertible bonds Binomial option Discount rates 15.711% 100 basis point increase (decrease) in
classified as equity investments at fair pricing method B & 15.711% discount rates would have no
value through profit or loss “HEABEEEE impact in fair values
RugkEsE RE  HERERER BRI FF () 100 EEEEHATE
BATEBSERARE EhEi$7
Volatility 46.836% 100 basis point increase (decrease) in
i 46.836% volatility would have no impact in
fair values
IR LT (R 100 EEEHAFEE
hik:3-7%
Investment in a joint venture classified as  Adjusted net Adjusted net RMB37,372,000 100 basis point increase (decrease) in
equity investments at fair value through ~ asset value asset value AR#37,372,0007T adjusted net asset value would result
profit or loss AEEEFE AEEEFE in increase (decrease) in fair values by

R-HAEEEZERE HRABEA
s BN FEENRZBARE

HK$233,000 (HK$233,000)

AREEFE LT (TH) 100 EEZ
BERAFEE L (T¥) 233,000
7T (233,000 7T)
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 3. SRMTAAFLEERATFEESR

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group’s financial instruments:
Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2019:

BB m
A EBESERERE

5 -

BAVEEFECEE:

R-E-—NF=ZF=1+—H:

Fair value measurement using

TRIFHEAREERTARFEBEZER

SAEATEERER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
SERT S BEARAEHE BEATAE
ZE BWAE = AE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(8—/E) (8=/@) (=) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FERT FHERT TET FTERT
Financial assets at fair value #&iB1Ez5i% A FEE
through profit or loss SRz SR E E 82,239 3,881 54,638 140,758
As at 31 March 2018: ]Jl-\/\\:g;:_/-(_ﬁ_c_:ﬁ:—_/__ﬂ ;
Fair value measurement using
HEATFEERER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
&R T 5 BAABE EANAER
2B A E BAME
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—FE) (F=B) (B=1E) &5t
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FHET FAT FHET
Available-for-sale AHEERE
investments - - 22,353 22,353
Equity investments at fair BB EIEA T EE
value through PR 2 IRAIRE
profit or loss 23,436 - 75,829 99,265
23,436 - 98,182 121,618
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the
year are as follows:

39.

SRTAQAFERERAFEESR
2R )

DAFEESREE @
FRN - FZERAAFEEFEZESHNT :

2019 2018

—E-NEF T N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FHET

At beginning of year F1) 98,182 108,258

Total losses recognised in other REMEEBAERZ

comprehensive income gk = (49,916)
Total losses recognised in profit or loss RIBEER 2 B4R (27,821) =
Purchases BE 7,577 39,840
Disposal HE (23,300) =
At end of year Fx 54,638 98,182

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as
at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities (2018: Nil).

RZE-—NF=ZA=+—BE=_ZF—N\F=A
=+ B A£EEHETAEATEEFEZ
cEmasE-

FR - F-RE_EBRAVEEFECHLES
REELSREEEE FZENTETABA
FEE(CT-NF:E) o
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

200

As at 31 March 2019:

3. SRMTAAFLEERATFEESR
B um
A EBESRZEE @)
REAVEEZEE:

R-E-—NF=ZF=1+—H:

Fair value measurement using

SFEAFEERER

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

SER™ IS BEAUBRE EBARFAIEE

2 E BWAE BWAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(5—F8) (=) (5=E) ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET TET TET
Non-current deposits EmEIRE - - 2,178 2,178

As at 31 March 2018: R-FE-NF=ZH=1+—H:
Fair value measurement using
SAEATEEREA

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

E TS BRAER BBRPAIER

ZHE HAE BAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—FE) (=) (E=RE) &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET FHET FHT
Non-current deposits EREIL S = = 198 198
Pledged time deposits BT BEFR = 2,623 = 2,623
= 2,623 198 2,821
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

As at 31 March 2019:

R-E-NF=ZF=1+—H:

Fair value measurement using

30. SRMTAAFLEERAFEESR

B um

AN EBESEREE @)
WEAVEEZSE:

AEAFPEERER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
SER™ S EXABE EBEAXTAUEE
ZHE BWAE BWAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(8—F8) (B=f8) (5=E) CEi
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET TET FHET
Interest-bearing bank Bt B ERTTER
borrowings - 72,366 - 72,366
Finance lease payables FERREHRENRE - 4,159 - 4,159
— 76,525 - 76,525
As at 31 March 2018: RoFE— E=H=+—§ :
Fair value measurement using
SEAFEERER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
V&R T BAABE EANAER
ZIR(E #HAE HAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—E) (F=) (B=[E) &5t
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHAT FHET
Interest-bearing bank Mt B ERTTER
borrowings - 134,099 - 134,099
Finance lease payables FERBEHRERE - 2,546 = 2,546
- 136,645 - 136,645
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40.

202

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank borrowings, finance lease payables, cash and bank balances,
pledged time deposits and deposits with other financial institutions.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations. The Group is also exposed to market price
risk in respect of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and market price
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings with
floating interest rates.

The Group’s funding policy is to use short term interest-bearing debts
to finance its working capital requirements and interest-bearing debts
over one year or internally generated resources to finance its capital
investments. The Group borrows mainly at floating interest rates.
Interest-bearing debts over one year will only be considered for capital
investments and under favourable market conditions.

40. SRR EE BB RBE

AEBZTECRHIABERSRITER
ENREEENE ReERRTERF  FEA
ERERUARREMEBBEB TR - %EFS
RMIAZTFERENAAEEEERE - A%
EEEMZHESHEERAE HINEKRES
RRRENEZERET  SEAKEEEERE
E o AREENTEEBEERATFERIKZE
B A E e ERR o

AEESRTIAMELEZERRARATRE
B SNERR - ERAR  RBESRRNRT
ERk EFeRIAHBEAHMEESARZ
B - BB T o

M RE R
7R £ 8 (R T 355 ) 2 48 ) 7y D e 2 [ B = R B
SERFBNERFEZMBRITERER

AEEZESBRANEHISEBRMEE
BESFE WA —FULEZHBEBHAR
ELERBNEEARE -AKEZERTE
WEBNEGFE  EEREARERERMNZ
MRTHEZER—FULZHBER -

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease) in

basis points profit before tax

EHahm BR %% A1 5% Fl

O 2) g, Gid)

HK$'000

FHERT

2019 —F-NF
Hong Kong dollars BT 10 (72)
Hong Kong dollars BT (10) 72
AV Concept Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2019 F3R



40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

40. BIEEMREE B ERBEK @

Interest rate risk (continued) = [ b ()
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
basis points profit before tax
g B 554 A A
O 2) o, G )
HK$'000
FHET
2018 —ZE—N\F
Hong Kong dollars BT 10 (134)
Hong Kong dollars BT (10) 134
Foreign currency risk St = B

The Group has no significant foreign currency risk because its business
is principally conducted in Hong Kong and most of the transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollar or United States dollar. Since the
Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk is considered to be minimal.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties, an
associate and a joint venture. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

AEEYESAINERR  BEEERNTEBL
BEE EABARZTMABTRETLAE -
RN BT ER T - AR ETE R Z IMNE
BB AAR R R 5E -

FERRE

AEFBRELRAMERAEZE=0  —H
BERRAR—HAELERETEER AREZ
BERBMARBUNGEERFETREEZERPY
ARBEERERF o Wi BUGRIRAERTY
BSEEEER  MAKEMEEZERERR
EAEK -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. B EMRERE HEZERBE @

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) EERE (5
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 March 2019 “E-AF=A=T-BHWEARABRFERRE
B’

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to TRITAREBEERE SEENEEEER

credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on ARFEBRHRAGEERR - ZEEBER I E

past due information unless other information is available without undue Z L @ EIE R (BAER A B S ASHE 7 RNA]

cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31 March 2019. S HMEKMBRIN R_E—NF=A=1—

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets. HERERSB -F2JcERTMEEZR

HASHE -
12-month
ECLs
128ARH Lifetime ECLs
FEE#R 2HANEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
PEER1 Mg £2 2 P& &3 R (97
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TER TET THER
Trade receivables* B E 58 3* - - - 82,427 82,427
Due from associates FEI s &= A RIFR
- Not yet past due — Mk H 115 - - _ 115
Financial assets included in prepayments, IAFERFUE « & K E el
deposits and other receivables RENSR e REE
— Normal** =TER 39,835 - - - 39,835
~ Doubtful** —RER** - - 8,917 - 8,917
Cash and bank balances ReRBTET
~ Not yet past due — [ 7 48 97,031 - - = 97,031
Deposited with other financial REMEREEZFR
institutions
~ Not yet past due — [ AR L HR 8,958 - - = 8,958
Non-current deposits FndiEe
~ Not yet past due — [A 7 48 2,178 - - = 2,178
148,117 - 8,917 82,427 239,461

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for S REERESEKE FRFIRAEE - A%
impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 21 to BB AEENER BB NGA MBI 21 ©
the consolidated financial statements.

LA The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and > RIENFRIE ~ 2 & RE M BRFIANGIRZ & 5
other receivables is considered to be “normal” when they are not past due BEMNGEEERNAROPRRERIER] - #
and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant BARKHATRAE S HENSEIENEER
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the BAETAEM - bl FRBEMEEERESR
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”. RIRE] -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. HBEABEEBFERER @
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) FEERE (8
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 March 2018 “E-N\F=ZA=T-HWEARABRFERE
B’
The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise cash RASEEMERAEE (BIFR S RRTET
and bank balances, pledged time deposits, deposits with other financial BEAEHER  REMESRBBEZTR &
institutions, amounts due from associates, available-for-sale investments, Bt A RIFIE  AMEHERE BRERE
financial assets and equity investments at fair value through profit or RNEBEIRzEMEERREKRE « AR
loss, and deposits and other receivables, arises from default of the EREMEKFIB)ME EERBRER Y
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts FEAMESE FaRREERZEIAZEK
of these instruments. HEHE e
Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third HRAEBRELRAMEBAREIE=R
parties, an associate and a joint venture, there is no requirement for —HE AR —HeEbEETEE - At
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/ BAEHG - EERRETFENREF /X5
counterparty, by geographical region and by industry sector. There HF  IRMERRITEER - ARASEEWR
are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group as the ESRFCEFPERDERD BN TRER R
customer bases of the Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed in 1% ARAEETESEETF 2 EERR -
different sectors and industries.
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit EAANEEREERE ZRAMEREERR
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 21 to the ZH#E—HEEDTER TN R E VIS RERM T
consolidated financial statements. 215085 o
Liquidity risk REBESER
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the REE 2 SR A BN RS RRESRRIRETAR
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as BRIRN R Z B ERE RN T -
follows:
2019
“Z-N%
More than More than
Within 1yearbut 2 years but
1 year or less than less than More than
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—FRA% —Ept MENE
REREE (EIRWE EIREF EENE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THEx TR THEx
Trade payables B8 5 BN 29,164 - - = 29,164
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Mt BRITIER 72,366 - - - 72,366
Finance lease payables ENRERERE 1,605 1,337 1,537 93 4,572
Guarantees given to banks in connection i FA &% 2 EHIEHRT
with facilities granted to joint ventures 38172 /R 3,091,267 - - - 3,091,267
3,194,402 1,337 1,537 93 3,197,369
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40.

206

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

40. BIEEMEE B ERBEK @

Liquidity risk (continued) REE SRR (®)
2018
—E-N\F
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1 year or less than less than
on demand 2 years 5 years Total
—FRK —F A E R A E
RERER BALRME BALREF &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHT
Trade payables ERE ZERRK 93,059 = = 93,059
Interest-bearing bank Bt SERITE K
borrowings 130,917 163 4,487 135,567
Finance lease payables ENBERERE 913 913 950 2,776
Guarantees given to METEEREZ
banks in connection with  {EEIRHFIRITZ
facilities granted to joint ~ #&{R
ventures 3,233,153 - - 3,233,153
3,458,042 1,076 5,437 3,464,555
Market price risk ™ E Rk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to market price risk
arising from individual equity investments classified as trading equity
investments (notes 19 and 23) and key management insurance contracts
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (note 19)
(2018: classified as available-for-sale investments (note 18)) as at 31
March 2019. Most of the Group’s listed equity investments are listed on
the Stock Exchange and were valued at quoted market prices at the end
of the reporting period.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Market price risk (continued)

The market equity indices for the Stock Exchange, at the close of
business of the nearest trading day in the year to the end of the reporting
period, and their respective highest and lowest points during the year are
as follows:

40. BIEEMREE B ERBEK @

™ B =B (8)

RIS MR FRAR S A E XK
B RE - REERPT 2 TISRATEE - ARK
EXEZFAESREEHENT

31 March High/low 31 March High/low
2019 2019 2018 2018
—B-nEF —®-hE —2—N\fF —E—N\F
=ZA=+—H B/ /BE& =A=+—H &=/ &IE
Hong Kong —Hang Seng &8 — B4 158k
Index 29,051  31,541/24,586 30,093  33,154/23,826

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5% change in
the fair values of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(2018: equity investments at fair value through profit or loss) and key
management insurance contracts with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit before tax and the Group’s equity, based on their
carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

TRINGEMBEMEREFTEZBERT
BHREHEERSZRESRTE  BBBE
BATEEIIGZEREE(ZT—N\F: 3
BEAEATFEENRZBRARE) RIEE
BEAEBRRANZATEEEZH5% A%
BB ADE R R AN R E S 2 B -

Increase/
decrease
Carrying in profit
amount before tax
R B AT %= F
REEE 2, wL
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FERT
2019 —B-NF
Financial assets at fair value through FERBERIEAFEEEZ
profit or loss TREE 117,648 5,882
Key management insurance contracts classified 28 &BBERIZ AT ER
as financial assets at fair value through R EMEBEL
profit or loss FEEBAERREAN 23,110 1,156
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. BIERREBEEEREE @®
AND POLICIES (continued)

Market price risk (continued) ™ B = B ()
Increase/
decrease Increase/
Carrying in profit decrease
amount before tax in equity*
R 25 B A R *
RESH o, g, m s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FET
2018 —ZE—-N\F
Equity investments at fair value B iBIBIEAFEENK 2
through profit or loss IR A E 99,265 4,963 =
Key management insurance SEATHEEREZ
contracts classified as available- FZEEE A BRRKRA L
for-sale investments 22,353 - 1,118

* Excluding retained profits

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is required
to comply with certain capital requirements set out in the bank lending
facilities. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31
March 2018.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the total capital. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing
ratio at less than 75%. Net debt includes trade payables, interest-
bearing bank borrowings, and finance lease payables, less cash and cash
equivalents, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss. Capital represents total
equity.
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EXxEH
AEREATRE 2 T EARRREAEEFE
REZEEN  WRBRRZERLE - UXH
HEBRFRERNZBREE -
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RAEHHE - ARBEASHEERABABRRKE
ZBB - FBRRBE B AR BT AR AR R X
HEERERE AKBERETRITEREEMR
BIETEXRRE RBE-FT-NF=A
=+—RAR-E-N\F=ZA=+—RLFE "
AREERERZBR BRIEFHEESE -

AEEMNAERBBLR (BEHFEBRAER
REB)ERER - AKBEZBRIIGERAE
LEEREFFNT5% AT - B FHEBERNES
R MBRITEFARENRERSHA
BRERERREER - BBESEAFEE
SRR BB ENRBBBSEAFEETIR
ZBRAE - EARIEHDAAEE



40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

EXEE @)

40. BIEEMREE B ERBEK @

RBEHMERE 2 ERBBLEMT

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Trade payables B E SRR 29,164 93,059
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M S ERTT K 72,366 134,099
Finance lease payables JE R E FE 08 4,159 2,546
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERERIIREIEB (105,989) (233,887)
Less: Equity investments at fair value W ERERRATEEIR S
through profit or loss &% A% & = (99,265)
Less: Financial assets at fair value B BBERE AT EENEZ
through profit or loss CREEFARDEE
included in current assets (117,648) -
Net cash ReFHE (117,948) (103,448)
Total capital AR 1,115,593 1,086,726
Gearing ratio BARBELE N/AFEA N/ATiE B
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COMPANY

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

41. RRQ T 2B BEARRE

BERARRAMBARRRBERRE R 2E

the end of the reporting period is as follows: BT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB &R 204 32
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ZI%E 575,412 535,050
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 575,616 535,082
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries [ NI 1,113 738
Prepayments TR IR 86 63
Equity investment at fair value through FRBEREATEBEIERSZ
profit or loss RAKE - 12,182
Financial assets at fair value through BEREBREATEAINEZ
profit or loss EHEE 18,835 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReREREFEEE 1,469 23,895
Total current assets mBEERE 21,503 36,878
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accrued expenses FEET & A 4,792 11,836
Financial guarantee obligation WIS ERESE 46,160 39,575
Total current liabilities mEAERRE 50,952 51,411
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mENE B (29,449) (14,533)
Net assets AEFE 546,167 520,549
EQUITY R
Issued capital BEITIRA 90,866 92,315
Reserves (note) A 455,301 428,234
Total equity s 546,167 520,549
AV Concept Holdings Limited
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42,

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 41. AR F)F MR T @0
COMPANY (continued)
Note: B3 -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARZFEHEHRET
Equity-
settled (Accumulated
Share share-based Capital losses)/
premium payment redemption retained
account reserve reserve profits Total
137 REEHEN RA (RitER) /
RER REANREE BERE REEF aF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT T THT T
At 1 April 2017 R=Z—+FMA—A 453,469 110 16,142 (101,719) 368,002
Total comprehensive income for the year FREAUALE - = = 93,717 93,717
Issue of bonus shares BITA IR (15,459) = = = (15,459)
Repurchase of shares B R (2,756) - - - (2,756)
Exercised of share options IfE A 299 (110) = = 189
Dividend paid BIEAR S - - - (15,459) (15,459)
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R=F-N\F=A=+—-AkK
—T-\FmA—A 435,553 - 16,142 (23,461) 428,234
Total comprehensive income for the year FREARALE - - - 51,074 51,074
Repurchase of shares BRI (5,834) - - - (5,834)
Dividend paid BIRMRE - - - (18,173) (18,173)
At 31 March 2019 R=Z-h=A=+—-A 429,719 - 16,142 9,440 455,301

In accordance with the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the Company’s share premium account is distributable in certain
circumstances.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 26 June 2019.

42,

RIERERERFE(ZEZWFERDE) - K
REAZBHEEREETERTATOK -

mEPMBHRRZHE

RFEMBRECR T —NFAZ+/H
BEESHERRETIH -

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Approximate Effective equity

Address gross areas Lot number  Lease expiry interest to the Group  Usage
AEBEN

3t BHAEE it B4R HHEHA ERRE AR

HONG KONG

B

Flat 302, 3/F, Block G, Telford Gardens, 603.00 sq.ft. NKI 5744 2047 100%  Residential
No. 33 Wai Yip Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

NENEEEZEBRERTECEIEI02E 603.00 F 7R NKI 5744 “TWtEE 100% {£%

MAINLAND CHINA

Rl it

Units A-D, 25/F, Noble Center, 1006 Fu Zhong San Road, 1,000.77 sg.m. N/A 2053 100%  Office
Futian District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province

ERERYITEAERT = 10065 1,00077F 5% NER “TH=F 100% WAE

HERLSEAZDE

The whole of 28th Floor, Tower One, Neptune Center, 1,088.42 sq.m. N/A 2048 100%  Services
Gaoxin District, Chengdu City, Sichuan Province apartments

mIERSBHRHEEEDL—H28EEE 108842 F 2k @A “EONE 100% REALE

SINGAPORE

Eipbid

37 Orange Grove Rood, #04-11, 185.00 sg.m. N/A Freehold property 100%  Residential

Orange Grove Residences, Singapore
185.00F755K  FEA KAFEENE 100% H%E

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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